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The core of the corporate brand is “Chinese herbal medicine”. The core of the corporate culture is
“culture of Chinese herbal medicine”.

Since the creation of the Bawang brand, with its inherited Chinese herbal medicine, the Group has
been using its unique knowledge and experience to spread the culture of Chinese herbal medicine and
strengthen its brand to extend the influence of Chinese national brand.

The Group has been focusing on the research, development, manufacture and sales of high quality
natural Chinese herbal products with good value. The Group strives to capture the essence of the
Chinese herbal medicine with a 5,000-year history and introduce to consumers a natural and healthy
lifestyle. The Group is aiming to promote its national brand to the global market.
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Financial Highlights

B 75 4 2

2011 2H2011 1H2011 2010
—E-—F —Z——-% 22— ZZZT-ZF
FE T¥E E¥F FE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMTRT ARMTR AR®FTT AR®TrT
Revenue HER 888,909 449,066 439,843 1,475,355
Cost of Sales & KA (544,154) (241,328) (302,826) (564,017)
Gross Profit el 344,755 207,738 137,017 911,338
Selling & distribution costs HE R HEEA (872,339) (413,782) (458,557) (941,811)
Administrative expenses TTHEEH (102,457) (57,720) (44,737) (101,511)
Loss from operations EiEEE (625,287) (261,644) (363,643) (131,5793)
Income tax credit FFT 15 4 5 40 59,967 2,374 57,593 16,160
Loss attributable oA AELEIE
to equity shareholders (5658,570) (263,714) (294,856) (117,971)
Loss per share (RMB yuan) P B R 5 18
(AR¥IT) (0.19) (0.09) (0.10) (0.04)
Gross margin FF X 38.8% 46.3% 31.2% 61.8%
Net loss ratio FEEE -62.8% -58.7% -67.0% -8.0%
Effective tax rate BB X -9.7% N/A N/A -12.0%
Revenue by Product Category
WARERENS R
63.8% 90.0%

10.0%

(RMB’000)
(AR®TTT)

18.8%

7.4%

{ \
. Shampoo & hair-care products 567,404 319,195 248,209 1,328,079
GEERER
Skincare products 89,060 47,553 41,507 27,272
EEER
. ﬂega' tea 167,263 48,947 118,316 69,757
Other household and
personal care products 65,182 33,371 31,811 50,247
ESARAASEESR
Té‘";‘r' 888,909 449,066 439,843 1,475,355
\ J
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Financial Highlights
MBEBRE

Revenue by Brand

Yo A #% & 1 5

47.0% 67.4%
16.4%

4.7%
0.4%

3.4%

1.5%

(RMB’000)
(AR®F )
%a;vang 417,972 271,239 146,733 993,817
Royal Wind 145,768 60,998 84,770 333,449
EBR
. Bawang Herbal Tea"” 167,263 48,947 118,316 69,757
SRR
. Herborn 82,750 43,955 38,795 21,822
REE
Litao® 68,846 20,329 48,517 51,060
BE
® Smerry 6,310 3,598 2,712 5,450
W Bz
Total
&zt 888,909 449,066 439,843 1,475,355
\ J
Notes: B sE -
1. Launched in April 2010. Revenue not directly comparable. 1. ZE-TFMAHEDL c TREBRAETEREL
2. Launched new product series in October 2010. Revenue not directly 2. T -TFTABEHTNERRY - Tl
comparable. AETHEELE -
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Corporate Information
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Corporate Information

LR R#H

Hong Kong Branch share registrar and

transfer office

Computershare Hong Kong Investor
Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17Mth Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

Auditors

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central

Hong Kong

Legal advisors on Hong Kong Law

Herbert Smith

23rd Floor, Gloucester Tower
15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Company’s website

www.bawang.com.cn

Stock code

01338

BEERZETTRE

BEEPRBLHELERAA

EE

AT

2/ KNEE1835
A F AL

17MIE1712-1716 =

=B ED

BH AR E B
HE W ED

58

b 3%

AT 105

AT KESHE

BRAERERE
EEKRBMEH
e
SRR 59
R ITAE23E

N B Ak

www.bawang.com.cn

BREAKR

01338

6 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited 28 F B (£ &) =R AR A 7



Corporate Information
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Chairman’s Statement
FTEHRES

Dear shareholders of the Company,

On behalf of the board of directors of BaWang International
(Group) Holdings Limited (the “Company”), | present the
audited annual results of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2011.

The Directors report that the total revenue of the Group for
2011 was RMB888.9 million, representing a decrease of
39.7% as compared to 2010. The Group recorded a loss
of RMB558.6 million for 2011 as compared to a loss of
RMB118.0 million for 2010. For period to period comparison
of the performance on a half yearly basis, the total revenue of
the Group for the second half of 2011 was RMB449.1 million,
representing an increase of 2.1% as compared to the first half
of 2011. The Group recorded a loss of RMB263.7 million for
the second half 2011 as compared to a loss of RMB294.9
million for the first half of 2011, indicating an improvement in
the overall results of our business of 10.6%. Please refer to the
Financial Review section of this annual report for details of the
operating performance of the Group.

The Directors would like to indicate that in the first half of 2010,
the Group was operating and developing its businesses under
normal conditions. Ever since the dioxane incident in July
2010, the Group has made enormous and continuous efforts
in an attempt to recover and mitigate the negative impact
on its businesses arising from the incident. Analysis of the
revenue by brands for 2011 has revealed that Bawang (% E in
f#) and Royal Wind (B/®mh%) branded shampoos generated
an aggregate revenue of RMB332.2 million for the second half
of 2011, representing an increase of 43.5% as compared to
the first half of 2011. The Directors feel that the Group starts
seeing light at the end of the tunnel.

BEUBWMELFTZEE :

AANERRBIBR(REERERA
A(ARARDzEZE  RAERBRKRRE
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B T739.7% - AEB —_T——FEEB
BERELREEBAEARKSS86EET © M
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BT NEFHRRERE AEE-FT
——FT¥FENBRARBARKA4491
BB BT ——F ¥ FHEEEMN
21% - AEB T ——FT¥FHBER
RHEMEBEARK263.7EET M_Z
ffiiﬁéiﬁ SEIBARK2408E

CERARMOERERRBAETYSF
E&%T106%o%§;‘ﬁé$%%«“*%ii.ﬁ
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FEHI MERMBREKRINNE

WAZEAR¥BR2EEBT  H_F——
FEFFLLE  BINTA436% ° EF

MEASECHBEINRANE -
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Chairman’s Statement
FTRESFE

Looking forward, we will make use of our core competencies
and specialty in traditional Chinese herbs to research, develop,
and design advanced and competitive Chinese herbal HPC
products. We will continue to expand and/or optimise our
distribution network for our different branded products. We will
continue to increase our product lines and to implement multi-
product and multi-brand strategy, aiming to become a global
leader of branded Chinese herbal HPC products operator and
to bring the best returns to our investors.

The board of Directors (the “Board”) would like to take this
opportunity to express its gratitude to the shareholders of the
Company (the “Shareholder”), customers, suppliers, banks,
professional parties and employees of the Company for their
continuous commitment and support.

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2012

REKE  HMAKERRMRHEEY
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Management Discussion and Analysis

7 AT

&R E

Business Review

During the year under review, the Group took a series of
measures in order to increase the sales of our Chinese
herbal shampoo and haircare products such as the brand
revitalization programme for recapturing brand equity, and
identifying and stabilizing new sources of brand equity for
Bawang branded portfolio along the lines of Bawang and Royal
Wind branded series; followed by the commencement of the
replacement programme for inventories of Bawang branded
products in the distribution channels; implementation of the
Sales Automation Management Systems (SAMS) for efficient
and effective channel management; prioritizing the recovery
of the modern trade channels, thereafter assignment of Mr.
Jacky Chan (AX#) as the principal brand ambassador for
the promotion of Bawang brand image; and appointment of

“Korean Top Beauty” movie star Ms. Kim Hui Seon (£ &%) as

the brand ambassador for the promotion of our new female-
oriented product series. Last but not least, Mr. Jacky Chan (5%
BE) speaks for the enhanced version of the Anti-hair Fall series
(AR % 7%!) advocating a concept of “Prevention is always
better than cure”, whilst Ms. Kim Hui Seon (4 Z %) promotes
the new Hair Blackening series (5% % %)) and the new female-
oriented Nutri-reparing series (% 7).

7% [0 B

REBERN  AEBRRT —RIEHE
AEMBEMPEELEEEERNEE
HOLNATEBREEEMETN®
FRR A ARBRANBEESRT G
HE(BEBIMERERRY)MRE
BEENRE BERABANSHEHERESR
WBELTREEMBRETSE : BTHEBE
BB EEEMETNHEESHE
BRHG(ISAMS]) - BEEMERRE S
RE: MEBBEREXEEAETENG
BREERE URABIREFES I
ZHEIBREE XX ESEE/EA

MR E A - REFTRFAFH 2 E
BRAERAINMETR REERZ
BEMEKREEENAR BRI
BMoEEARRERES  AE2ESH
NEEEHREE—EHNSERI L@
M Z S EREmR — BRI -
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Management Discussion and Analysis

TEERBAMRSH

As of 31 December 2011, the Bawang brand distribution
network comprised around 543 distributors and 51 KA
retailers, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities. During
the year under review, five distributors renewed their contracts
with the Group as KA retailers. Furthermore, the products are
sold in Hong Kong, Macau, Singapore, Myanmar, Thailand,
Malaysia, Brunei, and Australia.

During the year under review, the Group revamped and
consolidated the original Royal Wind Chinese herbal anti-
dandruff shampoo series into four major product series, which
are all targeted at young and fashionable consumers with
dandruff problem. We carried out a replacement programme
for inventories of Royal Wind branded products in the second
half of 2011 with similar operations to that of Bawang’s in early
2011. The programme was basically completed by the end of
2011. New generation pop music singer Mr. Han Geng (32 5¥)
has been selected as the brand ambassador for Royal Wind
series for the promotion of its brand image. With his energetic,
healthy and fashionable image, we believe that he will

Es
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREEARE W

successfully portray the brand personality of Royal Wind and
increase its brand awareness and recognition. According to
the brand positioning of Royal Wind, we strategically select the
publicity channels through modern media such as the internet,
public transport TV commercials, mobile phone messaging,
etc.

As of 31 December 2011, the Royal Wind brand distribution
network comprised approximately 461 distributors and 49 KA
retailers, covering 27 provinces and four municipalities. During
the year under review, five distributors renewed their contracts
with the Group as KA retailers. Furthermore, the products are
sold in Singapore.

As of 31 December 2011, the Litao (B/E) brand distribution
network comprised approximately 379 distributors, covering 26
provinces and four municipalities. The Litao range of enhanced
products targets the mid-low end segment in the PRC market,
achieving the Company’s goal to increase the market coverage
of its products.

mhEEM BB RBHEZEREBRK
HEEREBWESRH - flm: EH&"?
/&/ %ﬁ ZﬁfifﬂiﬁﬂiﬁéﬁLﬂ

HE-_ZT——H+_-A=+—H ERA
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRE W

In relation to our Chinese herbal skincare products series,
Herborn (ARE &), its target customers are white-collar females
aged between 25 and 45 who have high purchasing power
and pursue a healthy and natural lifestyle. The internationally
renowned celebrity Ms. Faye Wong (E3F) continues to act
as the brand ambassador of Herborn to promote its brand
image. The Group has been re-appointed as exclusive sponsor
of skincare products to the Miss World Pageant China Finals
in 2011. Apart from providing our Herborn Chinese herbal
skincare products for the use of the contestants, we also
conducted a series of skincare seminars for the contestants
to allow them to understand the concepts and benefits of
traditional Chinese medicine. As of 31 December 2011, the
Group successfully set up sales and distribution network
comprising approximately 105 distributors and 15 KA retailers
covering 27 provinces and four municipalities and 91 counters
in department stores and/or hypermarkets. The number of
counters in cosmetics specialty shops in the PRC substantially
increased to approximately 3,000. In addition, the products
have exclusively been sold at approximately 270 Mannings
Chain Stores in Hong Kong since November 2010.

We are repacking a natural plant skincare products series,
Smerry (3 A). Its target customers are young females aged
between 18 and 28 who pursue a natural and healthy lifestyle.
In order to promote its brand image, the new generation

» v

tie i PENT o ¢

A9 ehp XN LT
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BPORERT -RINHESEIE =
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ERIIRABBEE R HMAE  BIERY
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7TEEMMEEESET  UREBRER
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREEARE W

-

T R mEL
s B W i 1

TEAMERE KR

don

popular idol Ms. Jing Tian (i) has been appointed as
its brand ambassador. With her pure and natural image, we
believe that she will successfully portray the natural plant
essence brand positioning of Smerry and increase its brand
awareness and recognition.

In relation to the Chinese herbal beverage product series —
Bawang Herbal Tea, the Group continued to expand its sales
and distribution network in 2011. As of 31 December 2011, the
distribution network comprised approximately 491 distributors,
covering 26 provinces and four municipalities.

The Group has retained Mercer Consulting Company as our
advisor to enhance our business processes, and optimize the
supply chain and human resource management since May
2011. The name of the project is known as “Project Stepping
Stone”. We have successfully realigned our organization
structure in line with the value chain concept. Basically,
the newly-established key positions have been filled up by
newly-recruited professionals from internationally renowned
companies specialized in fast moving consumer goods
industry.

SMERRY
WEL

arﬁ:ﬂuzg

BEMMIEESEARBERAE
EPHMBARBTER - RFEBESH
NEFR - BANTERERDRESE
ARAEDE m i EA ReEEAM
EE T ISRANE

BANPEERKHRIER — BERE
KEIE’\_T——if%‘Z ﬁ)ﬁ%)?eﬁiﬁ
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:-I— B DHEREERAL491E 0 H
BoEENEENLNEEED

BT ——FhAR AEEEBTE
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRE W

So far this year, the Group has taken a series of strategic
measures specifically for each of our core brands as described
above. The Directors believe that such measures have
strengthened the foundation for recovery and development of
our business. Please refer to the Outlook section of this annual
report for discussions of plans and strategies for the portfolio
of our various brands.

In terms of the recognition gained by the Group, on top of
those honors and awards which have been mentioned in the
Interim Report of 2011, we have further accomplished further
honors and awards in 2011.

In May 2011, the Group obtained an award for “Guangzhou
Science Achievement Award” from the Bureau of Science
and Information Technology of Guangzhou for an extraction
method developed by the Group in Saponins from Eclipta
Prostrata (B2 EE2HELEY).

In August 2011, the Group obtained six patent certificates
from the State Intellectual Property Office in relation to hair
regrowing methodologies and techniques.

MERARRED
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREEARE W

In December 2011,
development of “Southern China Medication”, the Guangdong
Provincial Trade Association of Pharmacy accredited Madam
Wan Yuhua as “Renowned Entrepreneur in Pharmaceutical
Industry of Guangdong Province” and Bawang Guangzhou
as “Enterprise with Significant Contribution to Pharmaceutical
Industry of Guangdong Province”, respectively.

in recognition to the innovation and

Also in December 2011, Bawang brandname was elected as
“The Most Competitive Brand in the Trendy Industry of China in
2011” by IT Times, sina.com, and the Guangdong Daily Used
Chemical Association.

These achievements serve as recognition of the Group’s strong
capability in the research, development and industrialization of
Chinese herbal medicine.

From time to time, we submit applications for registration of
patents relating to research findings about the application
of Chinese herbs for haircare, skincare and healthcare. The
successful registration of which will prove to be a further
testament to the recognition and breakthrough in our research
and development efforts.

RZE——F+ZA  BEEEMER
[SERME|PBRRT  BERABHTE
HELRBRTFTEITERLIERE B &
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEESRE W

Litigation

We are of the view that the contents in the relevant magazine
article published by Next Magazine on 14 July 2010 are
defamatory of the Group and/or amount to malicious
falsehood. Therefore, we have commenced legal proceedings
in the High Court of Hong Kong against Next Magazine
seeking, inter alia, damages and an injunction to restrain
Next Magazine from publishing such contents or similar
contents. The legal proceedings against Next Magazine are still
continuing.

Financial Review

During the year under review, the Group’s revenue amounted
to RMB888.9 million, representing a decrease of 39.7% as
compared to RMB1,475.4 million in 2010. The decline in sales
in 2011 was principally attributable to the substantial decline in
the sales of the Group’s two major shampoo products in 2011
as a result of and in connection with the “dioxane incident”
as disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 14
July 2010. But such sales decline was partially offset by the
sales of the new Bawang Nutri-repairing product series for
female customers and the increase in sales of three branded
products, viz. Bawang Herbal Tea, Herbon and Litao.

The Group’s core brand, Bawang, generated RMB418.0 million
in revenue, which accounted for 47.0% of the Group’s total
revenue for 2011, and represented a decrease of 57.9% as
compared to 2010. A closer look at revenue has revealed that
Bawang branded products generated RMB271.2 million in
revenue for the second half of 2011, representing an increase
of 84.9% as compared to the first half of 2011.

The branded Chinese herbal anti-dandruff hair-care series,
Royal Wind, recorded a revenue of RMB145.8 million in 2011,
which accounted for approximately 16.4% of the Group’s total
revenue, and represented a decrease of 56.3% as compared
to 2010. A closer look at revenue has revealed that Royal Wind
branded products generated RMB61.0 million in revenue for
the second half of 2011, representing a decrease of 28.0% as
compared to the first half of 2011.
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The original and enhanced natural-based branded shampoo
and shower gel products series, Litao, generated RMB68.8
million in revenue, which accounted for approximately 7.8%
of the Group’s total revenue, and represented an increase of
34.8% as compared to 2010. As the enhanced product series
of Litao branded products were rolled out in October 2010, the
total revenue generated for 2010 and 2011 by this brand may
not be directly comparable.

The first branded Chinese herbal drink of the Group, Bawang
Herbal Tea recorded a revenue of RMB167.2 million in 2011,
which represented approximately 18.8% of the Group’s total
revenue. As Bawang Herbal Tea branded products were
launched in April 2010, the total revenue generated for 2010
and 2011 by this brand may not be directly comparable.

The branded Chinese herbal skincare series, Herborn,
generated a revenue of RMB82.8 million, which accounted for
approximately 9.3% of the Group’s total revenue for 2011, and
represented an increase of 279.2% as compared to 2010.

Smerry (3% A) generated a total revenue of RMB6.3 million,
which accounted for approximately 0.7% of the Group’s total
revenue for 2011.

We generally sell our products through extensive distribution
and retail network. During the year under review, sales to our
distributors and retailers represented approximately 79.9% and
approximately 20.1% of the Group’s total revenue respectively.

We were also selling our products in Hong Kong, Macao,
Singapore, Myanmar, Thailand, Malaysia, Brunei, and
Australia in 2011. The sales to these markets outside the PRC
accounted for 2.5% of our total revenue for 2011.
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Cost of sales for 2011 amounted to RMB544.2 million,
representing a decrease of 3.5% as compared to RMB564.0
million for 2010. Such change was mainly due to the decrease
in sales volume of two major shampoo products, but partially
offset by the increase in sales volume of three branded
products, namely Herborn, Litao and Bawang Herbal Tea
branded products, and the provision of RMB43.9 million for
write-down of inventories.

During the year under review, the Group’s gross profit
decreased to RMB344.8 million, representing a decrease of
62.2% as compared to RMB911.3 million for 2010. The gross
profit margin decreased from 61.8% for 2010 to 38.8% for
2011. Such decline was mainly due to the increase in the
provision for write-down of inventories, the decrease in the
sales of shampoo products to modern trade channel from
which the profit margin is generally higher than that of the other
channels, and the increased proportion of herbal tea products
in the product mix as the profit margin of herbal tea is lower
than that of HPC products.

Selling and distribution costs decreased to RMB872.3 million
for 2011, representing an decrease of 7.4% as compared
to that for 2010. This was mainly due to the decrease in
advertising fee, and the saving achieved in promotion fee
through optimizing the resources of promotion staff.

Administrative expenses for 2011 amounted to approximately
RMB102.5 million, representing a increase of approximately
0.9% as compared with approximately RMB101.5 million
in 2010. This was mainly due to the increase in salary and
meeting expenses and recruitment fee, but partially offset by
the decrease in non-capitalizable research and development
expenditures and option share-based payments.
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The Group recorded an operating loss of RMB625.3 million for
2011, as compared to the operating loss of RMB131.6 million
for 2010. The Group’s operating margin decreased from -8.9%
for 2010 to -70.3% for 2011. The decrease was mainly due to
the substantial decrease in total revenues and the increase in
the proportion of costs of sales over the revenue, but partially
offset by the decrease in selling and distribution costs.

The Company had an income tax credit of RMB60.0 million for
2011 as compared to income tax credit of RMB16.2 million for
2010.

Our accounting policy prescribes that inventories are stated
at the lower of cost and net realizable value (“NRV”). In the
event that NRV falls below cost, the difference is taken as
provision for inventories. As at 31 December 2011, the amount
of provision for write-down of inventories was RMB54.7 million
(81 December 2010: RMB10.8 million). The Group recognised
a loss of approximately RMB43.9 million for the year ended 31
December 2011 in respect of the write-down of inventories to
their net realisable value, which have been included in cost of
sales as mentioned above.

As a combined effect of the above, the Group recorded an
attributable loss of RMB558.6 million for 2011, as compared to
the attributable loss of RMB118.0 million for 2010.
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Subsequent Events

On 7 February 2012, the Company granted an aggregate of
1,500,000 share options (“Options”) to a full-time employee
of the Group to subscribe for an aggregate of 1,500,000
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the capital of the Company
(*Shares”) under its share option scheme (“Share Option
Scheme”) adopted on 20 May 2009. The employee is not a
Director of the Company. The Option shall entitle its holder to
subscribe for an aggregate of 1,500,000 Shares upon exercise
of such Options at an exercise price of HK$1.00 per share. The
Options granted are exercisable in five equal tranches of 20%
each per annum. Subject to the terms of the Share Option
Scheme, the first tranche shall be exercisable anytime after
the first anniversary of the employee joining the Group. The
remaining four tranches shall be exercisable anytime after the
next four successive anniversaries.

Outlook

The year 2012 is the second year of the 12th Five-year Plan for
National Economic and Social Development of China, policies
will likely continue to be centered on prudent monetary policy
and a proactive fiscal policy with an emphasis on the quality
rather than quantity of growth. The central government of the
PRC has announced a business tax reform to support the
development of the PRC service industries. More preferential
taxation treatment is expected for emerging strategic
industries. Additional fiscal spending in public housing,
education, healthcare and social security system will likely also
be approved.

Notwithstanding there are two downside risks to the PRC
economic growth, viz. the European sovereign debt crisis
and the property tightening measures, the Directors remain
positive about the fundamental growth drivers for consumption
in the PRC. Acceleration in income growth, particularly for
mass consumers, should stimulate their desire to improve the
quality of life and to look for a natural and healthy lifestyle.
The Company should be able to help these consumers by
offering herbal and natural base household and personal care
products.
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In 2012, the Group aims to transcend itself into a new
horizon through efficient and effective operations so as to
achieve a win-win situation between itself and the retailer and
distributors. We outline our business plans and strategies for
2012.

For Bawang branded products, leveraging on our core
competence in traditional Chinese medicine, we market the
theme “Natural and Healthy Way for Hair Regrowing (24
£ - RARERE)” by pinpointing the differentiation between our
products and those of our competitors. We target to maintain
our leadership position in the Chinese herbal shampoo market
in the PRC; to further increase the revenue through extensive
coverage of our sales and distribution network; to enhance
the skills and knowledge of our sales and marketing team
through inhouse training and development programs; to
enhance the coverage and expansion of traditional channel
so as to increase the same distributor sales; and to expand
the revenue stream through the launch of enhanced product
series similar to modern trade channel with emphasis on after-
shampoo hair-caring and new product series directed at
female customers. To achieve these objectives, we are going
to replicate a similar model for operations and expansion of
the traditional channel which we have adopted for modern
trade channel since second half of 2011; and to make use of
the expertise and experience of the newly-recruited marketing
elites for strategic planning and executions. To ensure a
smooth expansion of the traditional trade channel, our newly-
established trade marketing department will make use of
various management systems for monitoring the channel
expenses and the promotional campaigns at the point of sales.
To achieve a win-win situation with our distributors, we will
offer training and development programs to our distributors,
with a view to enhancing management skills for attainment of
sales targets and hence increase sales revenue.
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For the Royal Wind Chinese herbal anti-dandruff shampoo
series, we successfully launched the enhanced version of
the branded products in the second half of 2011. Leveraging
on the modern trade channel and distributor system, we will
continue to deepen the penetration of the marketing channel
this year, to roll out enhanced products with new packaging
design and improved formulae which appeal to young
customers and to expand the assortment of products that are
available at the points of sales so as to increase sales revenue
and market share. Our target is to expand the distribution
network for Royal Wind brand so that the market coverage can
be on the same level as the Bawang brand. We will continue
to strengthen its brand image. We strive to build up this brand
as another leading Chinese herbal shampoo within the next few
years.

For the Herborn Chinese herbal skincare products series, we
will continue to enhance its brand image and brand recognition
through investing in advertising and marketing campaign and
setting up more counters in department stores, hypermarket
and dedicated shops. Like Bawang branded products, we
have established a team of elite marketing professionals
for development and operations of the skincare products
business. Our target is to set up around another 2,000
counters through our distributors in cosmetics specialty shops
on a nationwide basis in the PRC, with an aim to making a total
of 5,000 counters by the end of 2012. We reinforce our belief
that Herborn would become a leading brand in the Chinese
herbal skincare market as well as one of our key revenue
contributors in the next few years.

For the Smerry natural plant skincare products series, we will
launch four new product series, namely “Rose White series
GABREHRZF)”, “Aloe White series (EEWE Z5)”, “Snow
Saussurea White series (FEREFEH R5)” and “Deep
Clean White series (i [E 2% F%)". We will expand our sales
and distribution network to further increase the revenue. We
reinforce our belief that Smerry would become a leading brand

in natural plant skincare market in the future.
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For Bawang Herbal Tea, we have adopted a prudent approach
for developing the business. We are changing the business
model whereby instead of developing and expanding the sales
network entirely by the Group’s investment, we outsource the
herbal tea operations to selected distributors in designated
areas and channels. The Group remains responsible for
overall brand building strategy, marketing and promotion
campaigns for Bawang Herbal Tea. The Directors believe that
such model would help the Group minimize the risk of over-
investment when the operating performance is not in line with
our expectation. The breakeven point of the profit and loss of
the business will become lower. To enhance the revenue base
from this business segment, the Group is currently exploring
the possibility of launching herbal health drinks in future.

In relation to the launch of new products, the Group will mainly
focus its efforts to strengthen its existing portfolio of brands as
mentioned above. We may expand our existing core products
portfolio. We do not have plans for rolling out brand new major
product lines for the time being.
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The Group will continue with its plan to lease a new production
premises located in Baiyun District, Guangzhou with an
estimated site area of 75,000 square meters. Installations
of the automated production facilities for phase one have
been completed. We are in the final stage of fine-tuning the
production lines. The designs of the plants have been based
on the good manufacturing practices (GMP) guidelines. The
Directors believe that the adoption of internationally recognized
management guidelines will certainly further enhance the
consumers’ confident in the Group’s determination to maintain
an uncompromising quality of our products. Productions may
commence around mid-2012. We estimate that the aggregate
annual production capacity for shampoo products, hair-care
products, and skincare products is approximately 100,000
metric tons upon commencement of production.

The Group will continue with its plan to lease another
production plant in Huadu District, Guangzhou, for its herbal
tea business. The construction work of the site is in progress.
We expect that the installation and fittings of machinery and
equipment at the new plant will commence at around 2013.
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The Group has already set up the Chinese herbal plantation
in Guangdong province since early 2010 and it has started
receiving its yield of Chinese herbs since 2011. The Company
is now replicating its agricultural practices for training and
development of farmers on how to maximize output in herbs
field cultivation. As the results are satisfactory, the Group is
looking for more sites in other places in the PRC for setting up
additional herbal plantations.

In terms of our development plan in overseas markets, the
Group will continue to explore the possibility with potential
distributors for launching our branded products to other
countries. Bawang shampoo and haircare products may be
rolled out in Vietnam and Indonesia later this year. The Group is
open to explore all further business opportunities with potential
overseas distributors.

The Company does not have any outstanding acquisition
opportunity in hand. Currently, the Company will not actively
explore opportunities that may involve potential acquisitions.

The Group’s Project Stepping Stone for enhancing its
organizational efficiency and effectiveness has been in
progress and we will continue to review the progress of the
organizational change project. The Directors believe that with
the help of the high calibre management team, the Group is on
track to transcend into a new horizon.

Looking forward, we will make use of our core competencies
and specialty in traditional Chinese herbs to research, develop,
and design advanced and competitive Chinese herbal HPC
products. We will continue to expand and/or optimize our
distribution network for our different branded products. We will
continue to increase our product lines and to implement multi-
product and multi-brand strategy, aiming to become a global
leader of branded Chinese herbal HPC products operator and
to bring the best returns to our investors.
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Applications of Net IPO Proceeds

The net proceeds from the IPO were approximately RMB1,615
million, after deduction of related expenses. We have utilized
such net proceeds in the manner consistent with that
mentioned in the Company’s prospectus dated 22 June
2009 under the section headed “Futures Plans and Use
of Proceeds”. As such, the net proceeds utilized up to 31
December 2011 was as follows:
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Net IPO proceeds
HBRAMBEFR/RIFREAE

Available Utilised Unutilised
A {8 =5 1)::] *8H
(RMB’000) (RMB’000) (RMB’000)

(AR®TT) (ARETIT) (AR¥TIT)

Marketing and promotion B R E 484,583 484,583 —
Research and development A ARER

BT E m 323,055 77,827 245,228
Expansion of distribution network R & nog B A K&

GIND S AR A 290,750 290,750 —
Capital expenditure e 193,833 164,283 29,550
Future strategic acquisition RO BE M 161,528 — 161,528
Working capital and other general EBEBES RHEM

corporate purpose —RFERSE 161,528 161,528 —

Total A&t 1,615,277 1,178,971 436,306
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Liquidity, Financial Resources and Capital
Structure

The Group adopts conservative financial management policies
and maintains a good and solid financial position. A summary
of liquidity and financial resources is set out below:

REEE  MBERREXR

ey

REBERBRTOEM KRBT ERFR T
REMM BRI - RBE S M ER

BEINHWT -

31 December

31 December

2011 2010
BE_ZT—F BE_ZT-ZF
+=-A=+—H +=-A=+—H
RMB in million RMB in million
B AL
ARBEET ARBEET
Cash and cash equivalent BekBeEEYWEE 602.7 1,186.5
Total bank and other borrowings' RIT M H A B SRR — 209.8
Total assets E@BEE 1,246.1 2,033.4
The gearing ratio? EEBER? — 10.3%
Note: et
1. The borrowings were wholly denominated in US Dollars. 1. RITRE M E KRB EIAETTRE ©
2. Calculate as interest-bearing borrowings divided by total assets. 2. EEABERRAEBERNEELBETE -

Material Acquisition and Disposal

The Group did not engage in any material acquisitions or
disposal of any of its subsidiaries or associated companies
during the year under review.

Exposure to Fluctuations in Exchange Rates
and Related Hedge

The operations of the Group are mainly carried out in the PRC,
with most transactions settled in Renminbi. The reporting
currency of the Group is Renminbi. During the year under
review, the Group has exported its goods to Hong Kong and
certain overseas countries. The transactions were settled
in either Hong Kong Dollars or United States Dollars. The
Group’s cash and bank deposits are mostly denominated
in Renminbi. The Company will pay dividends in Hong Kong

ERNEBEBRAHE

REBFE AEETESAWREL L
SEHKBRBERRNED -

PE =R B A b & A B

AEEETEETEBEALEER - A
MRBUAREHEE  AEENREE
ERARE ROBEFE AEEHO
EmBEEREUREMEIIMIE X5
NBERXTHEE - AEBRHENAS
RRITEFARNARESE - HWEAR
AEIRRER » FE TR ABTTIRS
BEAN  REBAXRTHBE LN ETE
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Dollars if dividends are declared. In addition, the Group paid
certain advertising fees in United States Dollars or Hong
Kong Dollars. The Directors are of the view that the Group
conducts its business transactions principally in Renminbi and
thus the exchange risk at the Group’s operational level is not
significant. As at 31 December 2011, the Group had not issued
any material financial instruments or entered into any material
contracts for foreign currency hedging purposes. However,
the Directors will continue to monitor the foreign exchange
exposure and is prepared to take prudent measures such as
hedging when required.

Contingent Liabilities

The Group had no material contingent liabilities as at 31
December 2011.

Capital Commitment

As at 31 December 2011, the capital commitment of the Group
was amounted to RMB57.0 million.

Human Resources

As of 31 December 2011, the Group employed approximately
9,784 employees (2010: 4,663), which consists of full-time
employees and contract personnel in the PRC and Hong Kong.
The total personnel expenses, comprising wages, salaries and
benefits, and equity-settled share-based payments, amounted
to RMB269.6 million and RMB143.7 million for 2011 and 2010,
respectively.

During the year under review, the Group engaged a substantial
number of salespersons through contract personnel agency
to help with our marketing and promotional activities. We then
reduced the engagement of outsourcing salespersons through
marketing and promotional agency which led to a significant
increase in the total number of employees as at 31 December
2011 by 5,121 from 4,663 to 9,784.

FE EERR/AEENENEBTIE
RAARBEE - FiboMER g8 AR &E
ENREERERELFAER -BHE-T
——H+-A=1+—B AKELELE
BETEMEASRIARITZEMERKR
BREINES T AE - A - EEH#
BERINERRE  WEBESTZRHRM
FEENER - Gl H -

HAREE

BE-_T——F+t-A=1+—H8 &%
EYBEAKREIME -

BN EE

(2 ——4F+-A=+—8 X&E
B EREAEBELAARESTOBE T ©

ANEIR

BHE-_ZT—F+ZHA=1+—8 &%
EAhEMEEEBLNT84HE T (=
T—ZF :4663%)  BEEBEE2BE
BEURAGHNEE BASTHAIBRETL
B HeNMBHARNEREE ZBH
SHHE RZE——FR_T—TF

b — e —

DR E269.6 8 & LM143.7TEE T ©

REBEER  AEEBBYSBKIRKERDT
ERAXEAHNRIBAE UEBEMH
EHERERETE - R - FKMZEER D
TRABEHHEEREARERINERE
MAE BEREHEE-_ZT——F+_A4
=T —BWREE A KIEIELING121
% - H4,663FBIEINEQ,784% o

Annual Report 2011 —ZE——FF3§{ 29



Management Discussion and Analysis
EEREEARE W

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the total
headcount of our employees and outsourcing personnel for the
two years ended 2010 and 2011:

31 December

TR -_F——R_FT-THEMRK
FERMNEEERINEABNHA

31 December

2011 2010

BE_ZT——%F BE_ZT—ZF

+=B=+—8H +=—B=+—H

Full-time employees 2HES 792 904
Contract personnel BHEER

— Salespersons — e B8 5,967 -

— Others — Hftb 3,025 3,759

Total employees HEBAH 9,784 4,663
Outsourcing personnel SNELAB

— Salespersons — e B 1,257 9,229

Total headcount BAH 11,041 13,892

The employees’ remuneration, promotion and salary review are
based on job responsibilities, work performances, professional
experiences and the prevailing industry practices.

Our employees in the PRC and Hong Kong joined social
insurance contribution plans and mandatory provident fund
scheme respectively. Other benefits include performance-
based incentive bonus scheme and share options granted or to
be granted under the share option schemes.

To enable our employees to develop their full potential, we
are committed to staff training and development. In 2011,
the Group organized 13 in-house training classes with
approximately 322 participants in aggregate.

The Directors believe that the Group’s human resources
policies play a crucial part in the future development of
the Group. Promising career prospects, favourable staff
remuneration and benefits as well as pleasant working
environment are essential factors for maintenance of a stable
workforce for the Group.

AEENEIHM BEALIERKER
BEANIEEE ITHERR FEELR
RITEBREREED -

AEERPELBEENEIDRIZ2 M
SREABMBFERNERESE -
HiBHNERRIERRETNRESE
AtEMBREFSTEREIBER
th EY R R -

BTERBRMEINED  BHARHIR
BETHIJIMBER -—T——F  XEE
HMETIBRAEEI - 28EABHH
322 NIk e

EEMAGAKREZANERBRE S
ERAXRBEREZEEZAE - RIFWE
X R - BEME TN A NKEE
MTHERE AINEASEEGR —XR
EETEEE -
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Directors

The Board consists of eight Directors, including four executive
Directors, one non-executive Director and three independent
non-executive Directors. The following table sets forth certain

=
EEEH\GEFAK  BENRRT

%% *%3!5%%??%%&_%5“*#%%
TEFE - TRFJIBEAREFNETE

information in respect of our Directors:

?rJr

Name Age Position/Title

£ F§e L Iog ]

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan 50 Chairman and Executive Director

PR B 58 A ITEERNTES

Ms. WAN Yuhua 46 Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”) and Executive Director
BEELL ERRATERPITES

Mr. SHEN Xiaodi 46 Vice-CEO and Executive Director
NS ERBMITERNATES

Mr. WONG Sin Yung 57 Chief Financial Officer and Executive Director
HmEREE ERVBERNITES

Ms. GUO Jing 45 Non-executive Director

e L EHMITES

Mr. NGAI Wai Fung 50 Independent non-executive Director

R IE K- BYFERITES

Mr. LI Bida 71 Independent non-executive Director
FERE BIFFRTES

Mr. CHEN Kaizhi 71 Independent non-executive Director

PR A SE A BYERITES

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (BREBUR), aged 50, is the co-founder of
our Group, our chairman and has been our executive Director
since 12 November 2007. Mr. CHEN is responsible for the

BRBUR 4 - 505 © B A £ B R Al
A BPBWERE TE-_ETLET—
A+-—ALERMOHTES - Bk

overall strategic planning and management of our Group. BEASEERBRBEREIRER - R

Mr. CHEN has extensive experience in the Chinese herbal
HPC product industry, having been engaged in the consumer
chemical product business for over 18 years. Mr. CHEN and
Ms. WAN entered the HPC product business by establishing
Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co.,
entity of the Company) in 1994, to enter the HPC product
business in the PRC. Mr. CHEN was engaged in the trading of
pesticides in the PRC before the establishment of Guangzhou
In November of 2010, Mr. CHEN
Qiyuan was recognised as the “Representative Successor of
Chinese Herbal Tea Culture” by the Guangdong Provincial
Bureau of Culture. Mr. CHEN is the spouse of Ms. WAN.

Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd..

Ltd. (the predecessor

ENRERLCERTEFENEBLBR
18F AR EEIBEAERERITE
HEEELR EEIPBHMISGHERA
TAZEERERER REERELXLIR
—NAMFEXRTEMNB T EBBERA
A (ARARIMAT S ERE) EFERAEA
HEIEERES BINEMNBILMHRE
BRARIZA  RREAZREPRREE
SHEE -ZE—FTF+—H  BRERE
E?ﬁi@i%xﬁ?}t@?ﬁ&gﬁ'ﬂTE?%%‘F%
BEX(LEEBEBERRESEEAA] cBREE
BBRZLTHEMS -
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Ms. WAN Yuhua (B £ %), aged 46, is the co-founder of our
Group, our CEO and has been our executive Director since
12 November 2007. Ms. WAN is responsible for the overall
strategic planning, marketing planning, sales and distribution
and research and development of our Group. Ms. WAN has
extensive experience in the Chinese herbal HPC product
industry. She has over 17 years experience in the consumer
chemical product industry in the PRC. She also has extensive
experience in the sales and corporate management. Prior to
the establishment of Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co.,
Ltd. (the predecessor entity of the company), Ms. WAN
worked in South China Botanical Garden, Chinese Academy
of Sciences (FEIEIE L ZEmREYIFHFTFT) as an engineer. Ms.
WAN has been serving as the deputy head of the Chamber
of Beauty Culture & Cosmetics of All-China Federation of
Industry & Commerce (FEZ2BTHEBMAESEDLARE
&) since 2008. She was also elected Charismatic Leader
in Chinese Herbal Consumer Chemical Industry in China (#
B e AT ¥ NEEAY) by The Election Committee of
the National Industry Leading Brand (2 B77 348 5t 1> % S & 1
EAZE) in 2008. Ms. WAN obtained Guangzhou Overseas
Chinese Entrepreneurship Award (/M #7115 BB A% 5 Bt
#%) in 2008 from Guangzhou Personnel Bureau (BM A%
/@), a government body, and Guangzhou Overseas Chinese
Federation (& /N &5 B EH S ). Ms. WAN was elected Ten
Excellent Entrepreneurs for Chinese Brand Building (FF B & f&#
BERTAEBFLER) by China Enterprise Culture Improvement
Association in 2006. She obtained a bachelor’s degree in plant
genetics from South China Agricultural University GER B %K
£) in 1998. Ms. WAN is the spouse of Mr. CHEN.

BEgELL 465 RASEXREM
A BANEFEHTE XB-_FTFTL
FH—A+T-_BHERMORITES -
EZLTtREASENERRBRE 2
HARE  HEMDH M RERE -8
HTETBEZAEAAERERITER
CELR WETBERALCERTES
HEABBI7TFER REBEEREE
EERLELR - BINEMNBEHAR
ERABR(ARFRNASER) A BX
THETBEREREREYH AT
EEIRM B -_ZTNF BXIHE
REZETHEBES XD KmERD
CREER BN -_FT/N\FER2ET
XRACXnEHEEHEHZRE[IPESP
BRCITEBNEEAY] - BRERZ
ZENFRBEMAZR(RBFHE)
LEMNTMEREEMaREN BN
BEBEBIXERME] - WR-_FTTAEFE
EREOCEtRESERITERER
RTRKEFLER] - BRER—NAAN
FEEHRFAZBOSEMESSZEL
B - BRETR/REENEKS -
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Mr. SHEN Xiaodi (Jt/N), aged 46, is our vice-CEO
and executive Director. Mr. SHEN joined our Group in
January 2008 and was appointed as our executive Director
on 10 December 2008. Mr. SHEN is responsible for the
implementation of our Group’s strategic plans and the daily
operations and management of our Group. Prior to joining our
Group, Mr. SHEN held a number of senior management roles,
such as deputy chief engineer in high technology enterprises
in the PRC and deputy general manager in asset management
companies. He has more than 10 years experience in
technology management, introduction of foreign capital and
management of enterprises, which could benefit the Group
by (i) efficiently and effectively managing the operation of
the Group; (i) implementing the new ERP systems; and
(iii) facilitating the Group’s future fund-raising activities and
strategic investments. Mr. SHEN obtained a bachelor’s degree
in engineering in 1986 and a master’s degree in engineering
in 1989, both from Xi’an Jiaotong University (FZ 323 A
B). He also obtained a doctorate degree in engineering and
a post-doctor’'s research certificate in mathematics from
Chinese Academy of Sciences (BRI 22%) in 1994 and 1995,
respectively. He was conferred a professional qualification as
a deputy researcher by Institute of Applied Mathematics of
Chinese Academy of Sciences (7 EIRIE25 & A EEITHT)
in 1995. Mr. SHEN is the spouse of Ms. GUO Jing, our non-
executive Director.

MAMERE 4658 BEMNEFEEH
TERATES ALAEER_FTZTNF
—AMAXREE IR _FTFENF+=
ATEEZERRMONITES - L
EERERTASENRE S LA
SEMNAEEZEREE -RMAXEH
ZH L EEREIZEASAEEER
- PlmEPESMREEETIAT
BALEEEER AR BERIERLE -
BERMKEE - IESIAREREET

MEABBIOFENER  LBIBIHA K
EEAEENKLS  (\BERFERPES

LB AESERREEETNEH
LEBREMSAEERm - LALER
—HN\ARERBEARRXBRETES
B YR —NANANFREALZRBA
BTBHELTEN - FAD AR — AN
FR—NANEFEFRFSHEMNBHRTE
BIEUMBEERBLIRESE -1
—HNEF  RERRPEMZRER
BEMAMBIMETENERXER - LKk
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Annual Report 2011 — & ——FF35 33



Directors and Senior Management

ESREEBEHEAR

Mr. WONG Sin Yung (E&#%), aged 57, is our chief financial
officer and executive Director. Mr. WONG joined our Group in
April 2008 and was appointed as our executive Director on 10
December 2008. He is responsible for the finance management
and control, accounting, auditing, company secretarial and
investor relations of our Group. Prior to joining our Group,
Mr. WONG was an executive director of China Ting Group
Holdings Limited (¥ & & EiEAR B R A7) (03398), from 2005
to 2008, the shares of which are listed on The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Mr. WONG was
the chief accountant and finance manager of Mark Wong &
Associates (Industrial Consultants) Limited from 1988 to 1992
and from 1994 to 2003 respectively. He also worked for a
certified public accountant firm from 1992 to 1994. Mr. WONG
has over 28 years experience in corporate finance, accounting,
auditing, corporation administration, and project consulting.
He is an associate member of Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. WONG obtained a master’s degree
in human resource management from Macquarie University in
1996 and a master’s degree in business administration from
the University of Hong Kong in 1999.

EERELE STR - RERMOEENB
ERVTEF -BXLENR_ZTZTN\FH
AMAXREER WRZZTZENF+=
ATREZERBRMNRITESE - &
BEAEENVBEREREE S5t
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Ms. GUO Jing (38&), aged 45, was appointed as our non-
executive Director on 10 December 2008. Prior to joining
our Group, Ms. GUO was a senior accountant in a chartered
accountants firm in Canada since 2006. From 2002 to 2005,
she was a finance manager of FutureWay Enterprise Services
Inc., a company providing business consulting, accounting and
taxation services. From 1992 to 2001 Ms. GUO held various
senior management positions including finance manager,
deputy chief accountant, and chief accountant in Beijing Dali
Integrated Business Company (It RM A NERAEER ).
She has more than 15 years experience in strategic planning,
corporate finance, internal financial control and management,
professional accounting, and taxation services, which could
benefit the Group by offering professional advice to the
Board on the overall financial control and management of the
Group. Ms. GUO obtained a bachelor’s degree in biomedical
engineering and instrumentation from Xi’an Jiaotong University
(AL AE) in 1987 and a master's degree in internal
combustion engineering from Beijing Institute of Technology
At RIETKRE) in 1992. She was awarded a vocational
qualification as an accountant by the PRC Ministry of Finance
(FFEIBFEER) in 1997. She is a member of Certified General
Accountants Association of Canada. Ms. GUO is the spouse of
Mr. SHEN Xiaodi, our executive Director.

BBEZE 45 RZZTEZENF+A
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Dr. NGAI Wai Fung (Bif21&), aged 50, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008.
He is currently the Managing Director of MNCOR Consulting
Limited, a speciality corporate and compliance services
provider to Companies in pre-IPO and post-IPO. Dr. Ngai is
also Chief Executive Officer of SW Corporate Services Group
Limited, of which MNCOR Consulting is a major shareholder.
Prior to that, he was the director and head of listing services of
KCS Hong Kong Limited an independent integrated corporate
services provider. He is and has been a vice president of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since 2002. He is
a member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants
in the United Kingdom, a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, a fellow of the Institute of
Chartered Secretaries and Administrators and a fellow of the
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries. He obtained a
doctor’s degree in Finance from Shanghai University of Finance
and Economics in 2011, a master’s degree in corporate finance
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2002 and a master’s
degree in business administration from Andrews University
of Michigan in 1992. Mr. NGAI has over 20 years of senior
management experience, most of which is in the areas of
finance, accounting, internal control and regulatory compliance
for issuers including major red chip companies. Mr. NGAI was
an independent non-executive director and a member of the
audit committee of China Life Insurance Company Limited (4
B ASRBRMDBERAT) (02628) from 2006 to 2009 and
Franshion Properties (China) Limited (5 ®iE (FE) GEA
A] (0817) from 2007 to 2011), and is currently an independent
non-executive director and a member of the audit committee
of China Railway Construction Corporation Limited (FF B & 2%
B BBRAA]) (01186), China Coal Energy Company Limited (1
B iR A RAX D AR A A)) (01898), SITC International Holdings
Company Limited (BEEIFIZRERAH) (01308) and an
independent non-executive director and the chairman of the
audit committee of Bosideng International Holdings Limited
(R R B BEEIER AR AR]) (03998), Powerlong Real Estate
Holdings Limited (& #EHEER AR A F]) (01238), Sany Heavy
Equipment International Holdings Limited (= — &3 BIFRIE A
R /A R]) (0631), Biostime International Holdings Limited (& 47T
WIERE A R /A B)) (01112) and LDK Solar Co. Ltd (LDK) shares
of which are listed on the Stock Exchange and/or the Shanghai
Stock Exchange and/or the New York Stock Exchange.
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Mr. LI Bida (=4 3), aged 71, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 10 December 2008.
Prior to joining our Group, Mr. LI was the head of Department
of Lawyers, the Ministry of Justice of the PRC (4 & @)% &8
20 7)), currently known as Department of Directing Lawyers
and Notarization, Ministry of Justice (713% %5872 R A 5F L {E3E
% 7)), from 1988 to 1992. He was also an arbitrator in China
International Economics and Trade Arbitration Commission
(FEBEIREEEZE 5HMEEES) from 1989 to 1990. From
1992 to 1995, he served as standing deputy head of State
Trademark Bureau (BZREIZ/E). From 1992 to 2001, he
held various positions in State Administration of Industry and
Commerce (Bl X L7817 E 12 #8 /) including the head of the
Fair Trading Bureau (2 F X % @) and the head of Registration
Bureau (1t % 7 fft @). He was a consultant with a number of
companies, including Galanz Group (#& B £ 5 &) from 2001
to 2003, Perfect (China) Co., Ltd. (= (FE)BARBER A
7)) and Nanfong Lee Kum Kee Co., Ltd. (@5 2B R A
&) from 2001 to 2005, Ricoh China Co., Ltd. (2 ()%
& B R A 7)) from 2005 to 2006, and NU Skin (China) Co., Ltd.
@ () HBREE@BAMRLQF) from 2006 to 2007. He
is currently a member of the board of directors of Intellectual
Property Institute of Peking University (1b 5 A 22 &0 3% & #E 2
F%), professor of Renmin University of China Law School (FF
AR KXESL2EPR) and Capital University of Economics and
Business (E #8475 Z 5 KE). Mr. LI obtained a bachelor’s
degree in law from Hubei University (# 1t X £) in 1965.
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Mr. CHEN Kaizhi (FRBE#:), aged 71, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 8 April 2009.
Prior to joining us, he held various governmental positions in
Guangdong province from 1964 to 1998. He was promoted
to executive vice mayor of Guangzhou in 1992 and deputy
secretary of the Leading Party Group of Guangzhou Municipal
Government (BIMNTEB/NEARIZS) in 1993. From 1998
to 2005, he was the chairman and secretary of the Leading
Party Group of Guangzhou Political Consultative Conference
(BN T M EMHER). Since his retirement from his
governmental position in 2005, he held the position of vice
president of China Foundation for Poverty Alleviation (FF Bk
X &®), a charitable organization in the PRC. He obtained
a bachelor’s degree in political education from South China
Normal College (ZEFIRN&IZ2PT), which is the predecessor of
South China Normal University (27 Al 5K 22), in 1964.
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Code on corporate governance practices

The Company is committed to enhancing the corporate
governance of the Group, and the Board reviews and updates
all such necessary measures in order to promote good
corporate governance.

The Company has adopted and complied with the provisions
set out in the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) during
the year (the “Code”).

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (“Model Code”) as
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as the standards
for the directors’ dealings in the securities of the Company.
Having made specific enquiry with all Directors, the Company
confirms that the Directors have complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Board of directors

The Board comprises eight members, including Chairman,
Chief Executive Officer (“CEQ”), Vice-CEO, Chief Financial
Officer, one Non-executive Director and three Independent
Non-executive Directors. Biographical details of the Directors
are set out in the section headed Directors and Senior
Management Profiles on pages 31 to 38 of this annual report.

The Board is responsible for approving and monitoring the
Group’s strategies and policies, approving annual budgets
and business plans, evaluating the performance of the Group
and supervising the work of management. The management
is responsible for the daily operations of the Group under the
leadership of the CEO.
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For a Director to be considered independent, the Board must
determine that the Director does not have any direct or indirect
material relationship with the Group. The Board follows the
requirements set out in the Listing Rules to determine the
independence of Directors.

The roles of the Chairman and the CEO are separated in
order to reinforce their independence and accountability.
The CEO, Ms. WAN is the spouse of Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and
non-executive Director Ms. GUO is the spouse of Vice-CEO,
Mr. SHEN. Save as disclosed above, the Directors are not
otherwise related to each other.

Five board meetings were held in 2011. Each of Mr. CHEN,
Ms. WAN, Mr. SHEN, Mr. WONG, Ms. GUO, Mr. NGAI, Mr. LI
Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi has attended all five meetings.

The remuneration committee comprises our executive Director,
Ms. WAN Yuhua, and our two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Mr. LI Bida is the
chairperson of the remuneration committee. The primary duties
of the remuneration committee are to make recommendation
to the Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure
relating to all Directors and senior management of our Group,
review performance based remuneration and ensures none of
our Directors determine their own remuneration.

Two remuneration committee meetings were held in 2011.
During the meetings, the committee members reviewed the
Group’s remuneration policy and made recommendations
to the Board. All committee members attended these two
meetings.
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The nomination committee comprises our executive Director,
Mr. CHEN Qiyuan, and our two independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. Mr. CHEN is the
chairperson of the nomination committee. The primary duties
of the nomination committee are to review the structure, size
and composition of the Board and to make recommendations
to the Board regarding candidates to fill vacancies on the
Board and the re-election of Directors.

Two nomination committee meetings were held in 2011. During
the meetings, the committee members review the senior
management structure of the Group. All committee members
attended these two meetings.

The audit committee comprises three Independent non-
executive Directors and one of whom possesses the
appropriate business and financial experience and skills to
understand the accounts of the Group. The audit committee is
chaired by Mr. NGAI Wai Fung and other members are Mr. LI
Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi. The audit committee was formed
in compliance with Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules and to review
and supervise the financial reporting process and internal
controls of the Company.

The written terms of reference which describes the authority
and duties of the audit committee were prepared and adopted
with reference to the Code. The audit committee is required,
amongst other things, to oversee the relationship with the
external auditors, to review the Group’s interim and annual
results, to review the scope, extent and effectiveness of
internal controls of the Group, to review accounting policies
and practices adopted by the Group, to engage independent
legal or other advisers as it determines necessary and to
perform investigations.
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During the vyear, the audit committee has performed the
following:

—  Met with the external auditor to discuss the general scope
and findings of their annual audit and interim review work;

— Reviewed and recommended to the Board for approval of

the external auditor’s remuneration;
— Made recommendations to the Board on the
reappointment of the external auditor;

— Reviewed the external auditor’s independence, objectivity
and the effectiveness of the auditing process;

— Reviewed the annual and interim reports and annual and
interim results announcements of the Company;

— Discussed auditing, internal control, risk management
and financial reporting matters of the Company before
recommending them to the Board for approval; and

— Reviewed the connected transactions entered into by the
Group

The audit committee has reviewed the annual report with the
management and the external auditors and recommended its
adoption by the Board.

All issues raised by the external auditor and the audit
committee have been addressed by the senior management of
the Company. The work and findings of the audit committee
have been reported to the Board. During the year, no issues
were brought to the attention of the senior management of the
Company and the Board of sufficient significance for disclosure
in the annual report.

Two audit committee meetings were held in 2011. Each of
Mr. NGAI Wai Fung, Mr. LI Bida and Mr. CHEN Kaizhi have
attended all two meetings.
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The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing
the financial statements of the Company, and for ensuring
that the financial statements are prepared in accordance with
applicable statutory requirements and accounting standards.

A statement from the auditor of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2011, is set out on
pages 61 to 62 of the annual report.

There are no material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern.

The Board and the management of the Group maintain a
sound and effective system of internal control of the Group so
as to ensure the effectiveness and efficiency of operations of
the Group in achieving the established corporate objectives,
safeguarding assets of the Group, rendering reliable financial
reporting and complying with the applicable laws and
regulations. During the year under review, the Board has
conducted a review of the effectiveness of the internal control
system of the Company.

The Board is also responsible for making appropriate
assertions on the adequacy of internal control and procedures.
Through the audit committee of the Group, the Board review
the effectiveness of these systems on a regular basis.
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Investor relations and communication with
shareholders

The Company establishes different communication channels
with Shareholders and investors: (i) dispatching printed copies
of corporate communication documents to Shareholders; (ii)
the annual general meeting provides a forum for Shareholders
to raise comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii)
latest and key information of the Group are available on the
website of the Company; (iv) regular press conferences and
briefing meetings with investors, Shareholders and analysts are
set up from time to time on updated information of the Group,
and; (v) the Company’s registrars serve the Shareholders
respecting all share registration matters. The Board welcomes
views of shareholders and encourages them to attend general
meetings to raise any concerns they might have with the Board
or the management directly. The Chairman of the Board as well
as the Chairmen and/or other members of the Audit Committee
and Remuneration Committee will normally attend the annual
general meetings and other shareholders’ meetings of the
Company to answer questions raised.

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s independent
external auditor, KPMG, for the year ended 31 December 2011
in relation to audit service are RMB1.38 million.
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The Directors submit the Report of Directors together with the
audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011.

Principal activities

The principal activities of the Group are the designing,
manufacturing, trading and distribution of Chinese herbal
products, including shampoo products, hair-care products,
skin-care products, herbal tea products and household
cleaning products. The principal activities and other particulars
of the subsidiaries are set out on pages 114 to 115 of this
annual report.

Dividends

The Board does not recommend the payment of any final
dividends in respect of the year ended 31 December 2011.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2011
are set out in the consolidated profit and loss account on page
63 of this annual report.

Reserves

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Company and
the Group during the financial year 2011 are set forth in note
23(d) to the financial statements of this annual report.

Distributable reserves

As at 31 December 2011, the Company’s reserves available for
distributions amounted to RMB1,318.6 million.

Major customers and suppliers

During the financial year ended 31 December 2011, sales
made to the Group’s top five customers and the largest
customer accounted for approximately 9.8% and 2.5%
respectively of the total sales of the Group. The Group
purchased approximately 26.5% and 10.5% respectively of
its goods and services from its five largest suppliers and the
largest suppliers.
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At no time during the year have the Directors, their associates
or any shareholder of the Company (which to the knowledge
of the Directors owns more than 5% of the Company’s
share capital) had any interest in these major customers and
suppliers.

Financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the latest five financial years is set out on page 167
of this annual report.

Property, plant and equipment

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 12 to the financial statements.

Share capital and share options

Details of the movements in the share capital of and the share
options granted by the Company are set forth in note 23(c) and
note 21(b) to the financial statements.

Pre-emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Articles of Association (the “Articles”) or the laws of
Cayman lIslands which oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to the existing shareholders.

Purchase, sale or redemption of the
company’s listed securities

During the vyear, neither the Company nor any of its
subsidiaries has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Directors as at the
latest practicable date prior to issue of this annual report, the
Company has maintained the prescribed public float during
the year ended 31 December 2011 and up to the date of this
annual report as required under the Listing Rules.

Charitable donations

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2011 amounted to RMB1.0 million.

Management Contracts

No contract concerning the management and administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company was entered into or existed during the year.

Directors

The Directors during the financial year were:

Executive Directors

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan (Chairman)
Ms. WAN Yuhua

Mr. SHEN Xiaodi

Mr. WONG Sin Yung

Non-Executive Director

Ms. GUO Jing

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. NGAI Wai Fung
Mr. LI Bida
Mr. CHEN Kaizhi

Details of the Directors’ biographies have been set out on
pages 31 to 38 of the annual report.
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In accordance with 84(1) of the Articles, Mr. SHEN Xiaodi, Mr.
WONG Sin Yung and Mr. LI Bida will retire and being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming Annual
General Meeting.

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a director’s
service agreement with the Company for an initial term of
three year commencing from the Listing Date and will continue
thereafter until terminated by no less than six months’ notice
in writing served by either party on the other, which shall not
expire until after the fixed term.

Each of our non-executive Director and independent non-
executive Directors has entered into a letter of appointment
with our Company. Each letter of appointment is for an initial
term of three years commencing from the Listing Date.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the
Company has entered into any service contract with the
Company which cannot be terminated by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

Directors’ Emoluments

The directors’ emoluments are determined by the Board, in
consultation with the Remuneration Committee, with reference
to their duties, responsibilities and performance and the results
of the Group.

Confirmation of independence

The Company has received from each of the independent non-
executive Directors an annual confirmation of independence
pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and still considers all
the independent non-executive Directors to be independent.
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Directors’ and chief executive’s interests
and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, the Directors and chief executive of
the Company had the following interests and short positions in
the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Cap. 571
of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”), which were required
(@) to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they had taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) to be and
were entered into the register that was required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO; or (c) as
otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”):
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Number of
shares/ Approximate
underlying percentage of
Long/Short position shares held issued
Name of director in Ordinary Shares  Nature of interest B RER share capital
EERE LERPZIF KB EanH K& E FEAESL
CHEN Qiyuan Long Corporate (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 65.33%
bR BUR ey AEN(HFED)
WAN Yuhua Long Corporate (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 65.33%
B EE 5= Al (HEE2)
SHEN Xiaodi Long Personal 840,000 0.03%
NE A 18 A
WONG Sin Yung Long Personal 1,155,000 0.04%
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Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station
Ltd. by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by CHEN Qiyuan and
WAN Yuhua.

2. WAN Yuhua is deemed to be interested in the shares held by Fortune Station
Ltd. by virtue of Fortune Station Ltd. being controlled by WAN Yuhua and
CHEN Qiyuan.

Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011,
so far as known to any Directors or chief executive of the
Company, neither the Directors nor the chief executive of the
Company, had any interests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of SFO)
which were required (a) to be notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV
of the SFO (including interests and short positions which they
had taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO); or (b) to be and were entered into in the register that was
required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352
of the SFO; or (c) as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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Interests and short positions of substantial
shareholders of the Company

As at 31 December 2011, so far as known to any Director
or chief executive of the Company, shareholders (other than
a Director or chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of
the Company as recorded in the register that was required to
be kept pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO were as follows:

HE-Z——F+=A=+—0 KT
AL FARAEFABBITHAL)R
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Approximate

percentage of

Number of issued

Name of shareholder Nature of interest shares held share capital

BREE EaEHH"E :3vg g BFRESL

Fortune Station Ltd. Corporate 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.33%

Fortune Station Ltd. ~A]

CHEN Qiyuan Corporate (Note 1) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.33%
BER B IR ~al (M)

WAN Yuhua Corporate (Note 2) 1,900,840,000 (L) 65.33%
BEE ~aE (fFE2)

(L) — Long Position, (S) — Short Position

Notes:

1. CHEN Qiyuan is the beneficial owner of 51.0% of the issued share capital
of Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Fortune Station Ltd. CHEN Qiyuan, the spouse of WAN Yuhua, is deemed to
be interested in WAN Yuhua'’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

2. WAN Yuhua is the beneficial owner of 49.0% of the issued share capital of
Fortune Station Ltd. and is deemed to be interested in the shares held by
Fortune Station Ltd. WAN Yuhua, the spouse of CHEN Qiyuan, is deemed to
be interested in CHEN Qiyuan’s interests in Fortune Station Ltd.

L— & S— %A
i 2%

1. BREUR & Fortune Station Ltd. B Z 17K
51.0%E@=#A A - Wi R AR Fortune Station
Ltd. HBEHRBRMDFTEEEZR - BEENRBR
RUR 4% B 1A B EZE £ Fortune Station Ltd. R4
mP AR -

2. B X EA Fortune Station Ltd. BEITHRAH
49.0%E =B A - W H AR B Fortune Station
Ltd. HBEHNBRMPEEEZR - RERNEBE
FEWR BN RRBURE Fortune Station Ltd. Hy#E
mREAER -
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Other than as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2011, the
Company has not notified by any person (other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company) who had interests or short
positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept pursuant to Section
336 of the SFO.

Share option scheme and Pre-IPO share
option scheme

The Company has adopted two share option schemes, a
share option scheme dated on 20 May 2009 (the “Share
Option Scheme”) and the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme dated
on 10 December 2008, the purpose of which is to give the
Directors, senior management and employees an opportunity
to have a personal stake in the Company and help motivate its
employees to optimise their performance and efficiency, and
also to retain employees whose contributions are important to
the long-term growth and profitability of the Group.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 20 May 2009
and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in
force for 10 years from the date.

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon
the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other
schemes of the Company, must not, in aggregate, exceed
30.0% (or such other percentage as may be allowed under
the Listing Rules) of the total number of Shares in issue from
time to time. The maximum number of Shares issuable to
each eligible participant in the Share Option Scheme within
any 12-month period is limited to 1.0% of the Shares of the
Company in issue at any time. Any further grant of share
options in excess of this limit is subject to shareholders’
approval in a general meeting.
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Share options granted to a connected person (or its
associates) of the Company, or to any of their associates,
are subject to approval in advance by the independent non-
executive Directors. In addition, any share options granted to
a substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive
Director of the Company, or to any of their associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the shares of the Company in issue at
any time and with an aggregate value (based on the price
of the Company’s shares at the date of grant) in excess of
HK$5.0 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to
shareholders’ approval in advance in a general meeting.

The offer of a grant of share options may be accepted, upon
payment of an option price to be determined by the Board
from time to time. The exercise period of the share options
granted is determinable by the Board, and commences after
a certain vesting period and ends on a date which is not later
than ten years from the date of grant of the share options.

The exercise price of share options is determinable by the
Board, but shall be at least the highest of (i) the closing price of
the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations
sheet on the offer date, which must be a business day; (i)
the average of the closing price of the Shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five business
days immediately preceding the Offer Date; and (iii) the nominal
value of a Share.

As at 31 December 2011, an aggregate of 1,380,000 shares
options were granted to two employees by the Company
under the Share Option Scheme, representing approximately
0.05% of the issued share capital of the Company as at the
latest practicable date. Of which, 920,000 shares options were
forfeited in November 2011. The balance of share options
at 31 December 2011 was 460,000. Further details relating
to the Scheme and share options granted thereunder are
set out in note 21 to the financial statements. The vesting
period of the share options is from the date of grant until the
commencement of the exercise period. The closing prices of
the shares of the Company immediately before the date of
grant on 26 July 2011 was HK$1.31. The weighted average
closing price of the shares of the Company immediately before
the dates on which the options were exercised was HK$1.21.
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The Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme became effective on
10 December 2008. As at 31 December 2011, options to
subscribe for an aggregate of 14,532,000 Shares were
granted, representing approximately 0.5% of the issued share
capital of the Company as at the latest practicable date. No
further options will be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme.

The above options have been conditionally granted to 42
participants by the Company at a consideration of HK$1.0
each. The subscription price of the pre-IPO share options
would be at par value or at HK$1.19.

A total of 4,200,000 pre-IPO share options were granted to
two executive Directors on 8 June 2009, which was partially
exercised up to 31 December 2011. Movement of these share
options during the year ended 31 December 2011 are as
follows:

Number of share options
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Outstanding Outstanding Approximate
as at as at percentage of
1 January 31 December issued share capital
2011 Granted  Exercised 2011 of the Company
Exercise BE during during  Forfeited S (%)
price (HKD) =Z——%  theyear the year during ZE——f HELFERTHRE  Exercise
Name of director  Date of grant {7 fR -B—-8 RER RER  theyear +ZA=+-H HEOERL  Period
EFEn RiEA (#7) METE HFBE THEBE REAXN WF AT (%) frlmmM
SHEN Xiaodi 8 June 2009 Par Value 420,000 - 420,000 - 1,260,000 0.04 4 July 2011 to 8 June 2019
NE ZEThE HE “E2-—%tAMmBE
~ANE “Z-NERANA
Par Value 420,000 - - 4 July 2012 to 8 June 2019
HE —Z--FtAmAE
“Z-NERANA
Par Value 420,000 - - 4 July 2013 to 8 June 2019
HE ZE-ZFtAmAZE
“Z-NERANA
Par Value 420,000 - - 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
HE “Z-mMELAREZE
“Z-nERANA
WONG Sin Yung 8 June 2009 Par Value 315,000 - 315,000 - 945,000 0.03 4 July 2011 to 8 June 2019
EER ZZThE HE &**itﬂlﬁi
~ANE “Z-nERANA
Par Value 315,000 - - 4 July 2012 to 8 June 2019
HfE ZE-ZELARAZ
“Z-nERANA
Par Value 315,000 - - 4 July 2013 to 8 June 2019
HE ZE-ZELARAZ
“Z-nERANA
Par Value 315,000 - - 4 July 2014 to 8 June 2019
HE ZE-PELAMAZE
“Z-NERANA
Total 2,940,000 - 735,000 - 2,205,000 0.07
At
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Apart from the above, options to subscribe for totalling
10,332,000 Shares under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
were granted to 40 employees of the Group on 8 June 2009.
Of which, options to subscribe for totalling 2,221,800 Shares
previously granted to eight employees were forfeited during
the past three years. As at 31 December 2011, there was a
balance of unexpired and unexercised options to subscribe
for 4,985,820 Shares. Except for the options which had been
granted, no further options were granted as at 31 December
2011. Details of the valuation of Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
are set out in Note 21 under the section headed “Notes to
the Financial Statements” to this annual report. The value of
options are subjective and uncertain as such values are subject
to a number of assumptions and limitations of the valuation
model.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the Group had
the following non-exempt connected transactions and had
complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance with
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules:

1. Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement
Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd (“Bawang Guangzhou”)
entered into a production and office premises lease
agreement with Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co.,
Ltd (“Guangzhou Bawang”) dated 22 January 2008,
pursuant to which Bawang Guangzhou agreed to lease
from Guangzhou Bawang a production premises and
an office premises, both located in Baiyun District,
Guangzhou, the PRC (the “Production and Office
Premises Lease Agreement”). The term of the Production
and Office Premises Lease Agreement is three years
commencing from 4 December 2007. The monthly rent
is approximately RMB184,083 and is fixed throughout
the term of the lease. We have also been granted a right
of first refusal to purchase the production premises and
office premises under the Production and Office Premises
Lease Agreement. The Production and Office Premises
Lease Agreement is renewable at the option of Bawang
Guangzhou by giving one month notice prior to the expiry
of the lease. The agreement has been renewed on 4
December 2010 for a term of three years commencing
from 4 December 2010 to 4 December 2013 on the same
terms as the original Production and Office Premises
Lease Agreement.
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For the year ended 31 December 2011, pursuant to the
Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement, the
annual rent paid by Bawang Guangzhou to Guangzhou
Bawang was approximately RMB2.2 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua are directors
of the Company. Guangzhou Bawang is company
beneficially owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms.
WAN Yuhua. The transactions contemplated under
the Production and Office Premises Lease Agreement
therefore constitutes continuing connected transactions
under the Listing Rules.

Packaging Material Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered into a
packaging material supply agreement with Guangzhou
Chenming Paper Products Company Limited (“Chenming
Paper”), pursuant to which Chenming Paper agreed to
supply packaging material to Bawang Guangzhou from
time to time at fixed unit prices for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2009 (the “Packaging
Material Supply Agreement”). Bawang Guangzhou
and Chenming Paper will review the prices offered
by Chenming Paper at least once annually to ensure
that they are at market prices or at prices no less
favourable than those offered to Bawang Guangzhou by
independent third-parties. The supply agreement has
been renewed on 28 December 2011 for a term of three
years commencing from 1 January 2012 and on the
same terms as the original Packaging Material Supply
Agreement.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, pursuant to
the Packaging Material Supply Agreement, the annual
transaction amount for the supply of packaging material
by Chenming Paper to Bawang Guangzhou was
approximately RMB9.8 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a director of the Company.
Chenming Paper is wholly owned by Mr. CHEN Qiwen,
who is Mr. CHEN Qiyuan’s brother. The transactions
contemplated under the Packaging Material Supply
Agreement therefore constitutes continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.
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Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement

On 28 March 2009, Bawang Guangzhou entered into a
toothpaste container supply agreement with Guangzhou
Qiancai Packaging Material Co., Ltd. (“Qiancai Packaging”),
pursuant to which Qiancai Packaging agreed to supply
toothpaste containers to Bawang Guangzhou from
time to time at fixed unit prices for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2009 (the “Toothpaste
Container Supply Agreement”). Bawang Guangzhou and
Qiancai Packaging will review the prices offered by Qiancai
Packaging at least once annually to ensure that they are
at market prices or at prices no less favourable than those
offered to Bawang Guangzhou by independent third-parties.

For the year ended 31 December 2011, the annual
transaction amount for the supply of toothpaste
containers by Qiancai Packaging to Bawang Guangzhou
was approximately RMBO0.8 million.

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan is a director of the Company. A
majority equity interest in Qiancai Packaging is owned
by Ms. WU Xiaotao, who is Mr. CHEN’s sister-in-law.
The transactions contemplated under the Toothpaste
Container  Supply Agreement therefore constitute
continuing connected transactions under the Listing
Rules.

The Toothpaste Container Supply Agreement has been
renewed on 28 December 2011 for a term of three years
commencing from 1 January 2012 and on the same
terms as the previous Toothpaste Container Supply
Agreement. As the Directors expect that the relevant
percentage ratios in respect of the maximum transaction
value on an annual basis relating to the Toothpaste
Container Supply Agreement will be less than 0.1%,
the transactions contemplated under the Toothpaste
Container  Supply Agreement constitute exempt
continuing connected transactions of the Company under
the Listing Rules.
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The independent non-executive Directors have reviewed and
confirmed that the above continuing connected transactions
were entered into in the ordinary and usual course of business
of the Company, on normal commercial terms, fair and
reasonable and in the interests of the Shareholders as a whole,
and the respective annual caps are fair and reasonable and in
the interests of the Shareholders as a whole.

The Company’s auditor was engaged to report on the Group’s
continuing connected transactions in accordance with Hong
Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical
Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note
740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued
his unqualified letter containing his findings and conclusions in
respect of the continuing connected transactions disclosed by
the Group above in accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been
provided by the Company to The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

Bawang Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang entered into a
tenancy agreement on 28 December 2011, pursuant to which
Bawang Guangzhou agreed to lease from Guangzhou Bawang
office premises located at Baiyun District, Guangzhou, the
PRC (the “Office Premises Lease Agreement”). The term of the
Office Premises Lease Agreement is three years commencing
from 1 January 2012 and the monthly rental payable is
RMB182,000.00. The monthly rental is fixed throughout the
term of the tenancy. The maximum annual rental payable by
Bawang Guangzhou to Guangzhou Bawang under the Office
Premises Lease Agreement for each of the three years ending
31 December 2014 will not exceed the annual cap of RMB2.19
million.
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We have a right to terminate the Office Premises Lease
Agreement by giving a three months’ prior notice to
Guangzhou Bawang. Accordingly, we enjoy the flexibility to
relocate to another site or premises at any time should we
consider the office premises no longer suitable for our use
or no longer cost competitive. The Office Premises Lease
Agreement is renewable at the option of Bawang Guangzhou
by giving one month’s notice prior to the expiry of the lease.
We have also been granted a first right of refusal to purchase
the Office Premises. Should Bawang Guangzhou decide to
exercise the first right of refusal in the future, it shall comply
with all the applicable requirements under the Listing Rules.

Mr. Chen Qiyuan and Ms. Wang Yuhua are directors of the
Company. Guangzhou Bawang is company beneficially owned
by Mr. Chen Qiyuan and Ms. Wang Yuhua. The transactions
contemplated under the Production and Office Premises
Lease Agreement therefore constitutes continuing connected
transactions under the Listing Rules.

No Director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company, its holding company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the financial year.

As at 31 December 2011, none of the Directors and their
respective associates (as defined in the Listing Rules) or the
controlling shareholders of the Company (as defined in the
Listing Rules) had any interest in a business, which competes
or may compete with the business of the Group.

The Group participates in several defined contribution
retirement plans which cover the Group’s eligible employees
in the PRC, and a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme for the
employees in Hong Kong. Particulars of these retirement plans
are set out in note 2(k) to the consolidated financial statements
of this annual report.
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In respect of the year ended 31 December 2011, save as
disclosed in the corporate governance report on pages 39
to 44 of the annual report, all the code provisions set out in
the Code of Corporate Governance Practices contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules were met by the Company.

The Company has established the audit committee in
compliance with the Rule 3.21 of the Listing Rules. The
Company has also complied with Rules 3.10(1) and 3.10(2)
of the Listing Rules and appointed three independent non-
executive Directors including one with financial management
expertise. The primary duties of the audit committee (inter
alia) are to review the financial reporting process and internal
control system of the Group. The audit committee also provides
advice and suggestions to the Board. The audit committee
has reviewed the audited annual financial statements of the
Group contained in this annual report with the management of
the Company and the Company’s independent auditors and
recommended its adoption by the Board.

KPMG retired and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditors of the Company is to be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

CHEN Qiyuan
Chairman

Hong Kong, 17 March 2012
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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Independent auditor’s report to the shareholders of
BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (“the
company”) and its subsidiaries (together “the group”) set
out on pages 63 to 166, which comprise the consolidated
and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2011,
and the consolidated income statement, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated cash
flow statement for the year then ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

Directors’ responsibility for the
consolidated financial statements

The directors of the company are responsible for the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that
give a true and fair view in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International
Accounting  Standard Board and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
consolidated financial statements based on our audit. This
report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other
purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or
accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. Those standards require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements are free
from material misstatement.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
BIBMES

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating
the overall presentation of the consolidated financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
company and of the group as at 31 December 2011
and of the group’s profit and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

17 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement
EHERRK

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-_T——F+-_A=+—BLEE
(AARMEITR)

Note 2011 2010
B & —E——fF —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBETF T
Turnover EE X 5 888,909 1,475,355
Cost of sales 85 & Pl A (544,154) (564,017)
Gross profit EF 344,755 911,338
Changes in fair value less costs EMEERREER
to sell of biological assets HEKANEFSHER 1,462 -
Other revenue ot Uy 2= 2,451 1,810
Other net income/(losses) Hig A (E1E)F5E 841 (1,399)
Selling and distribution costs SHE Ko SRR (872,339) (941,811)
Administrative expenses TERBR (102,457) (101,511)
_Loss from operations  &&&®\ (625287) (131,573)
Finance income 81 75 g A 6(a) 10,860 13,043
Finance costs Wi5E A 6(a) (4,110) (15,601)
_Net finance income/(costs) MW (BM)F®E 6750 ... (2,558)
Loss before taxation BRETBBAIEER 6 (618,537) (134,131)
Income tax credit Ffr 15 B #8540 7(a) 59,967 16,160
Loss for the year attributable ARATEEFEETA
to the equity shareholders EEFRER
of the Company (558,570) (117,971)
Loss per share (RMB yuan) BREB(AR%T)
Basic HAK 11(a) (0.19) (0.04)
Diluted s 11(b) (0.19) (0.04)

The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial FET1E166 B AR HHRERH —
statements. Details of dividends payable to equity shareholders HD EBNARAEZFEEARENF
of the Company are set out in Note 23(b). 15 & 72 B 7£23(b)

Annual Report 2011 — & — —FF3% 063



Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

N7/ — N\ 7/
AN\ JA—=RAN & ><
— IR A I
For the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in Renminbi)

HE-_Z——F+-_A=+—HILLFE

(AARESITR)
2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBEF T
Loss for the year attributable AATEEEFEE/A
to the equity shareholders EEFRER
of the Company (558,570) (117,971)
Other comprehensive income FREMEGE WG
for the year
Exchange differences on translation — # & fh BB I 7 2
of the financial statements B MR PTE £/
of the operations outside the PRC ERER (5,178) (18,497)
Total comprehensive income KAEEEEFEEA
for the year attributable E&FERGEKRE
to the equity shareholders Wz
of the Company (563,748) (136,468)
The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial FE71B E166 8 K i 3F & 2N 81 75 3 & &
statements. — & o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
EHEEEESR

At 31 December 2011

(Expressed in Renminbi)

R—F——%+=-H=+—H

(AAREIR)
Note 2011 2010
B3t —E——F —E—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Non-current assets *RBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENMKE 12 184,555 60,136
Prepaid advertising fee A ESEA 3,875 2,437
Biological assets EEE 13 1,297 —
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE BE 22(b) 82,605 27,089
o omaa@ 89,662
Current assets REBEE
Inventories FE 15 112,159 84,216
Biological assets EYEE 13 949 —
Trade and other receivables B 5 & H eI R IE 16 257,972 440,060
Pledged deposits EavE iR EE N 17 - 220,000
Cash and cash equivalents ReMRESEEY 18 602,672 1,186,544
Income tax recoverable JiE Uk BD HR P 15 B¢ 22(a) — 12,892
918752 1,943,712
Current liabilities b =K
Trade and other payables B 5 REMENFIA 19 201,825 228,793
Bank loans and overdrafts RITEREBEX 20 - 209,787
Amounts due to related parties JE A< A B 5 BRI 26(b)(i) 3,730 3,363
Income tax payable FETRDERFT 15 B 22(a) 9,656 —
o o2asent 441,948
Netcurrentassets ~ #BRE¥&E 0 78854 1,501,769
Total assets less HWEERABEE
current liabilities 1,030,873 1,591,431

The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial F1E16EM N ABART HHRERH —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)
EeHEEARARE(E)

At 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Renminbi)
RZE——F+=-A=+—H
(AANE®ZIR)

Note 2011 2010
B 3E —E——F —E-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEF T
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Deferred tax liabilities ~ BERARE 220) 2031 . 2,031
Net assets EEFE 1,028,842 1,589,400
Capital and reserves EARR#E
Share capital & A 23(c) 256,511 256,380
Reserves & 23(d) 772,331 1,333,020
Total equity ERAE 1,028,842 1,589,400

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of ARNRESEeRN_E——F=/A++t

the Company on 17 March 2012. it R -
Director Director
5% 55
CHEN Qiyuan WAN Yuhua
BR BSUR Ex#E
The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial FEME166ENM AR BRI —
statements. o o
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Balance Sheet
BEEHEXR

At 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Renminbi)

W-T——#+-A=+—8

(BAA REFIR)
Note 2011 2010
k3 —g-—f —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARET T
Non-current assets IkRBEE
_Investments in subsidiaries  RINEBRAMNKE “oo R
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables ot pE W R IB 16 1,422,577 1,471,397
Cash and cash equivalents HekREeEEYD 18 85,408 100,104
Totalassets AEww 1,507,985 - 1,671,601
Current liabilities RBERE
Other payables  HfiEf[zHE v 3922 355
Netcurrentassets ~  #B®E®RE 0000000 1,504,063 - 1,671,146
Total assets less BEERRBER
~___current liabilites 1,504,063 1,571,146
Net assets EEFE 1,504,063 1,571,146
Capital and reserves EXR#EE
Share capital & 2 23(c) 256,511 256,380
Reserves wE 23(a) 1,247,552 1,314,766
Total equity BB 1,504,063 1,571,146

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors of ARREEFEER _E——F=A++

the Company on 17 March 2012. H#tfE R -
Director Director
BF 55
CHEN Qiyuan WAN Yuhua
BR BSUR BEExE

The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial FME166ENM AR BREN —
statements. o o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
AHERE DR

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Renminbi)

RE-FT——F+-A=+-HLFR

(AARM5IR)
Attributable to equity shareholders of the Company
ARAREREAER
Retained
PRC earnings/
Share Share statutory Capital Merger Translation (accumulated Total
Capital premium reserves reserve reserve reserve losses) equity
HEEE BiER/
RA& RAEE 1 EXGEE RO EifE (RiEBR) BRER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AR%TT ARETR AREFR AR¥TT AREBTR ARET:T
(Note 23(c)) ~ (Note 23(d)) ~ (Note 23(d))  (Note 23(d)) ~ (Note 23(d))  (Note 23(d))
Balance at RZZ-%F
1 January 2010 -B-B&& 256,134 1,342,774 49,887 6,435 8,468 4,846 365,688 2,034,282
Changes in equity “E-2%
for 2010: EE2E:
Total comprehensive FRGERREE
income for the year - - - - - (18,497) (117,971) (136,468)
Dividends declared during R E RS
the year (Note 23(b)) (HiEE23(b)) - - - - - - (317,708) (317,708)

Shares issued under share 18 75 B R #£ 51 81
option scheme (Note 23(c)) 1T &k 7

(W 523(0) 246 5,865 - (5,180) - - - 931
Equity settled share-based ~ JAIE & BRI 17
transactions (Note 23(d)) YHR5
(B ££23(d)) - - - 8,413 - - = 8,413
Balance at R-B-2F
31 December 2010and +=A=+-AR
1 January 2011 —Z--%-A-H
e 256,380 1,348,630 49,887 9,668 8,468 (13,651) (69,091) 1,589,400
Changes in equity for “E--%
2011: BE2E:
Total comprehensive income  F R4 Nz BE
for the year - - - - - (5,178) (558,570) (563,748)
Shares issued under share 1R & B8 BR 1 51 81 34T H)
option scheme (Note 23(c) & 13 (Ff5F23(c)) 131 3,051 - (3,051) - - - 131
Equity settled share-based ~ LAIE & BRI 1) L+
transactions (Note 23(d)) 2 5 (His23(d) - - - 3,059 - - - 3,059
Balance at R-B--%
31 December 2011 +-Az+-B44 256511 1,351,690 49,887 9,676 8,468 (18,829) (628561) 1,028,842

The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial E7T1E166BE MM AR SRR —
statements. 2o e
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

ANy =~ —
E D =
BT h =
For the year ended 31 December 2011

(Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-_Z——FT+-_HA=+—HILFE
(AARIITR)

Zi

2011 2010
—F——F e
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBEFIT
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEELENRERE
Loss before taxation BRAETE BRI EE (618,537) (134,131)
Adjustments for: BT BIEAE
Depreciation e 15,490 8,252
Net (income)/loss on disposal of property, YE - BEMERED
plant and equipment BEF(RE) X (58) 73
Changes in fair value less costs to sell EMEERREBER
of biological assets — non-current portion HERANEBIER
— 3ER B E D (719) -
Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts #1285l (& 18 & 1,725 149
Write-down of inventories FE B EEE 43,899 10,811
Net finance income B S W A F 5 (6,750) (13,043)
Unrealised foreign exchange losses REBREREBX (4,688) (14,280)
Equity-settled share-based payment EZEENRD
transactions XS 3,059 8,413
Investment income /& Wk (2,451) (1,810)
Subtotal INEE (569,030) (135,566)
Change in inventories FEEH (71,841) (34,643)
Change in biological assets — current portion £ ¥ & E&Z &) — K& 315 (949) -
Change in trade and other receivables 5 N E g R IE B E) 190,071 109,472
Change in trade and other payables Z5 &H{‘Efﬁ FRIE & & (23,757) (65,046)
Change in amounts due to related parties FEAS BAEE 5 ﬂiﬂ 367 (2,533)
Change in prepaid advertising fee ERNEESE xib (1,438) 3,644
Cash used in operating activities RETEFANES (476,577) (124,672)
Refund of prepaid income tax/(income s IEI ?E EBH (B
tax paid) B 26,999 (73,672)
Net cash used in operating activities K& EZEFMANRLEH (449,578) (198,344)
Cash flows from investing activities RETHELENESRE
Interest received B UF B 10,860 13,043
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment B EME  HE LR E (147,927) (44,803)
Plantation expenditure of biological assets — 4 #& EfEIE X
non-current portion — FEREN D (578) -
Proceeds from disposal of property, BEEYWE BELEXEN
plant and equipment FT 13 518 154 —
Proceeds from sales of other investments HEEMKRENATERE 1,689,451 1,811,790
Acquisition of other investments MEEMEE (1,687,000) (1,809,980)
Net cash used in investing activities REZTBHMABRSEEHE (135,040) (29,950)
The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial FI1E166 BT B A B3R EH —
statements. =L o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)
eHAERER(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2011
(Expressed in Renminbi)
HE-_T——F+-A=1+—BLEE
(AANREZIR)

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBEF T
Cash flows from financing activities METHELENEESRE
Proceeds from issuing of new shares BITHRATE IR 131 931
Cash from bank loan and overdrafts RITERRBIAMERE - 209,787
Repayment of bank loan and overdrafts EERTEREREX (207,090) (158,490)
Interest expenses paid 2 FLE (6,811) -
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits WATFZOR A8 hn) 220,000 (57,988)
Dividends paid B A - (317,708)
Net cash generated from/ BMEEHEL (FA)
___(used in) financing activities Re®® gz (323,468)
Net decrease in cash and REeERBREEEY
cash equivalents WD FE (578,388) (651,762)
Cash and cash equivalents R—A—HBHNRER
at 1 January ReEEEY 1,186,544 1,742,523
Effect of exchange rate fluctuations on EXEHEFERE
cash held H 8 (5,484) (4,217)
Cash and cash equivalents at R+=—ZA=+—8®W
31 December RekREeZEEY 602,672 1,186,544

The notes on pages 71 to 166 form part of these financial FET1E166 8 M HTiT AR B REH —
statements. N
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Notes to the Financial Statements

B 15 ¥ 2} WY &

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REBHRBI  BAARETR)

1

Reporting entity

BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands
on 11 December 2007 as an exempted company with
limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap. 22, Law
3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman
Islands. The address of its registered office is Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2011 comprise the Company and its
subsidiaries (together referred to as “Group”). The Group
is primarily engaged in the manufacturing and sales of
household and personal care products. The Group is also
engaged in the sales of herbal tea products since June
2010.

Significant accounting policies

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable International Financial
Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”), which collective
term includes all applicable individual International
Financial Reporting Standards, International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations
issued by the International Accounting Standards
Board (“IASB”), and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. These
financial statements also comply with the applicable
disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (“SEHK”). A summary of the
significant accounting policies adopted by the
Group is set out below.

The IASB has issued certain new and revised IFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption
for the current accounting period of the Group and
the Company. Note 3 provides information on any
changes in accounting policies resulting from initial
application of these developments to the extent that
they are relevant to the Group for the current and
prior accounting periods reflected in these financial
statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

72

ltems included in the financial statements of each
entity in the Group are measured using the currency
that best reflects the economic substance of the
underlying events and circumstances relevant
to the entity (“functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”),
rounded to the nearest thousand except per share
data.

The measurement basis used in the preparation
of the financial statements is historical cost basis
except the following assets and liabilities are stated
at their fair value as explained in the accounting
policies set out below:

— derivative financial instrument (see Note 2(f)(i))
— biological assets (see Note 2(h))

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with  IFRSs requires management to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of policies and reported amounts
of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based
on historical experience and various other factors
that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances, the results of which form the basis
of making the judgements about carrying values of
assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent
from other sources. Actual results may differ from
these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are
reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period
in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and
future periods if the revision affects both current and
future periods.

hY
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥HEERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FEESFTEREX®W
Judgements made by management in the EIRERABERMBREER

application of IFRSs that have significant effect
on the financial statements and major sources of
estimation uncertainty are discussed in Note 28.

Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Group.
Control exists when the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of an
entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.
In assessing control, potential voting rights that
presently are exercisable are taken into account.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into
the consolidated financial statements from the date
that control commences until the date that control
ceases. Intra-group balances and transactions
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing
the consolidated financial statements. Unrealised
losses resulting from intra-group transactions are
eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains
but only to the extent that there is no evidence of
impairment.

In the Company’s balance sheet, an investment in a
subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment losses
(see Note 2())).

BEATEL MBI REREERK
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

74

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated
to the respective functional currencies of the
Group entities at exchange rates at the date of
the transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies at the reporting
date are retranslated to the functional currency at
the exchange rate at that date. Foreign currency
differences arising on retranslation are recognised
in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the foreign
exchange rates ruling at the transaction dates.

The assets and liabilities of operations with
functional currency in foreign currency are
translated into RMB at the exchange rates ruling
at the reporting date. The income and expenses
of operations with functional currency in foreign
currency are translated to RMB at exchange rates
ruling at the dates of the transactions. Foreign
currency differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and are presented within
equity in the foreign currency translation reserve.

() Derivative financial instruments
Derivative financial instruments are recognised
initially at fair value. At each balance sheet date
the fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss
on remeasurement to fair value is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥HEERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Non-derivative financial assets

A non-derivative financial asset is recognised if
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial asset
when the contractual rights to the cash
flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash
flows on the financial asset in a transaction in
which substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset are
transferred. Any interest in transferred financial
assets that is created or retained by the Group
is recognised as a separate asset or liability.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

Non-derivative financial assets of the Group
comprise trade and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are initially
recognised at fair value and thereafter stated
at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts (see Note 2(j)())), except where
the receivables are interest-free loans made
to related parties without any fixed repayment
terms or the effect of discounting would be
immaterial. In such cases, the receivables are
stated at cost less allowance for impairment of
doubtful debts.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

76

(i)

(iii)

Non-derivative financial assets
(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
at bank and in hand, demand deposits with
banks and other financial institutions, and
short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, having been within
three months of maturity at acquisition. Bank
overdrafts that are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s
cash management are also included as a
component of cash and cash equivalents for
the purpose of the consolidated cash flow
statement.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Non-derivative  financial liabilities are
recognised initially on the trade date at which
the Group becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.

The Group derecognises a financial liability
when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled or expire.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and
the net amount presented in the balance sheet
when, and only when, the Group has a legal
right to offset the amounts and intends either
to settle on a net basis or to realise the asset
and settle the liability simultaneously.

The Group has the following non-derivative
financial liabilities: interest-bearing borrowings,
trade and other payables, and amounts due to
related parties.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥HEERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(iii) Non-derivative financial liabilities

(iv)

(M

(continued)

Interest-bearing borrowings

Interest-bearing borrowings are recognised
initially at fair value less attributable transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition,
interest-bearing borrowings are stated at
amortised cost with any difference between
the amount initially recognised and redemption
value being recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings, together with any
interest and fees payable, using the effective
interest method.

Trade and other payables and amounts due to
related parties

Trade and other payables and amounts due
to related parties are initially recognised at fair
value. Trade and other payables and amounts
due to related parties are subsequently
stated at amortised cost unless the effect of
discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost.

Ordinary Share

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.
Incremental cost directly attributable to the
issue of ordinary shares and share options are
recognised as a deduction from equity, net of
any tax effects.

Recognition and measurement

Property, plant and equipment are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses (Note 2(j)(ii)).
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

78

Recognition and measurement
(continued)

Cost includes expenditures that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of an asset. The
cost of self-constructed assets includes the
cost of materials and direct labour, any other
costs directly attributable to bringing the asset
to a working condition for its intended use,
and the costs of dismantling and removing
the items and restoring the site on which
they are located when the Group has an
obligation to remove the asset or restore the
site. Purchased software that is integral to
the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment.

When parts of an item of property, plant
and equipment have different useful lives,
they are accounted for as separate items
(major components) of property, plant and
equipment.

Construction in progress represents property,
plant and equipment under construction, and
is stated at cost less impairment losses (Note

2())(i).

Cost comprises direct costs of construction
during the construction period. Capitalisation
of these costs ceases and the construction in
progress is transferred to property, plant and
equipment when all of the activities necessary
to prepare the assets for their intended use are
substantially complete.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥HEERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an item of
property, plant and equipment is recognised in
the carrying amount of the item if it is probable
that the future economic benefits embodied
within the part will flow to the Group and its
cost can be measured reliably. The costs of
the day-to-day serving of property, plant and
equipment are recognised in profit and loss as
incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculation over the depreciable
amount, which is the cost of an asset, or other
amount substituted for cost, less its residual
value.

Depreciation is recognised in profit or loss on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of each part of an item of property, plant
and equipment less their estimated residual
value.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant
and equipment are as follows:

e  Property 20 years
*  Machinery 10 years
*  Motor vehicles 5-8 years
e  (Office equipment and others 5 years
e Display furniture 2 years

No depreciation is provided in respect of
construction in progress until it is substantially
completed and ready for its intended use.
Upon completion and commissioning for
operation, depreciation will be provided at the
appropriate rates specified above.

Depreciation methods, useful life and residual
value are reassessed at the reporting date.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

80

Biological assets are measured at fair value less
costs to sell, with any change therein recognized in
profit or loss. Costs to sell include all incremental
costs directly attributable to the sale of the biological
assets, excluding finance costs and income taxes.

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. The cost of inventories
is based on the weighted average cost principle,
and includes expenditure incurred in acquiring
the inventories, production or conversion costs
and other costs incurred in bringing them to
their existing location and condition. In case of
manufactured inventories and work in progress,
cost includes an appropriate share of the production
overheads based on normal operating capacity.
Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less the estimated
costs of completion and selling expenses.

() Financial assets
A financial asset is considered to be impaired
if objective evidence indicates that one or
more events have had a negative effect on the
estimated future cash flows of that asset.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥HEERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

Financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss in respect of a financial
asset measured at amortised cost is calculated
as the difference between its carrying amount,
and the present value of the estimated future
cash flows discounted at the original effective
interest rate.

Individually significant financial assets are
tested for impairment on an individual basis.
The remaining financial assets are assessed
collectively in groups that share similar credit
risk characteristics.

All impairment losses are recognised in profit
or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed if the reversal
can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised. For financial assets measured at
amortised cost, the reversal is recognised in
profit or loss.

Non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s non-
financial assets, other than inventories, are
reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impairment.
If any such indication exists then the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(B =B HAN

CBAAREHR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

82

(i)

Non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying
amount of an asset or its cash-generating
unit exceeds its recoverable amount. A cash-
generating unit is the smallest identifiable asset
group that generates cash flows that largely
are independent from other assets and groups.
Impairment losses are recognised in profit or
loss. Impairment losses recognised in respect
of cash-generating units are allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
allocated to the units and then to reduce the
carrying amount of the other assets in the unit
(group of units) on a pro-rata basis.

The recoverable amount of assets or cash-
generating unit is the greater of its value in use
and its fair value less cost to sell. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of
money and risks specific to the assets.

Impairment losses recognised in prior periods
are assessed at each reporting date for any
indications that the loss has decreased or no
longer exists. An impairment loss is reversed
if there has been a change in the estimates
used to determine the recoverable amount.
An impairment loss is reversed only to the
extent that the asset’s carrying amount does
not exceed the carrying amount that would
have been determined, net of depreciation or
amortisation, if no impairment loss had been
recognised.
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Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt %% 3R = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(i)

(iii)

Short term employee benefits

Salaries, wages, annual bonuses and staff
welfare are accrued in the year in which
the associated services are rendered by
employees of the Group.

Defined contribution retirement plans
Obligations for contributions to local defined
contribution retirement schemes pursuant to
the relevant labour rules and regulations in the
PRC and Hong Kong are recognised as an
expense in profit or loss when they are due,
except to the extent that they are included in
the cost of inventories not yet recognised as
an expense.

Share-based payment transactions

The fair value of share options granted to
employees is recognised as an employee
cost with a corresponding increase in a
capital reserve within equity. The fair value is
measured at grant date using binomial model,
taking into account the terms and conditions
upon which the options were granted. Where
the employees have to meet vesting conditions
before becoming unconditionally entitled to
the options, the total estimated fair value of
the options is spread over the vesting period,
taking into account the probability that the
options will vest.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

84

(iif) Share-based payment transactions

(continued)

During the vesting period, the number of share
options that is expected to vest is reviewed.
Any resulting adjustment to the cumulative
fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to the profit or loss for the year
of the review, unless the original employee
expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the
capital reserve. On vesting date, the amount
recognised as an expense is adjusted to reflect
the actual number of options that vest (with
a corresponding adjustment to the capital
reserve) except where forfeiture is only due
to not achieving vesting conditions that relate
to the market price of the company’s shares.
The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised
(when it is transferred to the share premium
account) or the option expires (when it is
released directly to retained profits).

Provision is recognised if, as a result of a past
event, the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is
probable that an outflow of economic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are
determined by discounting the expected future cash
flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the liability.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥HEERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTHEG®

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required, or the amount cannot be
estimated reliably, the obligation is disclosed as a
contingent liability, unless the probability of outflow
of economic benefits is remote. Possible obligations,
whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more future
events, are also disclosed as contingent liabilities
unless the probability of outflow of economic
benefits is remote.

Revenue from the sale of goods is measured at the
fair value of the consideration received or receivable,
net of returns and allowances, trade discounts and
volume rebates and excluding value added tax or
other sales taxes. Revenue is recognised when the
significant risks and rewards of ownership have
been transferred to the buyer, recovery of the
consideration is probable, the associated costs and
possible return of goods can be estimated reliably,
and there is no continuing management involvement
with the goods.

Transfers of risks and rewards vary depending on
the individual terms of contract of sales.

Payments made wunder operating leases are
recognised in profit or loss on a straight-line basis
over the term of the lease. Lease incentives received
are recognised as an integral part of the total lease
expenses, over the term of the lease.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

86

Finance income comprises interest income on
deposits in banks and net foreign exchange gain.
Interest income is recognised as it accrues, using
the effective interest method.

Finance costs comprise interest expense on
borrowings and net foreign currency losses.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
Research and development costs comprise all
costs that are directly attributable to research and
development activities or that can be allocated on a
reasonable basis to such activities. Because of the
nature of the Group’s research and development
activities, the criteria for the recognition of such
costs as an asset are generally not met until late
in the development stage of the project when the
remaining development costs are immaterial. Hence
both research costs and development costs are
generally recognised as expenses in the period in
which they are incurred.

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition, construction or production of an
asset which necessarily takes a substantial period
of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are
capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. Other
borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.
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Notes to the Financial Statements

M¥HEERRE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

2 Significant accounting policies (continued) 2 FESFTHEG®

The capitalisation of borrowing costs as part of
the cost of a qualifying asset commences when
expenditure for the asset is being incurred,
borrowing costs are being incurred and activities
that are necessary to prepare the asset for its
intended use or sale are in progress. Capitalisation
of borrowing costs is suspended or ceases when
substantially all the activities necessary to prepare
the qualifying asset for its intended use or sale are
interrupted or complete.

Income tax for the year comprises current tax and
movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities.
Current tax and movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities are recognised in profit or loss except
to the extent that they relate to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, in which case the relevant amounts of tax
are recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the
taxable income for the year, using tax rates enacted
or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date,
and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.

BEERX FBERADEH
ERREEEZZTAE AER
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EEKHRBETR  BEKA
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FEERARRIZ LB AR -

PS5 5 X 8 1 BN EA B TR MR
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ffr e Wt s B R R e T T
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B 5 Bl R bk A WS
EEATER -

BIEAM T8 TH 48 7 4F 2 e SR B MR
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

88

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance
sheet method, providing for temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the
amounts used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax is
not recognised for the temporary difference arising
from the initial recognition of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that is not a business combination and
that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit.
Deferred tax is measured at the tax rates that are
expected to be applied to the temporary difference
when they reverse, based on the laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the
reporting date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be
available against which temporary difference can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each
reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will
be realised.

For the purposes of these financial statements, a
party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the group if that person:

()  has control or joint control over the
group;

(i) has significant influence over the group;
or

EEBRBNEER BRI LR
RoBEYBEREMREERR
EREEEEEEER BN
MERZ MHEREERIEL
BE - -MRTBREXSHXR
5 EXRSGBERRITES
AAE - AR ERATAAE
B AZRGAEENEE
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FE 7] BE & 15 R 2R & AR Bt i 1) A
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T OERRBEREREAEE -
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17286 - AAHIME B AR
ERMMEEREN -

IAMBHRERMS @ HENE
TR - BB R AR E &
RAEE DT

(@ HZBALETE U TERE
B B ALTEEZEA
THRBINREKRET
EASEBREE
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A S HL A 45 il
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TE XK
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(a)

A person, or a close member of that person’s
family, is related to the group if that person:
(continued)

(i) is a member of the key management
personnel of the group or the group’s
parent.

An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies:

()  The entity and the group are members of
the same group (which means that each
parent, subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is
related to the others).

(i) One entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or an associate or joint
venture of a member of a group of which
the other entity is a member).

(i) Both entities are joint ventures of the
same third party.

(iv) One entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity.
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—
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

(b) An entity is related to the group if any of the
following conditions applies: (continued)

(V)

(Vi)

(vii)

The entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of either
the group or an entity related to the
group.

The entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a).

A person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are
those family members who may be expected
to influence, or be influenced by, that person in
their dealings with the entity.

Operating segments, and the amounts of each
segment item reported in the financial statements,
are identified from the financial information provided
regularly to the Group’s most senior executive

management  for

the purposes of allocating

resources to, and assessing the performance of, the
Group’s various lines of business and geographical

locations.
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2 Significant accounting policies (continued)

Individually material operating segments are not
aggregated for financial reporting purposes unless
the segments have similar economic characteristics
and are similar in respect of the nature of products
and services, the nature of production processes,
the type or class of customers, the methods used to
distribute the products or provide the services, and
the nature of the regulatory environment. Operating
segments which are not individually material may be
aggregated if they share a majority of these criteria.

Changes in accounting policies

The IASB has issued a number of amendments to
IFRSs and one new Interpretation that are first effective
for the current accounting period of the Group and the
Company. Of these, the following developments are
relevant to the Group’s financial statements:

° ISA 24 (revised 2009), Related party disclosures

° Improvements to IFRSs (2010)

The Group has not applied any new standard or
interpretation that is not yet effective for the current
accounting period.

The impacts of these developments are discussed below:

° IAS 24 (revised 2009) revises the definition of a
related party. As a result, the group has re-assessed
the identification of related parties and concluded
that the revised definition does not have any material
impact on the group’s related party disclosures
in the current and previous period. IAS 24
(revised 2009) also introduces modified disclosure
requirements for government-related entities. This
does not impact the group because the group is not
a government-related entity.

2
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3 Changes in accounting policies (continued)

92

Improvements to IFRSs (2010) omnibus standard
introduces a number of amendments to the
disclosure requirements in IFRS 7, Financial
instruments: Disclosures. The disclosures about the
group’s financial instruments in note 24 have been
conformed to the amended disclosure requirements.
These amendments do not have any material impact
on the classification, recognition and measurements
of the amounts recognised in the financial
statements in the current and previous periods.

Segment reporting

The Group manages its business by a mixture of both

product lines and geography. In a manner consistent

with the way in which information is reported internally
to the Group’s most senior executive management for
the purposes of resource allocation and performance

assessment, the Group has presented the following four
reportable segments:

Hair-care products (mainland China and overseas)

Herbal tea products (mainland China)

Skin-care products (mainland China and overseas)

Other household and personal
(mainland China)

care products

For the purposes of assessing segment
performance and allocating resources between
segments, the Group’s senior executive

management monitors the results attributable to
each reportable segment on the following bases:

3
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 7EBFRE &)

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the W kARSI H2EZE DI
reportable segments with reference to sales EXEZHERZENHMEE
generated by those segments and the expenses AT IZREDHBELEEER
incurred by those segments or which otherwise ESBEMEECHMRAI Y
arise from the depreciation or amortisation of assets REAREDE - AM BT
attributable to those segments. However, other I BEARRERD SBEEE
than reporting inter-segment sales of products, WA+ E—EBm 5 — 5 56
assistance provided by one segment to another, R (BEXAEE)L
including sharing assets, is not measured. TEHEEA o

The measure used for reporting segment profit WMEDBHEFOFTERER
is “adjusted loss from operations”. To arrive at [EPAELEEE] - REEK
adjusted loss from operations, the Group’s loss FELCLZEE  AEBREE
is further adjusted for the items not specifically AL IEEE B R E R 2 S A IR
attributed to individual segments, such as directors’ BIEE—THE WEZB=
remuneration and other head office or corporate LA K H b 48 & 3k &~ 7] 17 B
administration expenses. The Group’s senior Yo AEESHARTEREE
executive management is provided with segment RIEBES WA RS EBEE
information concerning segment revenue and ZDEER c DEEEREE
segment loss. Segment assets and liabilities are TREHAAEESRATE
not reported to the Group’s senior executive EERE o

management regularly.
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94

(continued)

Information

regarding

the Group’s

Segment reporting (continued)

(a) Segment results, assets and liabilities

reportable

segments as provided to the Group’s senior
executive management for the purposes of resource
allocation and assessment of segment performance
for the years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 is

set out as below:

Hair-care products

4

Herbal tea products

o BB ER A (&)

(a) #EBXREF -

BERARGE)

HE_ZTZ——FR_ZT-FF
TZRA=+—HLEFE FH
MASESHRATERERHE
ZERIE R DERBEFEZ
REE AR E D B2 EF 75

o
Other household and
Skin-care products personal care products Total
EEER HEFAEAEEER At

2011 2010 2011

2010 2011 2010

SR--F CF-TFC%--F CP-FF SR -F CT-TF -%--F CF-TF S%--F S%-%F

EZER RRER
2011 2010 2014 2010
RMB'000  RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

RMB’000
ARBTR ARETL ARMTR ARETT ARMTRT ARMTR ARETR ARETR

RMB'000 ~ RME’000

RMB’000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR AR¥TR

Reportable segment revenue A& 5 BUWA
Revenue from external customers ~ RESNREF Z
WA 567,404 1328079 167,263 69757 89,00 27272 65182 50247 888909 1,475355
Inter-segment revenue AEHEHERA 2 199 4,296 1,214 1 - - - 4,299 1,413
567406 1328278 A74550 70971 89061 27272 65182 50047 893,208 1,476,768
Reportable segment loss THREFBER
Adjusted loss from operations BATLBER (482,604)  (30888)  (66,851)  (65084)  (38912) (3308  (1919) (2339 (610,376) (110,617)
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) MTRESBMAREED
revenue and results HiR
Revenue B A
2011 2010
—E——F —E—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AR T
Reportable segment revenue BIEE=R k=N 893,208 1,476,768
Elimination of GH & o 2R A
inter-segment revenue (4,299) (1,413)
Consolidated turnover EHEERE 888,909 1,475,355
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 DEHRE @)
Results E ¥
2011 2010
S i —z-2%
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT ARBFT
Reportable segment loss AR E o EE R (610,376) (110,617)
Elimination of 85 % 9 2B s A
inter-segment profits 130 (130)
Changes in fair value less costs 4 ¥1& & A 7t B E R
to sell of biological assets HEXNANEEHER 1,462 —
Other revenue H b Yz 2,451 1,810
Other net income/(losses) Hag A (EB)FE 841 (1,399)
Unallocated head office Ro# 7 @Ese
and corporate expenses NATTHRAX (19,795) (21,237)
Finance income B 75 WA 10,860 13,043
Finance costs W5 & A (4,110) (15,601)
Consolidated loss AU BB A E B
before taxation (618,537) (134,131)

The following table sets out information about the
geographical location of () the Group’s revenue
from external customers and (ii) the Group’s fixed
assets, non-current portion of prepaid advertising
fee and biological assets (“specified non-current
assets”). The geographical location of customers is
based on the location at which the services were
provided or the goods delivered. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based
on the physical location of the asset, in the case of
property, plant and equipment and biological assets,
and the location of the operation to which they are
allocated, in the case of the non-current portion of
prepaid advertising fee.

TRIFJOAEERAINDF
B ) A R (i) A< 5= B B0 [E] E B
ENF—FRBEE D HFEN
EEERMEMEE(THEEN
FRBEEDNHRER - F
B ) B A 30 18 T AR PR 4R A AR 7%
IRXNERNUEERE - 8BE
MIERBEEMNMBLE R
BEEERMEMLE(NED
X BELRE UAREDE
E)MEERGHAEME (B
F-FRIABOMENES
ER)MET °
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4 Segment reporting (continued) 4 5 EBERE ()
Revenues from external Specified
customers non-current assets
KB SN EE
0L N ERBEE
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E- 5 ZE-TF —T--—F ZE-TF

RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARETRE ARBTI AR®TRE ARBTE

_PRC (place of domicile) = EI(RE&Ei) 866469 1413695 187626 ! 58,957
Hong Kong &b 13,813 41,146 2,101 3,616
Singapore o 2,388 13,325 — —
Malaysia BRE R 705 4,461 — —
Myanmar ) 1,148 1,119 — —
Brunei HE = 706 = —
The United Arab Emirates B B 28 = 903 = —
Thailand % 3,482 — - —
Australia R N 28 904 — — —
. 22,440  f 61660 2101 3,616
888,909 1,475,355 189,727 62,573
5 Turnover 5 ZE¥H
The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing AEETEXERERHFEERA
and sales of the household and personal care products BAAEREER BREEELREEE
including hair-care and skin-care products. The Group me AKREBR-_Z-—TF AR
is also engaged in the sales of herbal tea products since NERREMBEERER o
June 2010.
Turnover represents the sales value of goods supplied to LEBREATPHEENEMMIEE
customers. Turnover excludes value added taxes and is BE ZXBTLEEER LB
after deduction of any trade discounts and business taxes HMBREMREEFIIMEER S R
and surcharges. The amount of each significant category Mm-ERAFELEXEEIRERNS
of revenue recognised in turnover during the years is as HEARXKWALERNNESERT
follows:
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5 Turnover (continued) 5 ZEFEFHE

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T Tt AREEFTT

Hair-care products EEEMN 567,404 1,328,079

Herbal tea products R E M 167,263 69,757

Skin-care products EEEM 89,060 27,272
Other household and H R AR AEIEE @

personal care products 65,182 50,247

888,909 1,475,355

The Group’s customer base is diversified and there is no KEBEFPEM OB WHEMEE—
customer with whom transactions have exceeded 10% of TEEPHRXRFEAEEESETE10%
the Group’s revenues. PA ko

6 Loss before taxation 6 BRFIEFHAIER

BRATBHAEEE R 5F AT
R Ig

Loss before taxation is arrived at after charging/crediting:

(a) Finance income and costs

(a) BEBRAREH

For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+—HILFE

2011 2010
S —z-Tf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T AREFIT
Finance income B 75 W A
Interest income on bank deposits RITERFEMA 10860 13,043
Finance costs 8758 A
Interest on bank borrowings RITERF B (3,154) (5,115)
Bank charges on bank borrowings 81T & X F & & - (2,016)
Net foreign exchange losses &R BXFH (956) (8,470)
~Suptotal ANEE 4110 (15,601)
Net finance income/(costs) BB A(BR)FE 6,750 (2,558)
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6 Loss before taxation (continued)

98

6

B BT 186 B Al B 18 ()

For the year ended 31 December

BHE+T-_A=+—HIEFE

2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREFIT
Salaries, wages and other Fe ILERHMER
benefits 258,172 129,700
Equity-settled share-based s A E RN XM
payment expenses (Note 21) A (MaEe1) 3,059 8,413
Contributions to defined RERFCR KT EIEE
contribution retirement plan 8,362 5,599
269,593 143,712

Staff costs included directors’ remuneration (Note
8(a)).

Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations
in the PRC, the PRC subsidiaries participate in
a defined contribution retirement benefit scheme
(the “Scheme”) organised by the local authority
whereby the PRC subsidiaries are required to make
contributions to the Scheme based on certain
percentages of the eligible employee’s salaries.
The local government authority is responsible for
the entire pension obligations payable to the retired
employees.

The Group also maintains a Mandatory Provident
Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) for all qualifying
employees in Hong Kong. The Group’s and
employee’s contributions to the MPF Scheme
are based on the relevant income of the relevant
employee and in accordance with the requirements
of the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance and related regulations.

ETRABREZESENE (M
8(a)) °

RETEEHESHRAER
> hEMBAR2EE K
JiF 88 P 3% 32 B 51 E fH FOR IR
MEHEI (TZETE]) - Tk -
HBARRRAEREEH
WA T A D RAZETEIEL
R - T BB AERE
KEEXNZ2BERKSE -

AEENAMEEERERE
ERR#EBIE RS E([58
BEEtEll) - RERFBIMEARE
T ERPIRBRAMRE - K&
BrkEEEYARBHEEREN
MERE AR B -
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6 Loss before taxation (continued)

The Group has no other obligations for payment
of retirement and other post-retirement benefits of
employees other than the contribution described

(o))

BRETS % A0 &5 18 (@)

Br Bt aRoN - R E
fi, 73 18 BUIR IR B EL A IR IR TR 4
FHRWEE -

above.
For the year ended 31 December
HE2+-_A=+—HLHFE
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T
Depreciation* rE" 15,490 8,252
Auditors’ remuneration % S AN B & 1,380 1,250
Cost of inventories* FE R AR 544,154 564,017
Impairment loss for bad RIZEARRE B 1B
and doubtful debts (Note 16(b))  (Ff 5= 16(b)) 1,725 149

* Cost of inventories includes RMB46,355,000 (2010:
RMB40,260,000) relating to staff costs and depreciation, which
amounts are also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in Note 6(b) for each of these
types of expenses.

- FERARERS TAR
WEEHENRESGEARS
46,355,000 (ZZ—Z & : AR
#40,260,0007T) * BRAFKEIE
& A 32 sk i 56 (o) E B 3 55 1) &
HEHTEE -
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7 Income tax credit

7 FrEREA

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-A=t+—AILEE

2011 2010
—2——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T ARBEF T
Current tax - BN ER B 18
PRC income tax — HEFREH
Provision for the year FREE - 9,660
Over-provision in respect of A FEZFIRDN
prior years HERE (509) (2,476)
(509) 7,184
Current tax - B HA Bt 18
Hong Kong income tax — EBANER
Provision for the year FREE - 3,745
Over-provision in respect of NEFEZFIRN
prior years R (3,942) —
(3,942) 3,745
Deferred tax - PRC EEHE
income tax — HEREHR
Origination of ERME80ESE
temporary differences (55,516) (27,089)
Income tax credit P8 B 40 (59,967) (16,160)
(i) Pursuant to the rules and regulations of the () BEHESHENEBR K

Cayman Islands and the BVI, the Group is
not subject to any income tax in the Cayman
Islands and the BVI.

BHENRAEAL - KNk
BEHEABMAFSESE NR
BREZESNETAME
B o
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7 Income tax credit (continued)

)

Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. (“Bawang
Guangzhou”), a PRC subsidiary of the Group,
is subject to a unified income tax rate of 25%
with effect from 1 January 2008.

In accordance with the Implementation Rules
and grandfathering arrangements of the
Corporate Income Tax Law of the PRC (“CIT
Law”) which started to take effect on 1 January
2008, Bawang Guangzhou continued to be
eligible for the "two-year exemption and three-
year 50% reduction" tax holiday from 2006
to 2010. The applicable income tax rate of
Bawang Guangzhou in 2010 was 12.5%.

Bawang Guangzhou qualified as a new and
high technology enterprise in 2009 and the
qualification was valid for three years from
2009 to 2011. Therefore, Bawang Guangzhou
was entitled to a preferential income tax rate of
15% in 2011.

Bawang (China) Beverage Co., Ltd. (“Bawang
Beverage”), a PRC subsidiary of the Group,
was newly established in Guangzhou in 2010.
The applicable income tax rate of Bawang
Beverage is 25%.

7 FrERE @

(i

(i)

BT N\4—A—H
B AEENFEREA
ABT(EM)BRARA
(TEXEM])ER & —
B BT 15 B B K 25% o

BE_ZTZNFE—H—
A 78 £ B AR B %
FRSBUEN (TR EFRFH
FDRBEFERBE
Bz - EEEMD A4
BRA_ZTTENFE_T—
TFEHEAEBIME =R
FINBBEESR T —
TEHFETEMCERME
M ER12.5% °

FEEMNR_ZBTAFK
RIERBIBMER - &
BRR_ZFTNFE_
F——H=FRNEX A
b BEBMA =T ——
FER16%NEEAEH
BE -

AEES—HPENRBQ
AHET(REKRHER
ARITBEHERR =
T—TFEEMNKY - B
FREZERAMRBRBHE
£25% o
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MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

7 Income tax credit (continued) 7 FrEBEIN@
(v) Pursuant to the Implementation Rules of (iv) REBEEEMSTEEER

the CIT Law, overseas investors to foreign
investment companies (“FIE”) shall be liable for
withholding income tax at 10% on the dividend
derived from the profits of PRC subsidiaries
with effect from 1 January 2008, unless the
tax rate is reduced by treaty. Pursuant to the
Sino-Hong Kong Double Tax Arrangements,
the investor established in Hong Kong which
is the beneficiary owner holding not less
than 25% of the equity interests of its PRC
subsidiaries can enjoy a reduced withholding
tax rate of 5% on the dividend received from
its PRC subsidiaries. The Group did not make
provision of withholding income tax for the
year ended 31 December 2011 since the
PRC subsidiaries, both Bawang Guangzhou
and Bawang Beverage, incurred losses in the
current year.

(v)  The provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax was (V)
made by Hong Kong Bawang International
Trading Limited (“Bawang Trading”). Its
applicable income tax rate is 16.5%.

102 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %8 F B FE (£ &) £ ik B [R A 7

B - BZFTFENF—H—
HiE - bR IETE RAV R KRR
Ko NEEE D EI
BrEDNBEIINEESR
=bp Q= Rl NGB
FE AR BB 10%TE 0T
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

7 Income tax credit (continued) 7 FIEHEH @
For the year ended 31 December
BET-_A=+—BLLFE
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-EF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBF T
Loss before income tax B P15 1 B B 1R (618,537) (134,131)
Income tax on loss before tax, RERRPEEBN
calculated at the rates TR E (B125%) 8
applicable to the PRC BRI E BRI TS
operations (i.e. 25%) (154,634) (83,533)
Effect of unused tax losses KRR 2 AN A
not recognised BN E 28,348 966
Effect of other deductible AERBELERBBEEN
temporary differences not HmrENERnEsR
recognised as deferred W2
tax assets 8,963 —
Effect of tax rate differential (i) B R A 52 2) 30,904 22,167
Effect on deemed taxable WRBERTIW AR
income (i) 2 2 (ii) 1,397 984
Effect of non-deductible expenses TRl 1T X B & 3,689 5,392
Effect of tax concessions (iii) I8 1B = /9 52 &) 25,816 (9,660)
Bonus deduction of R&D MEFAEERY
expenses (iv) INEFFIBR(iv) (2,568) (2,689)
(Over)/under provision in prior year AR EE (%), Vit EfE (1,882) 213
Income tax credit Fri8 B 40 (59,967) (16,160)

()  The effect of tax rate differential mainly
represented the effect of the difference in tax
rates among the Company and its subsidiaries
and the tax effect arising from difference
between the tax rate of 25% being applied in
the computation of expected income tax and
the rate for recognising the deferred tax.

TRARENFEFERR
AR REHBA ﬂZFﬁ
ERTEHENTE -

MErERHME fﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
FA 8925% 75t 2R B2 3R R 1T
HIEEERTEAMEE
TRFEENTE -
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MEERERNE

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

7 Income tax credit (continued) 7 PFEMIET @
(i)  Effect on deemed taxable income represents (i) HWRAERMBWANTE

deemed sales income in respect of
promotional goods provided to customers
at nil consideration, which is calculated in
accordance with the CIT law of the PRC.

(i) Effect of tax concessions represents the (iif)
difference between standard income tax rate
and preferential income tax rate enjoyed by
Bawang Guangzhou as set out in Note 7(a)(ii).

(iv) According to Tax Notice on Provisional (iv)

Administrative Measures governing Pre-CIT
Deduction of R&D Expenses (Guoshuifa [2008]
No.116) issued by the State Administration
of Taxation, effective from 1 January 2008,
R&D expenses, which are not capitalised,
are qualified for bonus deduction for income
tax purpose, i.e. an additional 50% of such
expenses could be deemed as deductible
expenses.
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B35 8RR

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

8 Directors’ remuneration

(a) Details of Directors’ remuneration of the

Company are set out below:

8 EEM=E

(a) FLFREFMEFHMT :

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits Discretionary scheme payments 2011
fee in kind bonuses contributions Sub-total (note(i)) total
e
BER RIER ReXft ZB--%
ne ENRE A AEBR Pt (GED) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR ARBTR AR®TR AR®TR ARBT R ARBTR ARBTR
Chairman I
Mr CHEN Qiyuan BROR % £ - - - — — - -
Executive directors YTES
Ms WAN Yuhua ErEat - - - - - - -
Mr SHEN Xiaodi N - 1,661 - 10 1,671 818 2,489
Mr WONG Sin Yung HERLKE - 1,661 - 10 1,671 614 2,285
Non-executive director JEHTEE
Ms GUO Jing Y e 249 - - - 249 - 249
Independent B
non-executive directors EHTES
Mr NGAI Wai Fung REBLEAE 332 - - - 332 - 332
Mr CHEN Kaizhi RAREE 249 - - - 249 - 249
Mr LI Bida FUhERE 249 - - - 249 - 249
Total @t 1,079 3,322 - 20 4,421 1,432 5,853
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(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

8 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 EEM=m

(a) Details of Directors’ remuneration of the
Company are set out below: (continued)

(a) LFREEMEFTMT -

(43

\ A

Salaries,
allowances Retirement Share-based
Directors’ and benefits ~ Discretionary scheme payments 2010
fee in kind bonuses  contributions Sub-total (note(i) total
BER RIKER BH%H ZE-%F
ik ENHA iz BE S INE GE) @it
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT  ARETT AREFR ARETR ARETT ARETR ARETR
Chairman I
Mr CHEN Qiyuan BROR % £ - - - - - - -
Executive directors HTES
Ms WAN Yuhua BrEat - - - - - - -
Mr SHEN Xiaodi N A - 1,039 - 10 1,049 1,389 2,438
Mr WONG Sin Yung BEEREAE - 1,781 - 10 1,74 1,511 3,252
Non-executive director  F#HTEZS
Ms GUO Jing BeuT 260 - - - 260 - 260
Independent non- B
executive directors FHITES
Mr NGAI Wai Fung BEEEE 346 - - - 346 - 346
Mr CHEN Kaizhi RAREE 260 - - - 260 - 260
Mr LI Bida FUhERE 260 - - - 260 - 260
Total @t 1,126 2,770 - 20 3916 2,900 6,816
Note: B EE -
0] These represent the estimated value of share options granted [0) ZERBREBEARRRBERE B

to the directors under the Company’s share option scheme.
The value of these share options is measured according to
the Group’s accounting policies for share-based payment
transactions as set out in Note 2(k)(iii).

The details of these benefits in kind, including the principal
terms and number of options granted, are disclosed in Note 21.

TEFHRENGAER -ZF
BRENEEDZERASERND
XN RZHEFREFE &
BB RE2(K) i) ©

ZEEVF=OFERE  BERLY
ERENEZEAREE F HR
faE21 ©
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

8 Directors’ remuneration (continued) 8 EEMEuwm
(b) An analysis of directors’ remuneration (b) REEHERTFTHEEZ
by the number of directors and JIMESEFMSIRAOT :

remuneration range is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December

BEI-_A=t—AILERE

2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
Number of Number of
directors directors
EEHH EE=HA
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = 21,000,000/ 7T () 6
HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,0007% JtT = —
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000 1,500,001 £ 2,000,0007% 7T = —
HK$2,000,001 to 2,500,000 2,000,001 £2,500,0007% 7T — 1
HK$2,500,001 to 3,000,000 2,500,001 % 3,000,0007% 7T 2 —
HK$3,000,001 to 3,500,000 3,000,001 % 3,500,0007% 7T = —
HK$3,500,001 to 4,000,000 3,500,001 % 4,000,0007% 7T — 1
8 8

9 Individuals with highest emoluments 9 EoHEAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments,
two (2010: three) are directors, whose emoluments are
disclosed in Note 8. The aggregate of the emoluments
in respect of the five individuals with highest emoluments
are as follows:

Susm#HMALH  WEL(ZFT—
THEZMBREF  BKEFHFMN
Mzr8ik e - AU Z S HFMA LB
FEMEEET

For the year ended 31 December

BEI-A=t—AILEE

2011 2010

—E-——fF —E-EF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T AREETF T

Salaries and other emoluments & & E A F BN 5,838 3,271

Share-based payments % 13 S+ 2,251 4,486
Contribution to defined FE TR ARG B

contribution retirement plans 35 46

8,124 7,803
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

Individuals with highest emoluments

(continued)

An analysis of the emoluments of the five individuals with
the highest emoluments is with the following bands:

9 EEHMALT®

T &mHMA L8 &HMT0m
T
For the year ended 31 December

HE+T-_A=+—HILFE

Nil to HK$1,000,000

HK$1,000,001 to 1,500,000
HK$1,500,001 to 2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to 2,500,000
HK$2,500,001 to 3,000,000
HK$3,000,001 to 3,500,000
HK$3,500,001 to 4,000,000

= %1,000,0007% 7T

1,000,001 & 1,500,0007% 7T
1,500,001 & 2,000,0007% 7T
2,000,001 £ 2,500,000 7T
2,500,001 £ 3,000,000 7T
3,000,001 % 3,500,000/% 7T
3,500,001 & 4,000,000/ 7T

2011 2010
—g-—-F “T-TF
Number of Number of
individuals individuals

A AH

1 2
1 —_
1 1
2 1
- 1
5 5

10 Loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company

The consolidated loss attributable to equity shareholders
of the Company includes a loss of RMB24,405,000
(2010: RMB16,948,000) which has been dealt with in the
financial statements of the Company.

10?@ﬂ%§%ﬁk@ﬁ%

AAREERFAEAREREEER
REFALRRAMBHRERANDAR
#24,405000 W BE(ZZE —F
£ : AR #16,948,0007T) °
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(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

10 Loss attributable to equity shareholders 10
of the Company (continued)

Ht

RAERIFEARGE
)

3 (&

\
il

[
[mo

Reconciliation of the above amount to the Company’s LS EEAQNFFARBE MY
loss for the year: i
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT T AREFIT
Amount of consolidated loss BEFAARR BB RE P
attributable to equity shareholders WiEZEE A
dealt with in the Company’s JEMhE B£8R

financial statements (24,405) (16,948)
Final dividends from BB A &) £ — 1 B B

subsidiaries attributable to the profits FEELEFBEmMEIR

of the previous financial year, RHRE RAFR

approved and paid during the year B R AT — 329,409

RNRBER(EIEB), 5
(Bt 5E23(a)) (24,405) 312,461

Company’s (loss)/profit for the year
(Note 23(a))

Details of dividends paid and payable to equity
shareholders of the Company are set out in Note 23(b).

ENMEEMAQAR#HZERE AKE
B & 1B SR BT 5E23(b) ©
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11 Loss per share

The calculation of basic loss per share is based
on the loss attributable to ordinary equity
shareholders of the Company of RMB558,570,000
(2010: RMB117,971,000) and the weighted
average of 2,908,606,062 ordinary shares (2010:
2,906,389,810 ordinary shares) in issue during the
year, calculated as follows:

Weighted average number of ordinary shares:

11 BREE

EREARNBEDIREFRAAA
AEBREFBARGE
B A R #558,570,0007C (=&
—ZF : AR ®117,971,000
JL) c REBEBEITE @R INEF
5 #12,908,606,062 % (= & —
T 4 :2906,389,810 i & i@
BOTEMT :

B8

For the year ended 31 December

R+ZA=+—8
2011 2010
—E——F —E-ZF
Issued ordinary shares R—A—HB#7T
at 1 January LBk 2,907,820,720 2,905,000,000
Effect of share option BHRITHIRD REE
exercised (Note 23(c)(i)) B 52 2 (M 5E23(0)()) 785,342 1,389,810
Weighted average number of R+ _A=+—H
ordinary shares at Seg i gzopiliy:
31 December FHE 2,908,606,062 2,906,389,810

The calculation of diluted loss per share for the
years ended 31 December 2011 and 2010 does
not assume the exercise of the Company’s share
options as the effect is anti-dilutive.

HR ARG BRERER R#
HUR U EFEEHE-Z
——FkZZE-ZF+ZH
=t+t—BILEEFEEREEEE
B - IR E AR QA B R ES
1THE »
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: Ay o 2
12 Property, plant and equipment 12 Y% -BERZE
Office
Motor  equipment Display Construction
Buildings  Machinery vehicles  and others furniture in progress Total
BAERE
EE e EHTR REf BREE EEIR @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETR ARETR
Cost: B
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE-FF—-f—H - 30,707 12,247 12,024 - 1,763 56,741
Additions nE 5,494 12,018 1,725 7,972 1,119 803 29,131
Disposals e - - &) (155) - - (158)
Transfer from construction EREEEIR
in progress - - - 1,573 - (1,573) -
At 31 December 2010 and RZZ-Z%F
1 January 2011 +t-A=t-HBR
—Z——%-f—-H 5,494 42,725 13,969 21,414 1,119 993 85,714
Additions NE - 5,959 770 4,333 18,602 110,341 140,005
Disposals H& - - (466) (155) - - (621)
Transfer from construction in progress £ B & T 12 877 1,184 - - - (2,061) -
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
e TIAST-R 63t . 0868 was . B8 19721 109278 225098
Accumulated depreciation: 2FiE:
At 1 January 2010 R-ZE-FF—-f—H - (9,659) (4,857) (2,895) - - (17,411)
Charge for the year FAEHE (84) (3,114) (2,316) (2,724) (14) - (8,252)
Written back on disposals HERERE - - 2 83 - - 85
At 31 December 2010 and RZZ-FF
1 January 2011 +tZA=+-HR
—2-—%-f-§ (84) (12,773) {7471) (5,536) (14 - 25,578)
Charge for the year FRER (264) (4,601) (2,400) (4,150) (4,075) - (15,490)
Written back on disposals HERER - - 419 106 - - 525
At 31 December 2011 RZZ——F
el TEASTOA By (e 1) 0% f4esy <. 1054
Carrying amount: REE :
At 31 December 2010 RZZ-FF
+-A=+-8 5,410 29,952 6,798 15,878 1,105 993 60,136
At 31 December 2011 RZE——F
+-A=+—-H 6,023 32,494 5,121 16,012 15,632 109,273 184,555

AEEBERENEHEME BHE AR
wEMRFE -

All property, plant and equipment owned by the Group
are located in the PRC.
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13 Biological assets

Biological assets represent the growing herbs in the
cultivation base located in mainland China.

13 Y EE

EYEEREUNPEARENEE
EmERENhEE-

The Group
KEE

2011 2010

—E——fF —E—FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T ARBEF T

At 1 January Kn—HA—H - —
Changes in fair value less costs to sell NABERIBEKAN

#H A 1,462 —

Plantation expenditure BEX 837 —

Herbs harvested during the year INF W B (53) —

At 31 December R+—A=+—H 2,246 -

Non-current portion FER B EL D 1,297 —

Current portion mEE D 949 —

At 31 December R+=-—A=+—8H 2,246 —

Plantation expenditure comprises those costs that are
directly attributable to the cultivation of herbs including
seeds, fertilizers, pesticides, direct labour, operating lease
charges on farmland and other direct costs.

Biological assets were stated at fair value less costs
to sell as of 31 December 2011 as estimated by an
independent appraiser using the net present value
approach whereby projected future net cash flows were
discounted to provide a current market value of the
biological assets.

The discount rates used in the valuation of the biological
assets in mainland China as at each balance sheet date
were based on the market-determined pre tax rate.

BEXHERATEERGRBEBRER
RWEENKABRERET CEH R
E BHEERATL REHNKZHEE
AR EMBERERKAR -

R-ZFB——F+-_A=1t—HWLE
MEENARABEREEKAET
FHE - HEER BB EE A
FBE T EETEE - RAAEEE
HEMEENEBEETHERS Y
BRARKFR S RELEITIR - A
AEZAEMEENRITMSER -

ERARBLIEEEEAERATE
RENEYEEFHNFTRE - 2
VA ER T 55 )R TE B Bt A A1 2R 23 B R 2R
T -
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13 Biological assets (continued) 13 £YEE®)

(continued)

The principal valuation methodology and assumptions TEATEAENEE A NMBER

adopted are as follows: N

e The present condition of a biological asset excludes s AYEEMEBAMESBEH
any increases in value from additional biological LA TN E S i 5| #E B (A & 2
transformation and future activities of the Group A - flangE SN A EE AL
such as those related to enhancing the future AR EE G R ge g TR H
biological transformation, harvesting and selling; and R ARKREE W

EEMNEE °

e  Estimated future net cash flows are referenced to o RRKFHRESREWFERZRET
past experience from the management and historical EEEBENLR U KIBEN
records. FES SR 8% o

14 Investments in subsidiaries 14 RITBRARNKRE
The Company
ZIN/NE)|
At 31 December
wnt+t-—A=+—8~
2011 2010
—E——fF —T—ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETF T
Unlisted shares, at cost (US$2) JELETRAD

R ASI|E (2% 7T) - -
Less: impairment loss VAR RIEE =S - —
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14 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 14 RMBARMNEE @
At the date of this report, the Company has direct or RAZHBH  AARBEENHE
indirect interests in the following subsidiaries. The class BEATHBARNER - HAR
of shares held is ordinary. The particulars of these mEER AEBEIR - ZSEWNB A A
subsidiaries are set out below: EEHF T
Proportion of ownership interest
EERAES
Group’s

Place of Particulars of effective Held by

incorporation issued and interest Held by a subsidiary

Name of company and operation paid up capital A%E the Company HHE  Principal activities

DNAER RIREE Y BRTRAZER EREE AQARF AARE ETEEH

Forever Giants Limited British Virgin Island USS1 100% 100% —  Marketing and
(“Forever Giants”) ("BVI") E3 promotion of

ABRAEE household and
personal care
products

EHRAEBERAR
EAEEER

Maxford Investments Development Ltd.  BVI 1 share of 100% 100% —  Investment holding
(“Maxford Investments’) RERNES no par value RERR

with US$1

paid up

as consideration
BEXMET
ERREHN
TREEERD

Lucky Rich Investments Limited BVI 10,000 shares of 100% - 100%  Investment holding
(“Lucky Rich”) RERAEE no par value BB ER

with US$10,000

paid up

as consideration

B % 10,000% T
ERREHN
10,000 & & E i (7

Bawang International Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding and
Investments Limited B 1AL advertising agency
(Bawang Investments’) REBRREERE

BIERREFRAT
(IBERE])

Bawang International Group Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Investment holding,
Holding (HK) Limited B 1L advertising agency and
(‘Bawang Hong Kong’) trading of household

FIERSEER(ER)ERAR and personal care
(X)) products

RAER EERER
HEZXAR
EAEEER
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14 Investments in subsidiaries (continued) 14 RITBERABRNERE (&)

Proportion of ownership interest

EERAES
Group's
Place of Particulars of effective Held by
incorporation issued and interest Held by a subsidiary
Name of company and operation paid up capital KA%E the Company MK B  Principal activities
CEL RIREE S BROIRAZER EREE £ROFARA AARE ETEEH
Hong Kong Bawang Intemational Hong Kong HK$1 100% - 100%  Advertising agency
Trading Limited (‘Bawang Trading’) &% AT and trading of household
EABIERESBRAR and personal care
([BXB%)) products
EERERHEFAR
BAZEER
Bawang (Guangzhou) Co., Ltd. the PRC US$59,500,000 100% - 100% Manufacturing and
(‘Bawang Guangzhou”) EF 59,500,000% 1. trading of household and
FIBMNERDABIEN]) personal care products
LERBERAR
BEAEEER
Bawang (China) Beverage Co., the PRC HK$180,000,000 100% - 100% Trading of herbal tea
Ltd. (‘Bawang Beverage’) el 180,000,0007 7T products
BI(RE)SHARAA HERRER
([8I&H))
Bawang (China) Herbal Co., Ltd, the PRC RMB100,000,000 100% - 100% Plantation of herbs
(‘Bawang Herbal") i AR 100,000,007 EETER

BI(HE)FERERAT
((BEHEZ))
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(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

15 Inventories 15 78
(a) Inventories in the balance sheet (a) REHBEWERERE :
comprise:
The Group
KNEE
At 31 December
R+ZA=+—H
2011 2010
—e—-% —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AREF T
Raw materials JR A K 17,425 12,552
Work in progress &M@ 5,813 6,229
Finished goods 25K dm 59,157 40,987
Packing materials BEE 25,741 19,527
Others E A 4,023 4,921
112,159 84,216
(b) The analysis of the amount of b) EFFARBEARREEER
inventories recognised as an expense HMEREBESHMT :
and included in profit or loss is as
follows:
The Group
PN S
At 31 December
R+ZA=+—8
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T AR T
Carrying amount of EEFERAEE
inventories sold 500,255 553,206
Write down of inventories GFEKEER 54,710 10,811
Reversal of write-down inventories 2 [B] 17 & &k (B % & (10,811) -
544,154 564,017
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16 Trade and other receivables 16 ESZ R HAMEWRFKIE
The Group The Company
REHE ViN/NE]

At 31 December At 31 December

w+=—A=+—8H R+ZA=+—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—T——F Z—F-TF =—F-——F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMTT ARBTIT ARMTE ARETE

Trade debtors and B S EWHER
bills receivable e W E & 150,387 314,481 - —
Less: allowance for o REREBE
doubtful debts (MF3E16(0))
(Note 16(b)) (3,517) (1,792) — —
146,870 312,689 - —
Prepayment for purchase B B J& &k} 78 1+
of raw materials E 2,112 2,656 - —
Prepayment for purchase B% B & T & &
of fixed assets TEfF FRIB 26,944 18,478 - -
Prepaid advertising fee ENEEER 71,699 87,021 - —
Amounts due from JiE U Y B A )
subsidiaries (Note 16(d)) 7 18 (Bt 5£16(d)) - - 1,422,577 1,471,146
Other receivables H th UL 5K 1A 10,347 19,216 - 251
257,972 440,060 1,422,577 1,471,397
The credit terms granted by the Group to customers REEFH—KFETFTEFI0DENAHF
generally range from 30 days to 90 days. The Group’s FH - REBNEEBREIHAMF
credit policy is set out in Note 24(c). Generally, all of the 24(c) e —MRME * TBEE S N EM
trade and other receivables are expected to be recovered FEWHZBBBEEHN —FARAYWIE o

within one year.
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Included in trade and other receivables of the
Group are trade debtors of the Group and bills
receivable (net of allowance for doubtful debts) with
the following ageing analysis by due date as of the

balance sheet date:

B 5 K H it & W FE ()

AEEE S MEAMEKFIAE
EASENE S RUWHIAKE
WRE(BHBRRERE) - 1
HER  EHREMEKRIA
REPADTOREWT

The Group
PANES
At 31 December
®n+=—A=+—8©
2011 2010
—E——F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T AREETFTT
Current B &f 111,636 278,427
Less than 3 months past due 0 B D R 3R A 31,000 29,798
More than 3 months but less than B 1% 31 A B
6 months past due L rA6{E A 3,618 5,130
More than 6 months but less than B 1 % R efE A B
12 months past due L1218 A 3,529 553
More than 12 months past due B H3 % 1218 A 604 573
150,387 314,481
Less: impairment loss o REEREEE
for doubtful debts (3,517) (1,792)
146,870 312,689
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

Impairment losses in respect of trade debtors and
bills receivable of the Group are recorded using an
allowance account unless the Group is satisfied that
recovery of the amount is remote, in which case the
impairment loss is written off against trade debtors
and bills receivable directly (see Note 2(j)(i)).

The movement in the allowance for doubtful debts

16 B 5 K H B W R IE (8)

AEEEBESHREKFIEREKRE
BRREBKRGTARER®E -
BHRAEERAWEZKE
e - A REBKXE
BRiEE SR RE & ERE
& (R B E20)3) °

REEE(Z2R2BERNEKX)

during the year, including mainly the specific losses, RERNBES N T
is as follows:
The Group
AE

2011 2010
—E——F —E—Z2F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETF T
At 1 January n—HA—H 1,792 1,650
Impairment loss recognised EER R EEE 1,725 149
Uncollectible amounts written off ¥ 4% 7~ 7] U [8] & 28 - (7)
At 31 December R+=ZAR=+—8H 3,517 1,792

At 31 December 2011, the Group’s trade debtors
and bills receivable of RMB3,158,000 (2010:
RMB985,000) were individually determined to be
impaired. The individually impaired receivables
related to customers that were in financial difficulties
and management assessed that full amount of these
receivables cannot be recovered. Consequently full
provisions for these doubtful debts were recognised.
The Group does not hold any collateral over these
balances.

RZE——F+ZHA=+—
B A&EHE AR3158000
T(ZE—ZTF: AR
985,0007T) K & 5 & W3 IE K&
FE U B R 3R A BB
B ZEHBERBRENERRA
BFBAMBR#EREREF
s BT 8t 2 U E A/ 8 Uk 3
B AEEEHZER
RIEZERE  -AEBWER
ZEEBRFETWERSR -
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16 B 5 & H it B W IE 8)

16 Trade and other receivables (continued)

The ageing analysis of trade debtors and bills
receivable that are neither individually nor collectively

I S A 5l K B AR M 1R PR R IR
B B B 5 MR IR K e R

considered to be impaired are as follows: BERRROTWET -
The Group
K&
At 31 December
R+=ZA=+—H
2011 2010
= —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREETF T
_Neither past due nor impaired W@ fssE 111368 277,710
Less than 3 months past due w0 Hf D> R 31E A 30,928 29,721
More than 3 months but less than BEZHN3EAR
6 months past due L HA6{E A 3,610 5,117
More than 6 months but less than wmHEZReE AR
12 months past due L1218 A 962 141
More than 12 months but less than w2 M 12{8 A B
24 months past due L ri24(E A 2 —
e msoz 34,979
146,870 312,689

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired
relate to a wide range of customers for whom there
was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based
on past experience, management believes that no
impairment allowance is necessary in respect of
these balances as there has not been a significant
change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. The Group does not
hold any collateral over these balances.

I 4 780 53 o Ok (8 #Y U SR IR BB
RRBEZNEF  REODH
I 48 380 B A R RS % o

81 H 18 I 4 1 R {E A9 B UK
HEETEYEFPAMR %%
EFERASENXZREHER
o MRRERFPHEHRERE
RV EHLBANE BZF
BARDERAAAZENE
REAEER  BEEEREE
TR SERERERERS - X
SETENXFERTETM
E#fm e
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16 Trade and other receivables (continued) 16 E5 K& H it FE YW FKIE (4)
These amounts due from subsidiaries of the NN N= o 30 g =N O
Company are unsecured, non-interest bearing and REEE  REREHERK
are expected to be repaid within the next twelve +-EAARERE -
months.
17 Pledged deposits 17 A FRK
The balance as at 31 December 2010 represented R_E—ZTF+_HA=+—HHE
the bank deposits of RMB220,000,000 pledged by HRIEBTEMABHBRITEMNDIT
Bawang Guangzhou in favour of China Merchants Bank (TEERITEMNITREAA
Guangzhou Branch (“CMB Guangzhou Branch”), in MZDITERELNEBMERORT
respect of the bills payable accepted by CMB Guangzhou T AR #220,000,0007C ° ;%7
Branch. Such pledged deposits were released upon the ERZZE——FNAZ+ZHESH
payment of the bills payable by Bawang Guangzhou on TEMEZFEEEBER o

22 June 2011.
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18 Cash and cash equivalents

18 WERBEEEY

The Group The Company
PN S ViN/NE]
At 31 December At 31 December
wn+ZA=+—8 R+ZA=+—8H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-——F CZT-TF ZE2E-—-F C"ZT-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT ARBTIT AR®TR AREBTEX
Deposits with banks within & 17 7 B #£ = {@ 7
three months to A B E A
maturity when placed RITEEBER - 614,976 - —
Deposits with banks within & 17 7% B #£ 75 {@ 5
six months to AR A
maturity when placed RITEBER - 60,000 - —
Cash at bank and in hand B 17458 M IR & 602,672 511,568 85,408 100,104
602,672 1,186,544 85,408 100,104

As at 31 December 2011, cash and cash equivalents in
the amount of RMB478,985,000 (31 December 2010:
RMB1,052,380,000) are dominated in RMB. RMB is not
a freely convertible currency and the remittance of funds
out of the PRC is subject to the exchange restriction
imposed by the PRC government.

RZZTE——F+-_A=+—H K&
SEA AR®A478,985,000L (=&
—ZEF+-_A=+—H8: AR¥
1,052,380,0007C) IR & K IR & &
BYWAAREE ARBILIESF
MEBHEE BESELFRHE
AN R BT e B SN BE B Il T AR
R o
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19 Trade and other payables

19 ES K EEFKIE

The Group The Company
REHE ViN/NE]
At 31 December At 31 December
®m+—-—A=+—8 R+ZA=+—H
2011 2010 2011 2010
—E-—5F5 =ZE-TF —FT-—5 ZT-ZF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT AR®TT AR®TRT AR%®Trx
Trade payables 2 5 EMNRIE 65,341 58,673 - —
Receipts in advance T8 W SR IR 30,530 57,460 - —
Promotion fee payable FEfTHEE & A 20,946 33,092 - —
Accrued payroll ERTE 27,390 18,525 263 255
Amounts due to & - B B A R 3B
subsidiaries - — 2,331 —
Derivative financial TESMT A
instruments - 3,757 - —
Other payables and H b B RE K
accruals fEET & A 57,618 57,286 1,328 100
201,825 228,793 3,922 355

The credit period granted by the suppliers ranges from 30
days to 90 days.

Included in trade and other payables are trade creditors
with the following ageing analysis of the balance sheet

RHEEETHEAMRN TR E
90H o

BHREMENFTIAEREE S EN
R RERE BRI ASITHER

date: BT
The Group
REE
At 31 December
w+=—A=+—8
2011 2010
—E——F —ET—2F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARE T AREF T
Due within 1 month or on demand 11E8 B R B H gl d% 38 AN

1Eig 56,514 40,390
Due after 1 month but within 3 months 118 A % 1B31@ A W EI &3 8,827 18,283
65,341 58,673
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20 Bank loans and overdrafts 20 IRITERREX
The Group
PN S
At 31 December
R+=-—A=+—H
2011 2010
S —z-zf
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBEF T
Secured bank loan within 1 year 1FANEER
BFEABITER - 209,787
The balance as at 31 December 2010 mainly represented RZZE—ZTF+_A=+—HBHHE
a short-term loan provided by China Merchants Bank HREZRBERITEAESITAAR
Hong Kong Branch to Bawang Hong Kong at an interest ANMEBARFEEEBIRENFEF
rate of 3.3% per annum. The loan was repaid on 22 June ERIBINMBEHER - BEEELD
2011. RZB——FRA-_+t_-_HEEZ
B o
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N

21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 LUEREEMNRH 3R
Z

The Board of Directors approved a Pre-IPO Share
Option Scheme on 10 December 2008. On 8
June 2009, the Company conditionally granted
certain Pre-IPO share options to the directors,
senior management and employees under this Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme. The exercise of these
share options would entitle two of the Company’s
directors to subscribe for an aggregate of 4,200,000
shares of the Company, and forty of senior
management and employees for an aggregate
of 10,332,000 shares. According to the grant
letters signed by the Company and the beneficial
individuals, the exercise price of each share under
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is either at par
value of HK$0.1 (four people under this tranche
including two directors), or at HK$1.19, representing
a 50% discount to the offer price of HK$2.38 under
the global offering (thirty eight people under this
tranche). Each option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Option Scheme has a vesting period of one to
five years, commencing from the listing date and the
options are exercisable until 8 June 2019.

Exen _ZTENF+_H
THEMAEFT XA AHAEEAE
RiEE - RZEZAENA
NB  ARFBGEHEERE
RN E R BARER 8l M
EE SREEEKERE
BERTETERARESER
BRE THELHSFERER
TARAMBEERESG L&
4,200,000 fx " & & AR 17 - BA
PAO0Z SR EEEBMEER
B2 4 ££10,332,000 0% A& A 7] i
MDEIRER - IRBARRQFIEEGE
RmABHETHG - BR
AHAZERBRETSIIETH
ERERH{TEEREEMEO
BT (AATELLS - P BEEM
ZEE)K119B T BRE
HBEETHEE2.38B TITE
50% (38 ATELLFI) - IRIZH X
AREEABRESEREN
BERENTESFHRH
IWHBRH —FERF AT
EERENEAR-_T—LEN
ANBRI{THE -
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126 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %8 F B BX (£ ) £ B R A

21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 LUEREEMNRH 3
(continued) 2 (1)
() The terms and conditions of the grants (i) BFEHREGSNT :
are as follows:
Contractual
Number of life
instruments Vesting conditions of options
BREHE TREEG BRESHD
Options granted RTEEMNHERE
to directors:
—on8June2009 —ZETAFRANR 1,260,000 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRAZHEMF T
—on8June 2009 —ZZETNAFARANA 735,000 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRAZHE2F T
—on8June2009 —ZETAFRANR 735,000 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRA=HEF3F T
— on 8 June 2009 ZZEENFRANA 735,000 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRAZHE4F T
—on8June2009 —ZEEAFSANR 735,000 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
“ETNFLRA=HEREF TF
Options granted BTEENBERE
to employees:
— on 8 June 2009 ZZZAFRANR 1,669,920 1 year from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRAZHEMF T
— on 8 June 2009 ZZEAFRANR 1,868,160 2 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRAZHE2F T
—on8June 2009 —ZZETNFARANA 2,066,400 3 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
“ETNFLRA=HEF3F T
— on 8 June 2009 ZEEAFRANR 2,264,640 4 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRAZHE4F T
— on 8 June 2009 ZEENFRANR 2,462,880 5 years from 3 July 2009 10 years
ZETNFLRA=HERSF T
Total share options 1% T B I i 48 21
granted 14,532,000
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21 Equity settled share-based transactions

21 UEREENRMD AR

(continued) Z (&)
(a) Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) B X 2 BA 5 £ A RS B 4 &1
B (E)
(ii) The number and weighted average (i) BREBBERNEFY
exercise prices of share options are as TEEWNT :
follows:
2011 2010
—E2-—F% —T-TF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise  Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
R g
TEE BREXAE IEE BEREHE
(in HK$) ’000 (in HK$) 000
(Bx) T (&7T) T
Outstanding at the beginning 7 F 718 1% R 17 68
of the year 0.58 11,291 0.71 14,322
Exercised during the year FRITE 0.10 (1,575) 0.38 (2,821)
Forfeited during the year ERNKK 1.19 (1,802) 1.19 (210)
Outstanding at the end RERKHRITE
of the year 0.54 7,914 0.58 11,291
Exercisable at the end RERE AT
of the year 1.19 724 1.19 67

The weighted average share price at the date
of exercise for shares options exercised during
the year was HK$1.56 (2010: HK$5.42).

The options outstanding at 31 December 2011
had an exercise price of HK$0.1 or HK$1.19
and a weighted average remaining contractual
life of 7.43 years. (2010: 8.43 years)

NS = ol -
B 1T(E B R A NiE
BHEEBEAEISGEL(ZZ
—ZTFE 5428 7T) °

RZZE——FF+=A
=+—HHERTENER
EWITEE BB T
11987 N T35 Tk
AHEHRARTIBFE(ZT
—ZF 1 843F) o
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21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 UEFZEEMNKRH AR
(continued) 2 (\)

(iii) Fair value of share options and

(il) MEELARERRK

assumptions

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based
on a binomial model. The contractual life of
the share option is used as an input into this
model.

Fair value of share options and

assumptions

Weighted average fair value at RETEA/MMETH
measurement date (HK$) NABEGET)

Share price (HK$) i E (B T)
Exercise price (HK$) TEE (BT
Expected volatility T8 B 1R
Option life (in years) BREFH(F)
Expected dividends TEHEIAR &
Risk-free interest rate 3 B ) =

The expected volatility is based on the
average of the historical daily volatility of ten
comparable companies as of the grant date
over the shorter of 10 years and the period
up to the listing date. Expected dividends
are based on management’s best estimate.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions
could materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken
into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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B R I R EUR TS B 2
REEZERLBREN
NABEAME - REBR
BRARBEIEHAZIA
BAfRET - BIRENAH
FHREZRENGTES
2 o

MEREAOARERRR

2.0
2.268

0.1 or (3) 1.134
52.8%

10

0%

2.84%

TBEHRIE TR B A E
HEN+HREMRAE
BRRBETFHERD
HEAZE E A2 M (B
HREHE)NBEFHE
BKIEERE - AR B X
THEERBELNERL

AR BEGBITAE

=
REE -

ARG AR T BRES
iRt - ST EPTE X B IRTS
RETFTEHNRAAEE
B - I RE BRI - T
SR B IR T RE AR T
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21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 LUEREEMNRH 3R
(continued) Z (&)

(iii) Fair value of share options and
assumptions (continued)
During the year ended 31 December 2011,
equity-settled share-based payments
expenses amounted to RMB3,004,000 (2010:
RMB8,413,000) were recognised in the
consolidated income statement.

The sole shareholders of the Company approved
and adopted the Share Option Scheme on 20 May
2009. On 26 July 2011, the Company conditionally
granted certain share options to two employees
under this Share Option Scheme. The exercise of
these share options would entitle the two employees
to subscribe for an aggregate of 1,380,000
shares of the Company. According to the grant
letters signed by the Company and the beneficial
individuals, the exercise price under the Share
Option Scheme is at HK$1.31 per share. Each
option granted under the Share Option Scheme has
a vesting period of one to five years, commencing
from the date of joining the Group of the two
employees and the options are exercisable until 26
July 2021.

(i) BBEELAABERMBER
(#8)
REBEE-T——%F+_A
=+—HLEFE  BERA
BB R PR A S
HEERO IR
& %8 & A R 3,004,000
T(ZE—ZFF : AR
8,413,0007T) °

AARE—RER-_FTTNF
FRAZTHABENRMNT ILE
AEtE - R —_T——F+ A
Z+R8 ARREIEER
BERETSRNREEES R
TETHERE TELZEER
BETZMEEERBA K
1,380,000 i 2 2 & iR 17 A9 4
Mo BEBEARAEGEZRA
BEIWR T K - BREETE
THERRHITEER1.318
Lo BRIBBERENEFENE
MERENTESSHRBZ
MEEEXSEER AR
—FERF  FIEBRENA
R_E - —F+A=-+/XHH
17{E o
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21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 UEZEENRMO AR

(continued) 2 (1)
() The terms and conditions of the grants (i) BFEHRESNT :
are as follows:
Contractual
Number of life
instruments Vesting conditions of options
EREZE TREE BRESHH
Options granted to % T M & € 8 1) I Ik 4
two emplyees

Employee 1 EE 1
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtAF-+H 184,000 1 year from 1 June 2011 10 years
—E——F R H-BRiHE +45
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtA-+H 184,000 2 years from 1 June 2011 10 years
—FNH—Bei2E +45
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtA-+H 184,000 3 years from 1 June 2011 10 years
—E——FNH—HBRBF3E +45
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtA-+H 184,000 4 years from 1 June 2011 10 years
—E——FH—BRRiH4E +45
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtA-+H 184,000 5 years from 1 June 2011 10 years
—FNH—Bei5E +45

Employee 2 EE2

(forfeited in 2011)  (RZF——FRXH)

—on26Juy2011 ——ZE——FLA=-+XH 92,000 1 year from 4 July 2011 10 years
—E——Ft+AMBRIHE +45
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtA-+H 92,000 2 years from 4 July 2011 10 years
—E——Ft+AMBRE2E +45
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtAF-+H 92,000 3 years from 4 July 2011 10 years
—E——F+ AMBRE3FE +45
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtA-+H 92,000 4 years from 4 July 2011 10 years
—E——Ft+AMBRE4AF +4
—on26Juy2011 ——Z——FtA-+H 92,000 5 years from 4 July 2011 10 years
—E——F+AMBREF +4

1,380,000
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21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 LUEREEMNRH 3R
(continued) Z (&)
(b) Share Option Scheme (continued) (b) FEBXHERTEI (&)
(i) The number and weighted average (i) WEREHRERMEFH
exercise prices of share options are as fTHEEMT :
follows:
2011 2010
—E-—fF ZT-%F
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise  Number of
price options price shares
EFH IHEF
THEE BREZE TEE  BERREEA
(in HK$) ’000 (in HK$) ‘000
() 5F (&) F
Outstanding at the beginning 7 4F #] % 4 & 17 {8
of the year — = — -
Granted during the year FAF L 1.31 1,380 — -
Forfeited during the year FREH 1.31 (920) — —
Outstanding at the end A FERE @ ARITE
of the year 1.31 460 — —
Exercisable at the end REREATITHE
of the year = = — —

The options outstanding at 31 December
2011 had an exercise price of HK$1.31 and a
weighted average remaining contractual life of
9.57 years.

R=ZF—-——F+=H
=t BREARTENBR
RENITHRERISET -
MEFHRBEDFHE
9.57% o
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21 Equity settled share-based transactions 21 UEFZEEMNKRH AR
(continued) 2 (\)

(iif) Fair value of share options and

(i) MEELARERRK

assumptions

The fair value of services received in return
for share options granted is measured by
reference to the fair value of share options
granted. The estimate of the fair value of the
share options granted is measured based
on a binomial model. The contractual life of
the share option is used as an input into this
model.

Fair value of share options and

assumptions

Weighted average fair value RETE B8 MEFH
at measurement date (HK$) ANABECET)

Share price (HK$) f&1E (B T)
Exercise price (HK$) TEEGET)
Expected volatility 8 B 18
Option life (in years) BREFSH(F)
Expected dividends TEHEIAR B
Risk-free interest rate 3 B )

The expected volatility is based on the
average of the historical daily volatility of ten
comparable companies as of the grant date
over the bypast 10 years or the period up to
the listing date. Expected dividends are based
on management’s best estimate. Changes
in the subjective input assumptions could
materially affect the fair value estimate.

Share options were granted under a service
condition. This condition has not been taken
into account in the grant date fair value
measurement of the services received. There
were no market conditions associated with the
share option grants.
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21 Equity settled share-based transactions

(continued)

(b) Share Option Scheme (continued)

(iii) Fair value of share options and

assumptions (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2011,
equity-settled share-based payments expenses
in respect of these share options amounting

to RMB55,000 (2010: not applicable) were

recognised in the

statement.

22

consolidated

income

Income tax in the balance sheet

(a) Current taxation in the balance sheet

== N\ 2

21 LAER
2 (%)

(b) FRBx#EEHR (&)
(i) BEELAARERRR

(%)
RBE-_Z——F+_H
=+—HLFE  BERAE
HIERRPERNAER
HEHBRMIANRAZ S
B A AR M55000T (=
T—TF: TEA)

FEIRO IR

22 EEEBBRANAENR

(a) RERAREXAMABRIR

represents: &
The Group
&

2011 2010

—E——F —E-TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AREFIT

Provision for PRC income tax FRFRBFTEHEE

for the year (Note 7(a)) (Mt3E7(a)) = 9,660
Provision for Hong Kong FREBNESHEE

Profits Tax for the year (M 5E7(@))

(Note 7(a)) = 3,745
PRC income tax paid EfFR RS - (26,216)
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BENEBFEH — (81)

- (12,892)
Balance of PRC income tax BAEFED
and Hong Kong Profits Tax FEIFTS R
relating to prior years BEANEH &8 9,656 —
9,656 (12,892)
Represented by: K&
Income tax payables FERTBDERFT 15 B 9,656 -
Income tax recoverable JFE U BN HA FT 15 Bt - (12,892)
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22 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued) 2 EEBEBEEANNFREN

\

)
The Group b.
The components of deferred tax assets recognised REHEEBBERANEZNIE
in the consolidated balance sheet and the EHTEEEMNAKBY REF
movements during the year are as follows: NEHWT :
Advertising
and
promotional
expenses
exceeding
the
deduction
allowance
limit in the
current year
to be carried Tax
Inventory forward losses
provision Accruals (note (i) (note (ii)) Others Total
THETEE
NEEREE
EREBAE
ERAMNB BE
RELE AR RENSS Bi
& EH (GE) (B &5 (ii)) Hit CL

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR ARET:E

Deferred tax arising from: EZHEE4ER :

At 1 January 2010 “Z-ZF-f-H - - - - - -
Credited to profit or loss HFABR 1,811 7,199 13,224 4,591 264 27,089
At 31 December 2010 —T-TF
+-R=+-H 1,811 7,199 13,204 4,591 264 27,089
At 1 January 2011 —2——%-A-H 1,811 7,199 13,224 4,591 264 27,089
Credited/(charged) to A/ UK R
profit or loss 5,572 (3,007) 18,854 34,134 (37) 55,516
At 31 December 2011 —T——fF
+ZR=+-H 7,383 4192 32,078 38,725 227 82,605
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22

Income tax in the balance

sheet (continued)

The Group (continued)

Notes:

)

(i

The

According to the relevant tax rules and regulations in the PRC,
the annual deduction limit of advertising and promotional
expenses for cosmetic manufacturing enterprises (“the annual
deduction limit”) is 30% of total sales, effective from 1 January
2008 till 31 December 2010. After the expiry of the relevant
tax rules and regulations, the annual deduction limit is 15% of
total sales in 2011. The advertising and promotional expenses
exceeding the annual deduction allowance limit can be carried
forward for deduction in future years. Accordingly, deferred tax
assets arising from the advertising and promotional expenses
exceeding the deduction allowance limit in the current year
to be carried forward is recognised. It is determined by
management that it is probable that future taxable profits will
be available for these temporary differences to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The tax losses were incurred by Bawang Guangzhou
incorporated in the PRC and will expire in five years from
the year in which the loss originated. It is determined by
management that it is probable that future taxable profits
against which the losses can be utilized will be available before
they expire.

deferred tax liability recognised in the

consolidated balance sheet and the movements
during the year are as follows:

22

BERAMAER

FHRE(E)
R

[0) RIBEFEAREMEGERKG
BAKRGES B_TZTNFE—A
—BREEZE=_ZT—ZTF+=A
=+— Bl tHREELES
FHEEREEERARIKREA
(TFEMBRBRE]) ABHEEEN
30% ° FE% B BT % 5 Bl R AR5
Hng T —FEANFE
MERRERBEHEFEN15%  E
ERECERBRASFOHNKE
HE AIAEENEEEHED
BRo-BAlt AEERESEREE
B F B 7N F [ HIBR PR &8 i AT BA
FEAEFEEENRO B E
RTHEBENREMBHEE - B
BEEFAEEETERARR
1R AT BEEE A B Y FE B RIDE A A
EINELATE NG RFEER -

(ii) FRENEARBEEEMEENT
BHEEBERARREFAEE - F
12 B TE 5T AN & @ £ 7] 7B R A9 R 2K
1R ] BE EE A R 49 | FE B R B8 AR A
AN LR FEIE -

ReHEERBERAERNIE
EHMEEBEREFAZEEH M
T~

Deferred tax
liability arising
from
undistributed
earning of

PRC subsidiary
MR AR
RKAPRBFNEED
EEBEEE

At 1 January 2010
Payment

R-_FT—FTF—H—H
RE XS

20,062
(18,031)

At 31 December 2010 and
31 December 2011

R=F-FE+-A=+-BR
—F——Ft-A=t-A

2,031
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22 Income tax in the balance sheet (continued)

I BERAMNAER

I
\

The Group
K&
At 31 December
R+ZA=+—H

2011 2010

—E——fF —ZET-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREBT T AREFIT
Net deferred tax asset recognised MNEEBBEXR D ERAL

in the balance sheet RIERIEE EF T 82,605 27,089
Net deferred tax liability recognised R EE B BEXR T HERL

in the balance sheet RERIBEEFE (2,031) (2,031)

80,574 25,058

At 31 December 2011, deferred tax assets were
not recognised in relation to the cumulative tax
losses of certain subsidiaries in the PRC and
Hong Kong, amounting to RMB92,462,000 (2010:
nil) and RMB31,709,000 (2010: RMB5,856,000)
respectively. The tax losses incurred by the
subsidiaries incorporated in the PRC will expire in
five years from the year which the loss originated,
while the ones incurred by the subsidiaries in Hong
Kong do not expire under current tax legislation
in Hong Kong. In addition, deferred tax assets
were not recognised in relation to other deductible
temporary differences of certain subsidiaries in the
PRC, amounting to RMB36,010,000 (2010: nil).

WZ_E——F+=_A=+—H
AEBEFRAERBTENS
FTHBRARWRFEAEMNZ R
AT B 1B A R 92,462,000
T(ZE—TF  B)MAR
31,709,000 (= & —F F :
A R #5,856,0007T) 7 Bl #E 32
EEFSTEE - AP B+ E
AEMBARELENTKER
HREBEELEAFRNERD
PR o MAERTHBEAT « A
EEMBRAREENHIEER
REEIMER - I AEE
METHBRRIWAREM
TENMNEREZEEARK
36,010,000 L(ZF —F F :
EI)ERELEFSHEE -
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends

The reconciliation between the opening and closing
balances of each component of the Group’s
consolidated equity is set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Details of the
changes in the Company’s individual components
of equity between the beginning and the end of the

year are set out below:

23 IR

CEERRE

REBSHERGEAKSD
B ER B B R s eR 2 RV B
ﬁAAT?FEE“_*:@J%%EFi@J IS
N AR R % ALK BB 9 ) R A7) ER
HREHRZENEHFBN
o

The Company b. R/ |
Share Share Capital  Translation Accumulated Total
Note capital premium reserve reserve losses equity
Wiz B& RAEE BRiEE ERRE ZitER ERfH
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR ARETR ARETR ARETT ARETE
Balance at 1 January 2010 R-Z-Z5-fF-H
e 256,134 1,342,774 6,435 - 3417) 1,601,926
Changes in equity for 2010: E-ZERERAE:
Dividends approved in respect BiEZEEERE
of the previous year 23(0)(i) - - - - (216,108) (216,108)
Dividends declared in respect BitEZREERE
of the current year 230)) - - - - (101,600) (101,600)
Shares issued under REERETEEG
share option scheme g 23 246 5,865 (5,180) - - 931
Equity settled share-based NEREENRN
transactions TRRS - - 8413 - - 8413
Total comprehensive income ERGANELE
for the year - - - (34,877) 312,461 277584
Balance at 31 December 2010 R-Z-F&
and 1 January 2011 +ZA=t+-8K
—Z2--%-5-H
&8 256380 12348639 9,668 (34877) @664 1571146
Changes in equity for 2011: “E--ERHE8:
Shares issued under share RIEERRE
option scheme sEBTHRG 23 131 3,051 (3.051) - - 131
Equity settled share-based NEREENRR
transactions i P - - 3,059 - - 3,059
Total comprehensive income NEANERE
for the year - - - (45,868) (24,405) (70,273)
Balance at 31 December 2011 R=-%—-£
TZAZT-A&H 256,511 1351690 9676 (80,745) (33069 1,504,063
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 23 JRA& -~ fEE R K E (@)
(b) Dividends (b) &R
(i) Dividends payable to equity (i) *LFEEBFEAER
shareholders of the Company BIEEMERS
attributable to the year
For the year ended
31 December
HE+-_B=+—HItFE
2011 2010
—2——F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBETF T
No dividend declared and paid RZ-ZZT— —FFE &
in 2011 (Interim and special & R AAERE
dividends declared and (EZZE—ZEFE%
paid in 2010: HK 4 cents per N2 B A ER AR R
ordinary shares) e - FRE®ER
& B Al = 101,600
(ii) Dividends payable to equity (i) REARELERELT
shareholders of the Company EaBEAZTHBLUE
attributable to the previous financial HREERMRA
year, approved and paid during the year
For the year ended
31 December
HE+-_A=+t—HItFE
2011 2010
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F ARBTF T
No final dividend in respect RIE——FFE
of the previous financial year, ) & 57 {5 &9 JA 7
approved and paid in 2011 MHFEEFREKE
(2010: HK 4.25 cents per (Z=2—ZF : R
ordinary share) LB AR B 4.2500) — 108,054
No special dividend in respect W ~ZF——F £ [F
of the previous financial year, ) & 57 {5 &9 JA 7
approved and paid in 2011 B 6 JE R B AR B
(2010: HK 4.25 cents (Z=2—ZF : g
per ordinary share) LB AR B 4.2500) — 108,054
— 216,108
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 23 BR A~ ~ B R KR E (@)

Authorised and issued share capital EERBRITERS
2011 2010
—E——F —TFF
No. of shares No. of shares
BHBEE B fn 2 B
('000) RMB’000 ('000) RMB’000
() AR®T T (F) ARETT
Authorised: ERE
Ordinary shares of FR0AETZ
HK$0.1 each A 10,000,000 880,500 10,000,000 880,500
Ordinary shares, EERTRHE
issued and BER
fully paid:
At 1 January R—HA—H 2,907,821 256,380 2,905,000 256,134
Shares issued under 18 A% #E 5t 2l
share option 1T 2 B0
scheme (i) 1,575 131 2,821 246
At 31 December R+ZA=+—H 2,909,396 256,511 2,907,821 256,380
The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive B IEG AGEKR RS
dividends as declared from time to time and are REIE S RIEAANTES F
entitled to one vote per share at meetings of the EER—ZHER - G AA T
Company. All ordinary shares rank equally with HMESBREEmMS  FIAETER
regard to the Company’s residual assets. SERZSREZ o
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(i)

CBAAREHR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued) 23 B - REERERE®@
Shares issued under share option (i) REBREHSIRTZ
scheme B {7
In July 2011, options were exercised to RZZT——FtH  BR
subscribe for 1,575,000 ordinary shares in the EEEABRBITEEBR
Company at a consideration of HK$157,500 # R B AN A F]1,575,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB130,977), MRE AR - (TR ARAEFT
which  was credited to share capital. X 5T 8 ¥ (8 R 157,500%
RMB3,051,000 has been transferred from the T (#r & AR #¥130,977
capital reserve to the share premium account L) R FER AR ©
in accordance with policy set out in Note 2k ik S - AR B BT 5 2(K)(iil) BT
(ii). MEBETHE - ANAQ A

EARXFEEDARE
3,051,000 E AR E o
Terms of unexpired and unexercised (i) REHBEXREXBREKTT
share options at balance sheet date ERERESEY
2011 2010
Exercise —E——fF —E-ZF
price Number Number
Exercise period 1THH THE =] FgE]
Pre-IPO Share EPANGE: ]
Option Scheme AR AT
—4July2010to —ZE—ZFLAMNHEAZE
8 June 2019 —E-AFERANAR HK$O0.1 4,725,000 6,300,000
HK$1.19 3,189,480 4,991,280
Share Option fE AR R 8l
Scheme
—4July2012tc —E——F+AFMUAERE
26 July 2021 —E-—%F
+HAZ=Z+/<H HK$1.31 460,000 —
8,374,480 11,291,280

140 BaWang International (Group) Holding Limited %8 F B BX (£ E ) £k B R A




Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt %% 3R = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(i)

0

(ii)

(iii)

Terms of unexpired and unexercised
share options at balance sheet date
(continued)

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for
one ordinary share in the Company. Further
details of these options are set out in Note 21
to the financial statements.

Share premium

The application of the share premium account
of the Company is governed by the Companies
Law (Revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
funds in the share premium are distributable
to the shareholders of the Company provided
that immediately following the date on which
the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its
debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

Capital reserve

The capital reserve represents the portion of
the grant date fair value of unexercised share
options granted to employees of the Company
that has been recognised in accordance with
the accounting policy adopted for share-based
payments in Note 2(k)(iii).

PRC statutory reserves

PRC statutory reserves were established in
accordance with the relevant PRC rules and
regulations and the articles of association of
the PRC subsidiary of the Group, Bawang
Guangzhou. Transfers to the reserves were
approved by the board of directors of Bawang
Guangzhou.

23 IR - B R R E

(i)

(i)

(i)

(iii)

REHEHABXREBRKXTT
ER AR ER (5)

SHBRER TRHBEAR
BARB—IREBAE - BB
PR — TR FBIIER
BAAsBmR M 21 -

BRERR

AR A B AN it 18 B ) B
XHRSESRRDE(KE
RIFTARE - BRIFERER
AR R B ER - K
REIBRENEER R XD
REHNER - BRIAR
AT E B A B R A Ak
ROMKBRE o

& 31 |

BT ARGE SR ERE
RITEBE D - GERE
THEO AR BEEZERNW
2K (iR D X By = &
BURR B A REHERER -

o B % E
hEUEERBIIRIEAR
BRI S AR B IA e AR
BB B ARBEERE
MEVRBIERR R © EH
MEHCEBIEMNES
U -
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(iii) PRC statutory reserves (continued)

Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang Beverage,
which are wholly foreign owned enterprises
established in the PRC, are required to transfer
at least 10% of their net profit (after offsetting
prior year losses), as determined under the
PRC accounting rules and regulations, to
statutory general reserve until the reserve
balance reaches 50% of the registered capital
under the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the entity. The transfer to
this reserve must be made before distribution
of dividends to the equity shareholder. No
appropriation to statutory reserves was
made by Bawang Guangzhou and Bawang
Beverage as of 31 December 2011 (2010: nil),
as they recorded a loss for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Statutory general reserve can be used to make
good prior years’ losses, if any, and may be
converted into share capital by issuing new
shares to equity shareholders proportionate
to their existing percentage of equity interests
provided that the balance after such issue is
not less than 25% of the registered capital.

23 R A

N 1:1% 1% )54 HX = (8)

(iii) hEEE®ER(E)
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23 Capital, reserves and dividends (continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Merger reserve

On 20 December 2007, Bawang Hong Kong,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company,
acquired all the equity interest of Bawang
Guangzhou amounting to US$12,500,000,
which was previously held by a company
owned by the Controling Shareholders,
at a consideration of the same amount.
Accordingly, the share capital of Bawang
Guangzhou was eliminated and a merger
reserve arose due to foreign exchange
differences.

Translation reserve

Translation reserve comprises all foreign
exchange differences arising from the
translation of the financial statements of the
operations outside the PRC.

Distributability of reserves

The aggregate amount of distributable
reserves of the Company as at 31 December
2011  was RMB1,318,621,000 (2010:
RMB1,339,975,000).

The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital
base so as to maintain creditor and market
confidence and to sustain future development of
the business. The Group defines the capital of the
Group as the total shareholders’ equity.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are
subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

23 IR - B R R E

m)Aﬁﬁr

R-BE+F+ A=+
B ARRZ2EWBAR
BITEABUREEBK
812,500,000 T E T
BN 2R (2 AR
RIRRER & — KA Bl
B) ALBITEMOK
RIS - R AE K
EHEELXAHREE -

(v) EER MW
EX FEEERREREE
SNETG 2 TS SRR PTE L
M ERRE R ZHE -

(vi) ¥ 9 iR 6% i
m—f——¢+ A
=+ —H '  XRQRAHW
Tﬁ“mﬁ{éﬁA
R ¥ 1,318,621,000 JT
(ZE—ZTF: ARK
1,339,975,0007T ) °

REENBREEEFRESR
RER  ARFEEANRTS
Bl UERXFHBEREERE
B -AEEKERERRKE
Ex\ﬁ(-ﬁﬁ o

—»

RR AR E AR E A B
HONRERRERS
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24 TRiEREERAAEBE

24 Financial risk management and fair

values

The Group has exposure to the following risks in the AEERBEEBBEPAZIAT
normal course of business: [ fg

e  Foreign currency risk o HNER R

e Interest rate risk . ﬂ X [E g

e Credit risk s FERR

e Liquidity risk e mHEERAR

This note presents information about the Group’s AFEEFAEBAEE AR i
exposure to each of the above risks, the Group’s Ry ANEEFHEEEERRADB
objectives, policies and processes for measuring and =R EERF

managing risk.

The Board of Directors has overall responsibility for EEerREBERYNERLRE

the establishment and oversight of the Group’s risk
management framework.

The Group’s risk management policies are established
to identify and analyse the risks faced by the Group, to
set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor
risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies
and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes
in market conditions and the Group’s activities. The
Group, through its training and management standards
and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment in which all employees
understand their roles and obligations.

MEREERE -

A& EFERREEBRR - L@
RoMASEMEESRR  RZ
HEEORR ERRESEE - AR
BRI SEERELRIAA
$EIEHH$MJJ—LMEEEBZ%&§
B ARBRT IS AN R AN B X
E’J“@J AEBEEHEEZBEINE
BAREERF  BRALEZAER
MEERE  EMERETHEES
EVBRE e B AE o

AEBAZINER R EIR
BEBEREMRIZEEBAIN
I E R B AR IR
TREER Eﬂs&%b{,ﬁ%%gﬁtlﬂ
BREEEUIINEEE

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily
through sales and purchases and other transactions
which give rise to receivables, payables and
cash balances that are denominated in a foreign
currency, i.e. a currency other than the functional
currency of the operations to which the transactions
relate.
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24 Financial risk management and fair 24 ERiEKREERAAEE
values (continued) (%)
Included in assets and liabilities are the following SFABENEBEELNEREINAE
amounts denominated in a currency other than the B LAINE & 5T E &) 3E W
functional currency of the entity to which they relate: s @

At 31 December

R+ZA=+—8
2011 2010
—E——F —E—TF
Cash and cash equivalents BE&RBEEZEY
HK$ ('000) B (o) 128,105 133,779
US$ ('000) Zx(Fr) 3,131 2,846
Prepayment A RE
US $ (000) Erx(Fm1) = 1,640
HK$ ('000) BT (Fr) - 553
SG$ ('000) oo (Fr) - 54
Trade and other receivables £ 5 & H b fE U 218
HK$ ('000) B (o) 12,058 22,556
Bank loans and overdraft RITERREX
US$ ('000) Erx(Fm1) = (31,690)
Trade and other payables ESgREMEMNRE
HK$ ('000) B (o) (6,547) (7,868)
SG$ ('000) Erx(Fm) (314) —
Current tax payables FE 13 BD B B 18
HK$ ('000) B (Fr) (728) (3,759)
The Group is exposed to foreign currency risk on REBEETER BT
the bank deposits, prepayment, trade and other IH B RHEMEWREIE - R
receivables, bank loans and overdraft, trade and TEREREY HMEN A
other payables, and current tax payables. The 2 & A5F BN ER #5387 T R b
currencies giving rise to this risk are primarily Hong PERE P - EERWEE N EIE
Kong Dollars (“HKD”), United States Dollars (“USD”) FTEAET(BT]) - £
and Singapore Dollars (“SGD”). (IZ=7T)) B s oo ([ %
TTl) e

Annual Report 2011 =& — —FF8, 145



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt #% 3 = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

24 Financial risk management and fair 24 TRIEREERAAEBE
values (continued) €-)
Sensitivity analysis BWRERESIN
The foreign currency sensitivity is calculated based BREASEREERANEE
on the major net foreign currency exposure of the A FE 5 B B 5F & A O FE 8 R%
Group as at the balance sheet dates, assuming 5% EoMUET(BREARE LA
shift of RMB against HKD, USD and SGD are as T ETRFMETEERAR
follows: 5%) :
Results from a 5% strengthening of the RMB ARBE BT Zx kM
against HKD, USD and SGD on the loss after BTHBESRERRN + A
tax and accumulated losses as at 31 December =t+t—HHKRBREEERZS
are shown below. This analysis assumes that all BEEBLANTES - 20K
other variables, in particular interest rates, remain RATBEEMEE(LERFIXR)
constant. REFETE -
(Increase)/

decrease on loss
after tax and
accumulated

loss as at
31 December 2011
(Em), w2
R=ZF——F
+=ZB=+—8W®W
BRBEBAR
Rt &R
Effect in RMB’000 UARBFTIME
HK$ BT (4,131)
uss$ ET (824)
SG$ TN T 76
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(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

24 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

Sensitivity analysis (continued)

24 TRIEREENRAAEBE

(%)

HBRESW(E)

(Increase)/decrease
on loss after tax
and accumulated
losses as at

31 December 2010
(&), 2
WZZE—FF
+=A=+—H8H
R A% 12 s 18

& 25t EE

Effect in RMB’000 AR T TIE
HK$ BT

uss$ ET

SG$ NI

A 5% weakening of the RMB against the above
currencies at 31 December would have had the
equal but opposite effect on the above currencies
to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all
other variables remain constant.

(4,966)
7,414
(12)

BREMEEMEERTTE -
RT-ZA=+—RAREL L
ME R E5%E ¥ £ X AR
ERCHRELTRERRNY
2 .
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24 Financial risk management and fair 24 ceREBEERAAEE
values (continued) (%)
Interest-bearing financial instruments at variable BEMEMEBFNENTE S
rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to cash MITEDREANEE@EER S
flow interest rate risk and fair value interest risk, mb; ﬂ LR RN EBEFE
respectively. The Group’s interest rate profile as CAEEREEEER E’J
monitored by management is set out in (i) below. ﬂ ?HA%?XEATX()
(i) Interest rate profile (i) FIFHS
The following table details the interest rate TRAFLANEEREEH
profile of the Group’s interest bearing financial FriEassemIT AT
instruments at the balance sheet date. RBAH o
The Group
A&
2011 2010
e —T-%%
Effective Effective
interest Amount interest Amount
rates Gt rates + 8
BR7= '000 BIEM% '000
AR® TR ARBET T
Fixed rate instruments: THEEHTE
Financial assets SREE
— Deposits with banks —BERBEE
within three months to =@ ANE
maturity when placed IR 1T € A
BN - —  1.71%-1.80% 614,976
— Deposits with banks —BEXBR
within six months to ANME AW E
maturity when placed IR 17 € A
TR - - 1.98% 60,000
— Cash at bank — EHET 0.001%-0.5% 602,446 0.01%-1.35% 511,257
— Pledged deposits —EHER - - 2.25% 220,000
Financial liabilities EaN=NE
— Bank loans and —RITEHA
overdrafts #Y - - 3.30% (209,787)
602,446 1,196,446
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24 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2011, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 25 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have increased/decreased
the Group’s loss after tax and accumulated
losses by approximately RMB1,375,000 (2010:
RMB2,627,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change in
interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the
exposure to interest rate risk for both
derivative and non-derivative  financial
instruments in existence at that date. The 25
basis point increase or decrease represents
management’s assessment of a reasonably
possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual balance sheet
date. The analysis has been performed on the
same basis for 2010.

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counterparty to a financial
instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations,
and arises principally from the Group’s trade and
other receivables. Management has a credit policy
in place and the exposures to these credit risks are
monitored on an ongoing basis.

24 TRiERMEERAAEBE

=

(i) WBMES W
RZF—-——%+=A
=+—H BMNXEERE
EAH T BE25EE
i B A H fth ] & A = 4
BAE - AAREBRBR
MeEBERETERK
MR OARE
1,375,000 m(=Z & — F
F : AR ¥ 2,627,000
JT) °

E A REE DA TR ER A
REPNBERLE - X
ERAREZAEFEZIT
R FEOT A & B T A AT
XZMERRE - MEE
8 3 TS 3 25 fE & B KR
BEEHMEREE T —
BEEEEARBZA
2K A] BE = B AT R RO AT
- DHERE-_T—-F
FHRZELEET -

EHREREHRETEFXERT
ARXGHTELBTTHEANEE
MEFAEERZMBERH
Rz - BERREZREANE
ENE S LEMEWKRIE - &
BEEEY —EFHBER X

FEERZSERAR -
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24 Financial risk management and fair 24 ERiEMREERAAEE
values (continued) (%)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced
mainly by the individual characteristics of each
customer. The Group has established a credit policy
under which credit evaluations are performed on all
customers requiring credit. These receivables are
generally due within 30-90 days from the date of
billing. Credit limit is established for each customer
which represents the maximum open amount or
credit term without requiring approval from the
Board of Directors. These limits are reviewed
annually. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s
benchmark creditworthiness may transact with the
Group on a prepayment basis. The Group chases
the customers to settle the due balances and
monitors the settlement progress on an ongoing
basis. The Group does not collect collateral in
respect of trade and other receivables.

The Group has a concentration of credit risk of the
total trade receivables due from the Group’s largest
customer and the five largest customers as follows:

AEENEERRERRZME
EEMERNBRAZE - N&E
ERY—EGHEER  BiYH
FEREERNTFPETRER
Al - ZF RUIE —RNER
B H HHRI0E0H A
H - AREEFPARHNERR
BIEBAREZSHRENER
EREEXERY  ARRE
REBFRE - ANEARKEE
ARENEP A ABEMNE A &
AEBERS - AEBREFE
WEIH &S - WHRBE RN
B -AEEYERE S RE
i FE W SR IR B o

AEEE-ERENERER
Rk - AT SAREBHRKREP
RAREFNE S RUKIAL
B

At 31 December

R+—A=+—8
2011 2010
—2——F —TFF
Due from JEWA T AR
— largest customer — EBARF 9% 6%
— five largest customers — HRAREF 18% 11%

The maximum exposure of credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the
consolidated balance sheet. The Group does not
provide guarantees which would expose the Group
to the credit risk.

EmiERERSEHEERR
RABEREMEENREME °
AEBTERHAAXNEER
@IEHEIR ©
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24 Financial risk management and fair 24 ERiEKREERAAEE
values (continued) (55)

Other than those trade and other receivables that
impairment losses have been made for (Note 16(b)),
there are no other significant credit risks identified.

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be
able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due.
The Group’s approach to managing liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have
sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities when they fall
due, under both normal and stressed conditions,
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking
damage to the Group’s reputation.

The Group ensures that it maintains sufficient
reserves of cash on demand to meet its liquidity
requirement in the short and longer term;
this excludes the potential impact of extreme
circumstances that cannot reasonably be predicted,
such as natural disasters.

BREELREBENE S ME
i, & W2 5% 28 (FfY & 16(b)) b -
I % 3 Bl i E i E K E AR

LA
a0
A

o

RBETRBREANTEELRE
TEHNBBEETORER - N
SEEERDESARNS
A REBEERRE-REER
BRTEERHNRBDE/E
NEHNAE  EAKEHEA
EEMEREIHNERIBER
BrE R -

AEBEERERZERTEH
Refl UWnetHEBRBEE
HRBEeHR  HEIRREE
AR EBFHNEREBR (B

R K == N7 =1
AKEIVNBEZE -

Annual Report 2011 —ZE——FF%{ 151



Notes to the Financial Statements
Bt #% 3 = P &E

(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

24 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s
financial liabilities, which are based on contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using contractual rates or,
if floating, based on rates current at the balance
sheet date) and the earliest date the Group can be
required to pay:

e

il

24 TRIEREEK A

(%)

\

TRAMRNGEERAEE 22
BMEEZAKRTAMNI MK
B BUEDNBEHARFTRRAS
mE(BREAKNF XK (F
P REEANRITHNXRGE
MMERE) R AKE BN
ZHEERAHEHE

Contractual undiscounted
cash outflow

SHRRTHRBE 2R
2011 2010
—g-—-% e
Within 1 year or Within 1 year or
on demand on demand
1FRFEER 1FRHEER
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®ET T ARBFT
Bank loans and overdrafts HITERREXL - 213,058
Trade and other payables B 5 MEADER IR 201,825 225,036
Amounts due to related parties  FEf BAHS 5 7008 3,730 3,363
205,555 441,457

Forward foreign exchange REPINES Y — mi

contracts — outflow - 213,770
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24 Financial risk management and fair
values (continued)

() Financial instruments carried at fair

value

The following table presents the carrying value
of financial instruments measured at fair value
at the end of the reporting period across the
three levels of the fair value hierarchy defined
in IFRS 7, Financial Instruments: Disclosures,
with the fair value of each financial instrument
categorised in its entirety based on the lowest
level of input that is significant to that fair
value measurement. The levels are defined as
follows:

° Level 1 (highest level): fair values
measured using quoted prices
(unadjusted) in active markets for
identical financial instruments

o Level 2: fair values measured using
quoted prices in active markets for similar
financial instruments, or using valuation
techniques in which all significant inputs
are directly or indirectly based on
observable market data

° Level 3 (lowest level): fair values
measured using valuation techniques in
which any significant input is not based
on observable market data

There was no financial instrument carried at
fair value as at 31 December 2011 (2010:
RMBS3,757,000).

24 eRiEREERAALEBE

V=<1
( n=

) BM2aRBEHENSE
IR
UTREZ2HRTEEAR
REARBEBEBRMBREE
AIE7RI2@ T A - #
FIPFEEN =2
BEAMNEDHNARAR
EBEAENEHEE M
BEsMIARTE2ER
HIEEAAEBEARE
REEN2HHORIERH
Ko - BEERFIRL
T
. BEIRBEZR):

2RERTIS P
AemITAMNRE
(CREHAB)GFER
RnfEE

o F2: 2RAE™M
LHRELER T A
MRE H2HE
Z2HFERAMEE
ERABREMHH
RN =R T

BErnr{EE

o FEIM(HEFH) :
TAEZ2HILF
ERABERMH R
BOGERMNER
AR EE

R—ZF—-——%+=H
St+t—HBERENAAE
EfEMERIA(ZT
—% : AR3,757,000
L) e
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24 Financial risk management and fair 24 eEEAKREEEAAREE
values (continued) (%)
(e) Fair value (continued) (e) AREEE)
(i) Fair value of financial instruments (i) ELLLOREEHENS
carried at other than fair value RIAMAARE
The carrying amounts of all financial assets and F B A B R PR ARG 2
liabilities carried at amortised cost approximate cHeMEERABOR
their respective fair values as at 31 December IR - WZE TR
2011 and 2010 due to the short maturities of TARZ-Z——FK=-F
these instruments. —EFT A=+ HEG
FREEEEAEAABEMS
o
25 Commitments 25 Aif
(a) Capital commitments outstanding at 31 (a ﬁ_'*\ —2——%+Z-AH
December 2011 not provided for in the =+—H _ﬂE MEMBEE
financial statements were as follows: FRBREEFRIBMT :
The Group
NEE
At 31 December
wn+=—A=+—H
2011 2010
—E——F —ET-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBFT
Contracted for 2&EL 56,945 27,923
Authorised but not contracted for & % # 4 7k 25 4 97 —
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25 Commitments (continued)

25 FRIE (@)

(b) At 31 December 2011, the total future b) "= ——F£+_ B
minimum lease payments under non- =t+—HB FEEBEAFTH
cancellable operating leases are HESHERMAMNEKRKR
payable as follows: BEHELEHEMT :

The Group
PANES
At 31 December
R+ZA=+—8
2011 2010
—E——fF —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARETTT
Leases expiring: FRAVF T %1 BAfEI B B
Within 1 year 1FER 4,648 3,224
Between 1 and 2 years 15224 4,318 3,048
Between 2 and 3 years 2E3F 2,293 2,864
Between 3 and 6 years 3E64F 328 814
Over 6 years RIA6HF 1,585 1,694
Total wEt 13,172 11,644

The significant leasing arrangements under
operating leases include the lease of the production
premises and office from Guangzhou Bawang
Cosmetics Co., Ltd. as set out in Note 26(a)(i).

KEMEETHEIEHERS
(BERMENELTHBER
REHRAEEREEBRAE)
B M 5E26(a)() °
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26 Material related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2011, the directors
are of the view that related parties of the Group include

the following individuals/companies:

Name of related party

RS &

26 EREB ARG
BE—T——4+-A=-+—A1
EF EERAAEEOBU TS
FELATAL AT :

Relationship with the Group
B 55 B WY BA 1R

Mr. CHEN Qiyuan
BREUR S 4

Ms. WAN Yuhua
BEEZLT

Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging
Materials Co., Ltd.
BMTERBEMHERAF

Guangzhou Chenming Paper Products
Company Limited
EMNEREMER AT

Guangzhou Bawang Cosmetics Co., Ltd.
(*“Guangzhou Bawang”)

BMNBELMRABRAR ( [EMBE] )

Guangzhou Bawang International
Hotel Co., Ltd. (“Bawang Hotel”)

EMBEBEBREXEEER AR (NEHERERE])

Controlling Shareholder
PERRAR R

Controlling Shareholder
PERRAR R

Under the control of Controlling Shareholders’
close family member

A R B R E YR R EERK B 12 )

Under the control of Controlling Shareholders’
close family member

R R BB R Z YR R EERK B 42 )

Effectively 100% owned by the
Controlling Shareholders

MR 100% B MR

Effectively 100% owned by
the Controlling Shareholders
B E R AR R 100% 6 X% A
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26 Material related party transactions

(continued)

(i) Production premises and office lease

agreements

— Bawang Guangzhou, a wholly owned

subsidiary of the

Guangzhou Bawang entered
production premise and office
agreement on 22 January 2008, pursuant
to which Bawang Guangzhou
from Guangzhou Bawang the production
premise and office building with a total
floor area of 16,735 square metres. The
term of the lease under the agreement
is 3 years with a fixed monthly rental
payable of RMB184,083, commencing
from 4 December 2007.

On 21 January

Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into an agreement pursuant to
which the production premise and office
lease agreement was renewed for a
term of three years commencing from 4
December 2010, at a fixed monthly rental

of RMB184,083.

26 ERBEBAIRS (#)

() SERERBRLEZERASR

&

— BHBIEMERRAHN
2EMEB AR R
EMNBER-EE
NEFE—RAZ+=H
RN EEMRE &
REHEME B
- BEEMME
MNEBETHBREM
M & 16,735 F 75 K
MEERE KA
EEF ot HEE
THWHBHBE=-ZZT
tE&E+-_AmABE
AR BRHA=F
BRAEMEEME®
& A R % 184,083

7T|: o

FTEMBEEINE
FR-_ZE——F—
A+ —BpEE
ZYMEEERL
HEBEZZE -4
TZAMARAH
3F -HeABEA
AR #184,0837T °
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26 Material related party transactions

(continued)

() Production premises and office lease

agreements (continued)

— On 1 January 2011, Bawang Herbal and
Guangzhou Bawang entered
office premise lease agreement, pursuant
to which Bawang Herbal leased from
Guangzhou Bawang the office premise
with a total floor area of 300 square
metres at nil consideration. The term
of the lease under the agreement is 20
years commencing from 1 January 2011.

— On 28 December

Guangzhou and Guangzhou Bawang
entered into an office premise
agreement, pursuant to which Bawang
from  Guangzhou
Bawang the office premise with a total
floor area of 4,916 square metres. The
term of the lease under the agreement
is 3 years with a fixed monthly rental
payable of RMB182,000 commencing

Guangzhou leased

from 1 January 2012.

26 EXBEEIXR S @

() SEEERMAEER

i i
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EFARAOPERE -
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BEIWASHH -
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£ BH=F o

BN R EIMNE
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A=+ A\ H
A AEREH
m OB BITE
MmEIMNELEAB
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26 Material related party transactions
(continued)

(a) Transactions with related parties
(continued)

(i)

(iii)

(iv)

Purchase of raw materials from related
parties

26 ERBEHIERZ (&

(a) BEABBHORS (E)

(i) AMEABESEEERERMH

2011 2010
—E——fF —E—FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T AREFT

Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging & M 1 & 5% & 2 1 £
Materials Co., Ltd. BRAQ 810 5,227

Guangzhou Chenming Paper  E N &8 %ﬁ o

Products Company Limited HRAF 9,818 9,013

The directors have confirmed that the basis of
consideration for the above purchase of raw
materials from related parties is the prevailing
market price.

Utilities expenses paid on behalf of the
Group

E=CmR - badmEan
TRERMHNEEES R
HESRITHE -

(iii) KEELEZFHKES

2011 2010

—EF——F —E—TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARETTT

Guangzhou Bawang BEM&HEE 4,093 5,031

Meeting and catering services provided

(v HRBARUHERR

by related party ERRB
2011 2010
—2-—F —T—TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBT T ARE T
Bawang Hotel - NI 4,157 —

The directors are of the opinion that the above
transactions set out in Note 26(a)(i), 26(a)(ii),
26(a)(iii) and 26(a)(iv) with related parties were
conducted on normal commercial terms in the
ordinary course of business.

§$€”ﬁ'w_tmﬁ
26(a)(i) ~ 26(a)(ii) * 26(a)
(iii) &2 26(a)(iv)FT 51| E2 35 B

TR 5 54 BB 1518
T2 e 4 IF 3 7 5 AU
7 o
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26 Material related party transactions 26 E KRB LR Z (&)

(continued)

As at the respective balance sheet dates, the Group RNEEEHRNEFEBFR HH
had the following balances with related parties: e SN
() Trade and other payables (i) BRERHEMERMNKRIE
2011 2010
—E-—F —ZT-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARBFR
Non-trade related FESHEA
Guangzhou Bawang BEMEHEE 553 1,978
Bawang Hotel FERBE 1,673 —
Trade related HEZHEE
Guangzhou Qiancai Packaging & M T {5 % 8 2 #1
Materials Co.,Ltd. BR QA 17 290
Guangzhou Chenming Paper =
Products Company Limited BR QA 1,487 1,095
Total 3,730 3,363
The above non-trade related balances are FTHEFESEBENLE
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed HRARKR £288E
terms of repayment. As at 31 December EEFE - RZT——F
2011, the balance due to Guangzhou Bawang +=—A=+—H " ENHE
mainly represented the rental payable for the MBENEHREEREE
production premise provided by Guangzhou 8 R A 3% P FE AT
Bawang for December 2011 and the utility EMBEH_-_ZT——F
expenses paid by Guangzhou Bawang on T AMHEEREMEBETE
behalf of the Group. KEAEEZNHKEE o
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26 Material related party transactions

(continued)

Remuneration for

key management personnel,

including the amounts paid to the Group’s directors
as disclosed in Note 8 and certain of the highest
paid employees as disclosed in Note 9,

follows:

is as

26 = KB

TEEBARH

X5 (E)

B £ 45 M 58

P8RS T AR EE = KK

FEOFT BB &R
BoBBEmT

SHEEENS

2011 2010

—EB——F —E-ZF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T T AREFT

Short-term employee benefits EHEBE R 7,716 3,675
Contributions to defined FOE R FOGR R ET 8t K

contribution retirement plan 138 142

Equity compensation benefits 1% 1 32 A+ 1@ 2,573 5,643

Total #Et 10,427 9,360

Total remuneration is included in “staff costs” (Note HBasast A8 TR | (F

6(0).

27 Immediate and ultimate controlling party

At 31 December 2011,

the directors consider the

immediate parent and ultimate controlling party of the
Group to be Fortune Station Ltd., which is incorporated
under the laws of BVI with limited liability and bengficially
owned by Mr. CHEN Qiyuan and Ms. WAN Yuhua. This
entity does not produce financial statements available for

public use.

B zE6(b)) °

ERRAEBEBER

EERGREHR

Bl R R

%75 /& Fortune Station Ltd. ° 3% A
A IR IR B L BB A K M Y
BRAR cr AR EENRE L

ZTEHEAR

YN

B3 AR B A

HAREROT B RE -
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28 Significant accounting estimates and

judgments

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and
are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed
to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The selection of critical accounting policies, the
judgements and other uncertainties affecting application
of those policies and the sensitivity of reported results
to changes in conditions and assumptions are factors to
be considered when reviewing the financial statements.
The following principal accounting policies involve the
most significant judgements and estimates used in the
preparation of the financial statements.

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual
value. The Group reviews annually the useful
life of an asset and its residual value, if any. The
depreciation expense for future years is adjusted
if there are significant changes from previous
estimation.

28 EE ST AT R

BEt A e BRI MG - WA
BEKRLEMAZSER 85
BHAKREHENERBERL T8
EBAEMEM -

BEEREHERR - HELRFEX
ERRNEANEMTARREE
AR Z2ZHRERBBALBRRES Y
EBFREE  HAFHTBHRE
FiTEZEBNEAER - T EEES
BUSRH Ko i B B 7055 Sl 3R B P ER AR Y
REEHE R AEE

REBRANFREER W
B REmaEMT A ERFEHRA
NEBETE - AKEESFR
AEERMAERFHERGRE
BE(E) - fHEBEMTHR
EXEH  AHABERFEN
FEMX -
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28 Significant accounting estimates and
judgments (continued)

In considering the impairment losses that
may be required for certain property, plant
and equipment, recoverable amount of
these assets needs to be determined. The
recoverable amount is the greater of the net
selling price and the value in use. It is difficult
to precisely estimate selling price because
quoted market prices for these assets may
not be readily available. In determining the
value in use, expected cash flows generated
by the asset are discounted to their present
value, which requires significant judgment
relating to items such as level of turnover and
amount of operating costs. The Group uses
all readily available information in determining
an amount that is reasonable approximation of
recoverable amount, including estimates based
on reasonable and supportable assumptions
and projections of items such as turnover and
operating costs.

Impairment loss for bad and doubtful debts
are assessed and provided based on the
directors’ regular review of aging analysis and
evaluation of collectability. A considerable
level of judgment is exercised by the directors
when assessing the credit worthiness and past
collection history of each individual customer.

An increase or decrease in the above
impairment loss would affect the net profit in
future years.
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBHN  BAARETR)

28 Significant accounting estimates and

judgments (continued)

(i) Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and
net realisable value. Any excess of the cost
over the net realisable value of each class of

inventories is recognised as a provision for
diminution in the value of inventories.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling
price in the normal course of business less
the estimated costs to completion and
the estimated expenses and related taxes
necessary to make the sale. For inventories
with committed sales orders or active market,
the Group estimates the net realisable value
with reference to the selling prices set out in
the committed sales orders or in the active
market. For inventories without committed
sales orders or active market, the Group
carefully estimates the net realisable value
based on available information and reasonable
and supportive assumptions on expected

selling prices, manufacturing costs, selling
expenses, sales tax and etc.
Determining income tax provisions involves

judgment on the future tax treatment of certain
transactions. The Group carefully evaluates tax
implications of transactions and tax provisions
are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into
account all changes in tax legislations. Deferred tax
assets are recognised for tax losses not yet used
and temporary deductible differences. As those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the
extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will
be available against which the unused tax credits
can be utilised, management judgement is required
to assess the probability of future taxable profits.
Management’s assessment is constantly reviewed
and additional deferred tax assets are recognised if
it becomes probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax assets to be recovered.

28
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(Expressed in Renminbi unless otherwise indicated)

(REAERBAHN  BAAREIR)

29 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31

December 2011

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
IASB has issued a number of amendments and five new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended
31 December 2011 and which have not been adopted
in these financial statements. These include the following

which may be relevant to the Group.
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Effective for
accounting periods
beginning on or after
RT3 B8
ZEBROETTHBEEXR

Amendments to IFRS 7, Financial instruments:
Disclosures — Transfers of financial assets

(BERMBRERADBTHRNES] M TA  KE—LHEEBE

Amendments to IAS 12, Income taxes — Deferred tax:
Recovery of underlying assets

1 July 2011

—ET——F+A—H

1 January 2012
—E——-f—H—H

(BIR G RADF12WNER]  FTEH —BELHE - 1HHEEKE

Amendments to IAS 1, Presentation of financial statements

1 July 2012

— Presentation of items of other comprehensive income

(BIRETRERDFIRMER] - HHFHELXAI#H — A

IFRS 9, Financial instruments
(BB BmEERN)EIN oM T A

IFRS 10, Consolidated financial statements

(EBRMBREERDFEI0SR - A FHEX

IFRS 12, Disclosure of interests in other entities

(EBRMBREER)FE125  REAEME B #Ez K E

IFRS 13, Fair value measurement

(EBRMBREERDFIS AL EEFE

IAS 27, Separate financial statements (2011)
(BB et BRSBTS EFYFHE(—F——F)

Revised IAS 19, Employee benefits
KK EBE e E£RDE195% - F S E 7/

#RE Wz TE B 895 #R

—E—-—F+A—H

1 January 2015
e T =

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E-—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E—=%—H—H

1 January 2013
—E-—=%—H—H
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29 Possible impact of amendments, new
standards and interpretations issued but
not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2011 (continued)

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments is expected to be
in the period of initial application. So far it has concluded
that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a significant
impact on the Group’s results of operations and financial

position.
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Five Years Summary
T F 85 E 2

(Expressed in RMB)
(AANR®B5IR)

2011 2010 2009 2008 2007
—E--F% CZT-TF ZZETNF ZTENF -—zTt+H
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AREFTRT ARETI ARETR
Results E
Turnover BEE 888,909 1,475,355 1,756,001 1,411,248 921,680
(Loss)/profit from operations £ % (E518) /% ¥ (625,287) (131,573) 452,252 341,925 182,453
Net finance income/(costs) ~ BT A/
(BR)FE 6,750 (2,558) (2,449) 3,117 (436)
(Loss)/profit before taxation [ Fff 15 5% Al
(B8 &F (618,537) (134,131) 449,803 345,042 182,017
Income tax credit/(expense)  FriSHE I,
(2 ) 59,967 16,160 (85,659) (63,268) 672)
(Loss)/profit for the year ARRERFEEA
attributable to the BIEFERA
equity shareholders (FB#8),/&F
of the Company (558,570) (117,971) 364,144 281,774 181,345
Assets and liabilities EERE®E
Property, plant and equipment ¥ % « & M & & 184,555 60,136 39,330 31,510 22,571
Prepaid advertising fee BRESER 3,875 2,437 6,081 - -
Biological assets EMEE 1,297 - — — -
Deferred tax assets EEREBEE 82,605 27,089 — — -
Net current assets TmBEEFE 758,541 1,501,769 2,008,883 289,387 151,657
Total assets less BEAERRDAR
current liabilities 1,030,873 1,591,431 2,054,294 320,897 174,228
Deferred tax liabilities EEFEAR 2,031 2,031 20,062 6,369 —
Net assets BEEFHE 1,028,842 1,589,400 2,034,232 314,528 174,228
Capital and reserves BERRHE
Share capital/Paid-in capital IR 7% /& 1 R 7 256,511 256,380 256,134 - —
Reserves B gt 772,331 1333020 1,778,098 314,528 174,228
Total equity R 1,028,842 1,589,400 2,034,232 314,528 174,228
(Loss)/earnings per share R (EE),/ BAH
(RMB yuan) (AR®T)
Basic PN (0.19) (0.04) 0.15 0.13 0.09
Diluted e (0.19) (0.04) 0.15 0.13 0.09
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IFEMBEBRE

(Expressed in RMB)
(AARMZIR)

Notes:

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 11 December 2007
as an exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law (Cap.
22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman Islands. The
Company became the holding company of the companies now comprising
the Group on 31 December 2007 (“Reorganisation”). Further details of the
Reorganisation are set out in the Prospectus of the Company dated 22 June
2009.

Although the Reorganization as referred to in the Prospectus has not been
completed until 31 December 2007, the Group is regarded as a continuing
group resulting the Reorganization.
statements have been prepared as a business combination under common

from The consolidated financial
control and have been prepared using the principles of merger accounting
as if the household and personal care products business (‘HPC Products
Business”) of the Predecessor Entity as referred to in the Prospectus had
been operated by the companies now comprising the Group and the group
structure immediately after the Reorganization had been in existence since
1 January 2006. Accordingly, the consolidated income statements of
the Group for the years ended 31 December 2006 and 2007 include the
results of the companies now comprising the Group and the operations of
the HPC Products Business of the Predecessor Entity. The consolidated
income statements for the years ended 31 December 2008, 2009 and 2010
only include the results of the companies now comprising the Group. The
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2006 presents the state of
affairs of the companies now comprising the Group and the HPC Products
Business of the Predecessor Entity. The Consolidated balance sheets as at 31
December 2007, 2008, 2009 and 2010 only present the state of affairs of the
companies now comprising the Group as at these dates.

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the three years ended 31
December 2008 is based on the profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company and the 2,100,000,000 ordinary shares, which comprise 10,000
ordinary shares in issue as at the date of the Prospectus and 2,099,990,000
ordinary shares issued on 3 July 2009 by way of capitalisation from the
Company’s share premium account, as if the shares were outstanding
throughout the entire period.

The summary above does not form part of the audited consolidated financial
statements.
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